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Attached herewith is the Annual Report to Shareholders Annual Report for Acergy

S.A Acergy for the fiscal year ended November 30 2008 in respect of the registrant and its

subsidiaries on consolidated basis

The financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements on pages

40 to 104 of this Annual Report furnished pursuant to this Form 6-K shall be deemed to be

incorporated by reference into the prospectuses forming part of Acergys Registration

Statements on Form S-8 No 33-85168 No 3.33-09292 No 33-74321 No 333-124983 and

No 333-124997 arid Acergys Registration Statements on Form F-3 and Form F-3/A No 333-

86288 and to be part of such prospeetuses from the date of the filing thereof The remainder

of the Annual Report all pages excluding pages 40 to 104 shall not be deemed filed for

purposes of Section 13 of the SecuritIes Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the

liabilities of that section nor shall it be deemed ineorporatd by reference in any filing under the

Scutities Act of 1933 except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report furnished pursuant to this Fonn 6-K

including the statement from the Chairman and the review from the Chief Executive Officer

describe plans expectations beliefs intentions or strategies regarding the future and constitute

forward-looking statements as defined in the US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 and within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the

1xchange Act of 1934 These statements may be identified by the use of words like anticipates

believe estimate expect intend inay plan forecast project will should

seer and similar expression Those statements include but are not limited to statements as to

the expected execution of projects currently in backlog statements as to the expected completien

date estimated progress to completion estimated costs estimated revenues and estimated

recovery of eonlract revenues on various projects statements as to the macro d.rivors and

fundamentals of Acergys business includIng the potential development in West Africa and

other parts of the world projections as to the extent to which Acergys business is impacted by

the global economic slowdown including statements as to the expected behavior and

expenditure of Acergys clients in market downturn and Acergys strategies accordingly

statements as to the development of Acergys capital structure and its alignment with Acergys

business strategy statements as to the ability of Acergy to capture opportunities in challenging

and volalije near-term business environment statements as to the future subsea field

developments statements as to the technological capabilities of Acergy and its competitors

expectations as to the expected growth arid cyclicality in the industry in which Acergy operates

statements as to the markets on which Acergy will focus expectations as to the expected demand

for Acergys products and services statements as to cost control initiatives and the review of

Acergys corporate and entity structure and the implementation of the results from such

initiatives and review statements as to Acergys focus on improving its internal control

environment statements as to the review of the performance and effectiveness of Acergys

l3oard of Directors and the results of such review statements as to Acergys profitability in the

future statements as to the cpected effectiveness of Acergys recruitment and training

imttati.es statements as to the expected repurchase of share capital in the future statements as

to the expected amount and timing of any future dividend payments statements as to Acergys
need and ability to obtain funding and liquidity from various sources and the expected use

thereot statements as to anticipated compliance with debt covenants and expectations as to



Acergys competitive position liquidity results of operations and financial position in the short.

medium and long-term The forward-looking statements reflect Acergys current views and

assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties Actual and future results and trends could

differ materially from those set forth in such statements due to various factors Such factors and

others which are discussed in Acergys public filings and submissions with the U.S Seurilies

and Exchange Commission are among those that may cause actual and futire results and trends

to difThr materially from Acergys forward-looking stutments Acergys ability to reeQver costs

on significant projects the general economic onditions and competition in the markets and

businesses in which Acergy operates Acergys relationship with significant clients the outcome

of legal and administrative proceedings or governmental enquiries uncertainties inherent in

operating internationally the timely delivery of ships on order and the timely comnpktion of ship

conversion programs the impact of laws and regulations and operating hazards including spills

and environmental damage Many of the factors are beyond Acergys ability to control or

predict Given these factors you huld not place undue reliance on the fotward-looking

statements

4WVIU
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Financial Highlights

Our Global Operations

Chairmans Statemern

Chief Executive Officers Review

The operational and financial strength of Acergy is demonstrated by our 2008 results

backlog and strong balance sheet We haveperformed well in our core businesses

while continuing our long-term investment
strategy in our assets and people

This puts us in strong position to continue to deliver complex projects for

our clients and to capture opportunities in challenging and volatile near-term

business environment

Jean Cahuzac

Chief Executive Officer

2008

2522.4

648.2

460.8

492.3

162.6

329.7

22.5

307.2

1.64

1.59

2007

2406.3

547.2

351.5

343.9

215.1

128.8

5.7

134.5

0.68

0.66

Weighted-average number of Common Shares

and CommonShares equivalents outstanding millions

Basic 184.1 188.4

Dduted 207.1 192.6

Adjusted EBITDA

Continuing operations 573.0 437.9

Total operations 545.2 447.0

Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage

Continuing operations 22.7% 18.2%

Total operations 19.4% 16.7%

Financial Highlights

For the fiscal
year

ended November30

In millions except per share data and Adjusted EBITDA margin

Revenue from continuing operations

Gross profit from continuing operations

Net operating income from continuing operations

Net income before income taxes from continuing operations

Taxation from continuing operations

Income from continuing operations

Net loss income from discontinued operations

Net income total operations

Earnings per share continuing operations

Basic 1.76 0.65

Diluted 1.70 0.63

Earnings per share total operations

Basic

Diluted

EBflOAdetnitioo ocafed on cage 105 of LcsApnual Report and Firancr Staterrars
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Our Global Operations

Acergy is global operation that is managed as five separate geographical segments Each segment

has responsibility for its own financial performance

When used in this Annual Report and Financial Statements Acergy S.A together with its subsidiaries

are collectively referred to as Acergy the Group Group Company we our or us

Segments Significant events

Africa Mediterranean Block 15 contract for 567Dm

This segment comprises all activities within in deepwater offshore Angola

Acergy Africa and the Mediterranean and awarded in November 2007

manages project-specitc joint ventures as
PazFlor contract for $700m

well as Nigerian joint venture Global Oceon
in deepwater offshore Angola

Engineers Nigeria Limited Ocean It has
awarded in January 2008

an office in Suresnes France and operates

fabrication yards in Nigeria and Angola

Northern Europe Canada Deep Panuke contract for

This segment comprises all activities in $195m offshore Canada

Northern Europe Eastern Canada Tunisia awarded in February 2008

and Azerbaijan and manages project specific
DONG Energy four year frame

joint ventures It has offices in Aberdeen UK

Stavanger Norway St Johns Canada and
agreement for engineering and

construction in the North Sea
Moscow Russia

awarded March 2008

North America Mexico Perdido the segments first

This segment includes activities in the united ultra deepwater contract in

States Mexico Central America and Western the Gulf of Mexico awarded

Canada and provides project management in December 2007

support for major projects
executed in South

America It has an office in Houston U.S.A

South America PRA-1 the segments first

This segment includes alt actMties in South EPIC SURF contract offshore

America and the islands of the southern Brazil completed during

Atlantic Ocean It has an office in Rio do fiscal year 2008

Janeiro Brazil and operations in MacaØ Brazil

Asia Middle East

This segment includes all activities in Asia Pacific

India and Middle East but excludes the Caspian

Sea and includes the Malaysian joint venture

SapuraAcergy with Sapura Crest Petroleum

Berried It has offices in Singapore Jakarta and

Balikpapan Indonesia and Perth Australia

Pluto contract for $150m

offshore Australia awarded

in February 2008

SapuraAcergy JV awarded

its first contract in India during

the third quarter of 2008



Our Backlog

Overview

Hcihhqs
Our Global Operations

Channans SterOrt
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At November 30 2008 Acergy had backlog for total operations of $2.6 billion of which $2.5 billion related

to continuing operations In addition we had pre-backlog of further $149 million

Backlog by segment

Backlog by activity

At November 30 2008 Acergy had backlog for continuing

operations of $2.5 billion of which 88% relates to SURF

activity the Groups main focus

Backlog by award date

More than 80% of the $2.5 billion backlog for continuing

operations was awarded in fiscal years 2007 and 2008

In addition maior contract of $250 million was awarded

to Acergy post fiscal 2008 year end

2008 2007 2006 2005

50% 32% 8% 10%

Backlog by execution date

Of the $2.5 billion backlog for continuing operations

57% or $1.4 billion is for execution during fiscal year 2009

The backlog that has been awarded since fiscal year end

is primarily for execution during 2009 and 2010

2009 2010 2011
57% 30% 13%

52%

19%

00/

SURF 1MR/Survey Conventional

88% 7% 5%

20%

70/
I/o

bCkk rIn the

CiJCOtIf -lied Gperdtcls
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Chairmans Statement

19 01
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Acergy delivered another year of strong operational

and financial performance achieving record revenue from

total operations of $2.8 billion and an improved Adjusted

EBITDA margin which together with our healthy backlog

for continuing operations of $2.5 billion positions us well

to face with enthusiasm the challenges that lie ahead

Our financial results reflect the successful completion

of the largest number of major projects in any one year

demonstrating our strength and capabilities in offshore

deepwater engineering and construction

Board changes

2008 was also year in which we managed successfully the

transition to new Chief Executive Officer with Jean Cahuzac

taking the reins following Tom Ehrets retirement in April

On behalf of the Board would like to take this opportunity

to thank Tom for his outstanding contribution Acergy owes

him an enormous debt of gratitude for his leadership and

we continue to benefit from his knowledge and support in

the capacity of Non-executive Director

Corporate governance

Corporate governance continues to be subject of intense

interest to the Board our shareholders our regulators and

other stakeholders

In recent months we have taken number of steps to

enhance further our corporate governance practices We
are currently conducting thorough review of the performance

and effectiveness of the Board Board Committees and

individual Directors These reviews are being conducted

by external advisers

challenging year for markets

2008 has been year of significant and historic events in capital

and commodity markets with global financial markets suffering

the most serious crisis since the great crash of 1929 July 2008

saw oil prices peaking at $147 however as demand began to

fall in the developed world and as investors began to doubt the

spending power of consumers in developing markets there was

realisation that manufacturing would consequently contract

in the exporting nations of the East Commodity prices began

to lose ground with oil falling to below $40



Overview

Finanrfai Highfghts

Our Global Operations

Chairmans Statement

Chief Executive Officers Review

As with all global markets oil services stocks have seen

significant de-rating since May 2008 on the back of short-term

uncertainty This is disappointing for the Board the management

and shareholders of Acergy

The oil price weakness on falling demand dented market

confidence which together with the credit crunch put

pressure on short and medium-term capital expenditure

plans of smaller EP clients

While we have seen few of the smaller independent EP
clients postpone or cancel projects often due to unavailability

of financing rather than the short-term oil price our exposure

to these independents is relatively
low Our major clients

remain consistent in their message they continue to plan for

the long-term recognising increasing field decline rates and

the smaller production levels of recent field developments and

the long-term demand for hydrocarbons especially oil Their

long-term views continue to support their investment case

While we expect economic and commodity markets to remain

volatile in the short-term we are confident that longer-term

market fundamentals should support growth in the demand

for hydrocarbons and therefore our revenues

Rewarding investors in challenging markets

Against these challenging market conditions the Board

recognises the importance of rewarding shareholders for

their investment in Acergy The Board continues to review

opportunities to invest in the business as well as returning

cash to shareholders through share buybacks and dividends

while continuing to maintain strong balance sheet

During the year we bought back $138 million of shares in

accordance with our share buyback programme and paid

dividend of $0.21 per share equating to total of $38 million

In light of the full-year results the Board has resolved to

recommend an increase of the dividend by 5% to $0.22 per

share in 2009 subject to shareholder approval at the ACM

Preparing for the future

We are seabed-to-surface engineering and construction

contractor to the offshore oil and gas industry worldwide

Our vision is to be acknowledged by our clients our people

and our shareholders as the leader in seabed-to-surface

engineering and construction

We are well prepared for the future Our strategy continues

to focus on key markets with long-term strong and

sustainable growth characteristics markets where

we can differentiate ourselves

Conclusion

would like to thank all our people for their hard work and

support and to pay tribute to the many subcontractors and

suppliers who have assisted us throughout the year

With our position as one of the leading companies in the SURF

sector our high quality fleet operating excellence and healthy

backlog we remain well positioned for profitable growth over

the medium-term

Volatility in the worlds financial and commodity markets

remains high particularly in the short-term and we do not

expect to be immune from these changes However in those

challenging times our strong financial and operating position

underpins the Boards confidence in the Groups ability
to

deliver value for shareholders

You have first class management team led by our Chief

Executive Officer Jean Cahuzac who are disciplined and

focused on the pursuit of shareholder value and on your

behalf thank them for their leadership and stewardship

of Acergy over the past year and in the years to come

Mark Woolveridge

Chairman
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Acergy has over the last few years developed weU deserved

reputation for delivering consistently successful execution of

complex and technically challenging projects based on the

quality of our assets the calibre of our people the quality of

our engineering skill base and the proficiency of our project

management This makes for strong and lasting client

relationships Our major clients are telling us that they need

strong partners both technically and financially particularly

in todays challenging markets

Our strategy rightly continues to focus on key markets with

long-term strong and sustainable growth characteristics

markets where we can differentiate ourselves This includes

harsh environment and deepwatm SURF operations We see

our focus globally on the SURF and IMR markets together

with continued strength in the conventional market in WesI

Africa We expect the 1MR market to become increasingly

global as field developments mature and require these

services Driven by these factors and our continued success

we believe that the SURF and IMR markets will become

increasing contributors to overall profits in the years to come

Under Ihe stewardship of Torn Ehret the management team have

successfully transformed Acergy into leading global seabed-

to-surface engineering and construction EC contractor to

the offshore oil and gas industry with strong market positions

and dynamic growth opportunities across all regions

Past experience shows that there is significant value to being

successful and strong incumbent We believe that the

offshore EC sector while not immune to the wider market

environment will be one of the more resilient areas of field

development With challenging markets ahead we need to

continue to focus on delivery and execution in 2009 and beyond

while maintaining financial and operational strength and rigour

From the combination of our strategy the efforts of our people

the continued strong pace of investment and our financial and

operations strength we believe that we are in good shape

to deliver profitable growth for shareholders in the future

Reflecting on the past year

During 2008 we executed our largest and most complex

projects well Our financial results reflect this with the

completion of significant number of major projects

including PRA-1 our first Engineering Procurement

lnstallation and Commissioning EPIC SURF contract

in Brazil Kizomba Projects Mondo and Saxi Batuque

in Angola Liu Hue in China Vincent in Australia

and Maari in New Zealand

The fiscal year commenced strongly with the award of two of

the largest contract awards in the Groups history Block 15 at

$670 million and PazFlor at $700 million in November 2007 and

January 2008 respectively However 2008 was characterised

by further delays in project awards particularly in West Africa

region which has for many years soon strong and regular

order flow As the year progressed we saw signs of momentum

from number of clients in West Africa and other parts of the

world and we were delighted to announce the award of

Angola LNG at S250 million in December 2008

Chief Executive Officers Review

Th
jct111 rEItF

ht ianca uerorrnanc

2008 was year characterised by our successful execution

of technically challenging and complex projects delivering

strong financial and operational results continued delays

in contract awards in West Africa and unprecedented

challenges in financial and economic markets particularly

in the second half of the year Against this backdrop

we delivered record revenue from total operations of

$28 billion together with an Adjusted EBITDA margin of

19.4% for total operations an increase from 16.7% last year



Overview

U2l chlignis

Our Globd aiatoi

..nnar ScUufl cut

Chief Executive Officers Review

Jean Cahuzac answers your questions

Are you pleased with these results at is the outlook

am pleased with our results they demo or iv

ability to deliver ccnsistently ucc io

complex and technically challengi ne

environments worldwide

They reflect su5tÆŁd div

processes and our ass àe nd osi

pleased to say are
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It is testament to our strength that despfte some

disappointments including these delays and the unusually

high level of dry-docks we have delivered such strong

financial performance

Revenue from continuing operations tor fiscal year 2008

was $2522 million 2007 $2406 million due to strong SURF

and IMR activity levels in the North and Norwegian Seas

significantly higher activity levels in Brazil and Asia Pacific

offset by lower activity levels in West Africa driven by the

planned dry-dock scheduling particularly Acergy Polaris

during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2008

Gross profit was $648 million 2007 $547 million Fiscal

year 2008 saw an increase in the number of major projects in

installation phase The improvement in gross margin reflected

the continued improvement in the volume and quality of

project execution during the year and the recognition of $33

million pension credit in Acergy Northern Europe and Canada
offset by slightly

lower utilisation due to planned dry-docks

Administrative expenses were $254 million 2007 $228 million

reflecting increased tendering levels higher infrastructure

costs in Brazil and movements in the U.S dollar

Acargys share of associates and joint ventures increased

significantly to $63 million 2007 $32 million with strong

contributions trom NKT Flexibles and Seaway Heavy Ufting

offset by loss on the SapuraAcergy joint venture whidh took

delivery of Sapura 3000 during the year

The Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing operations for

the twelve months was 22.7% 2007 18.2% The Adjusted

EBITDA margin from total operations for the twelve months

was 19.4% 200716.7%

Other gains were $44 million 2007 $1 million reflecting

the effect of foreign exchange revaluations primarily on short-

term intercompany balances

Income before taxation trom continuing operations for fiscal

year 2008 was $492 million 2007 $344 million reflecting

good project execution strong contribution from associates

and joint ventures and the recognition of $33 million

pension credit

Taxation for the twelve months was $163 million

2007 $215 million reflecting an effective rate of 33%

Net income from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008 was

$330 million 2007 $129 million Net income from total operations

for fiscal year 2008 was $307 million 2007 $135 million

For the year we delivered significant increase in diluted

earnings per share for total operations of $1.59 2007 $0.66

and the Board has resolved to recommend 5% increase

in the dividend to $0.22 per share subject to shareholder

approval at the AGM

Strong cash generation from operations was offset by planned

capital expenditure during the year of $294 million and increased

returns to shareholders amounting to $138 million in the form

of share buybacks and $38 million in the form of dividends

Acergy Africa and Mediterranean As expected revenue

from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008 was lower

at $1176 million 2007 $1398 million due to unusually high
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Chief Executive Officers Review continued

levels of planned dry-docks on Acergy Polaris Acorgy

Legend and Acergy Hawk during the second half of the year

Good progress was made on major projects EPC2B Tombua

Landana Agbami and Block 15 and the successful completion

of the Kizomba Projects Mondo and Saxi Batuque As

result of the high level of dry-docking activity net operating

income from continuing operations was $184 million 2007
$229 million due to significantly lower activity levels of projects

in offshore installation in the second half of the year

Acergy Northern Europe and Canada Revenue from

continuing operations for fiscal year 2008 was $843 million

2007 $697 million reflecting high levels of SURE IMR and

Survey activity
and high vessel utilisation of an increased

capacity due to fleet expansion Net operating income from

continuing operations was $192 million 2007 $122 million

driven by strong project performance including significant

progress on Sage Hot Tap Miskar and Tyrihans subsea

installation and the recognition of $33 million pension credit

Acergy North America and Mexico Revenue from continuing

operations for fiscal year 2008 was $4 million 2007 $3 million

with net operating income from continuing operations of

$11 million 2007 net operating loss of $5 million due to

the contribution from the cross-regional projects PRA-1

which completed during the year and Frado which

progressed on schedule

Acergy South America Revenue from continuing operations

for fiscal year 2008 was $320 million 2007 $202 million

driven by strong revenue contributions from SURF projects

PRA-1 and Frade The three ships on long-term service

agreements to Petrobras achieved full utilisation outside

of planned dry-docks Net operating income from continuing

operations was $23 million 2007 net operating loss of

$1 million due to good performance on SURF projects

and the ships on long-term service agreement

Acergy Asia and Middle East Revenue from continuing

operations for fiscal year 2008 was $181 million 2007 $102

million following the completion of the Vincent Maari and Liu

Hua Projects and good progress on other projects including

Van Gogh and Pluto Net operating income from continuing

operations of $14 million 2007 net operating loss of $29

million reflected good project performance and successful

project close-outs Sapura 3000 delivered strong operational

performance post delivery and completed the first offshore

phase of the Kikeh Project for SapuraAcergy our joint venture

Share of results of associates and joint ventures The full year

contribution from associates and joint ventures was $63 million

2007 $32 million reflecting strong contributions from NKT

Flexibles and Seaway Heavy Lifting partly offset by loss

from the SapuraAcergy joint venture

Discontinued operations Net loss from discontinued

operations for fiscal year 2008 was $23 million 2007 net

income of $6 million due to the negative contribution from

the Mexilhªo Trunkline Project in Brazil compared to positive

contributions from the Eldfisk and Tyrihans Trunkline Projects

in fiscal year 2007 and the
partial reversal of previously

recorded impairment charge on Acergy Piper

Asset development

Further rejuvenation dominated our fleet management

programme During the year we took delivery of three new

vessels Acergy Viking SkandiAcergy and Sapura 3000 for

our joint venture in Malaysia and acquired the Aoegy Petrel

Although shipyard delays continued to impact delivery we have

been pleased with the strong operational performance of each

vessel upon joining the fleet Fiscal year 2008 saw high utilisation

rates despite the increased capacity and an unusually high level

of planned dry-docks during the year including that oiAcergy

Polaris which was out of operation for some seven months

completing her classification dry-dock together with an

extensive upgrade and life enhancement programme

Following the completion of her scope of work on the

Mexilhflo Trunkline Project in Brazil and with limited near-term

opportunities the Board agreed the sale of Acergy Piper and

with it an exit from the non-core large-diameter Trunkline

business enabling us to concentrate on our strategy and

focus on opportunities in our core businesses

Preparing for the future

Our vision is to be acknowledged by our clients our people

and our shareholders as the leader in seabed-to-surface

engineering and construction

We recognise that to achieve our vision we need our strategic

imperatives to be underpinned by our core values of safety

integrity innovation financial discipline and One Acergy

These imperatives wilt enable us to build on the strengths

and successes of the past as we prepare with enthusiasm

to meet future challenges

The combination of our strategy the strength of our people

fleet and regional operations together with sustained

investment means that we are able to differentiate our

capabilities in the harsh and difficult environments in

which we operate to safely satisfy the changing needs

of our clients and that we are in good shape to deliver

profitable growth for shareholders in the future



Outlook

The macro drivers for our business are global growth in

demand for energy and the needs of our clients to access

reserves often in more difficult environments Recent global

economic conditions have created more challenging short-

term market and reduced near-term visibility but the medium

and long-term fundamentals of our business remain robust

We therefore expect to see short-term volatility
but we remain

encouraged by the ongoing discussions with clients in West

Africa and other parts of the world

Conclusion

have been fortunate to take the helm of well-run business

focused on its clients needs with great team responding

well to the opportunities for our sector In years time hope

to report that in spite of the challenging short-term economic

and market conditions ahead and given the likelihood of

somewhat lower
activity levels we have been able to improve

our Company even further

The task of every generation of leadership is to take performance

to the next level and that is what we are determined to do

want the new era of leadership building on the profound

transformation of recent years to be characterised by

disciplined growth

We are in business to help our clients achieve their goals
We hope thereby to create value for them and earn their

loyalty If we do this well we will deliver consistently good
returns to shareholders Our ability to earn our clients loyalty

and to execute technically challenging and complex projects

in harsh environments depends entirely on the quality of

our people

We have great people in Acergy and my thanks go to all

of them throughout the world who have coped well with

continuing change and with the demands placed upon
them The strong performance delivered in 2008 is more

than anything else tribute to them

Ghafrrnans

Jean Cahuzac

Chief Executive Officer
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Business Review

ShM4errn chaHenges
ong4ermprospects
Acergy is seabed-to-surface engineering and

construction contractor to the offshore oil and gas

induŁtry worldwide We provide integrated services

and we plan design and deliver complex projects

in harsh and challenging environments

Our business operates in the engineering and

construction market representing the late cycle

elements of the upstream cycle of the offshore

oil and gas industry The focus of our business

is outlined below

Market environment

World energy demand is expeoted to be 45% higher in 2030

than today according to the International Energy Agency

IEA driven by the nonOECD economies especially the

BRIC Brazil Russia India and China economies where

future consumption is expected significantly to exceed

current production despite possible short-term slowdowns

Even under the most optimistic assumptions about the

development of alternative technology we believe oil

will remain the worlds main source of energy for many

years to come



line ra as are key deform nant of the ivestm nt ed

ft xl compani The lEA rr lerenc aenino ro or

ply on percentac cpoi it increase it jI bat ave aje

vtural dachne ate to over per year by 2030 as all ions

xper anco drop in average field ze and cc en sh ii

roduation to deeper offshore fields whi have the highest

clii ates Ft tore ast that some 465mb 01 qr ice

capacity or roughly four trees the current capacity of Sac

Ar it ia the world rg st at prodi cing natio ni eds

be taIled between 2007 and 2030 to offset the beet if

expected odheld decine As result many countr Ir eed

to crease in seine ises signif eantly their irvi nent levi Is

Di sp ta the cychcatity of the energy ector we ext cc

urLadexlano cldcrnaidfo ours iviccsiitl iietu

ft ig rrn drive by the deolet of cx rvr

atigri ldc ii pa Ids

iii ur ha iges va ft tic iii

ii try ir Thon oF eom an ay in nc ea nq

doii it Fe compared to siteir it on oil acme es

rctau to ac.o to dbou B1 lOt ii iii Fact

pcdictioi nbotholsrd asbc wean 3007 nd 030

Wi Ii aced explorat on and cI ip ovemi aft

ye resulted gI ar iinual Fe Is of oil dra an lcd

cent signthca it fit uc as th spy ci ae ..alt

ds its iore Brazil tt do iia id or pro tuc ticS ca catty

if te c.il buciness hcwsat narketwi ikw ccc

replacement ratio cc upled th eccl at ng iti

citura fields

Dccci lower 51 oft term 01 pr mc is xt th dc try

II co itinue to mci ease its capital exprc burc fshoie

asp orit on and productic EP as it Inven to IC Ok ver

deapi and to me stile anvironri eats new ieceixe

Increased invastrrent ir ft offst ore ol and gas ir istry is

axoectod over the medium to tong term ivan by cort nued

stro ig levels of global der icr for hydrocarbor Ii te ftc

rem macrmecor on ic slowdowr and fate dealir cli at

is irig folds As suet global upstm am oil inc gas ci as

Xf to he pr xiriitely $600 ho cii at rica

by 2012 an increase of no than half over 200/ levels th

deepwater produati ape ty expected to grow sijniti or fly

icIer tI anti at of laltower wa ers

Subsea held developments

Subsea qmaesria or cor truatior ha off hare Id

developments and the SURF uhse eo cii bit

car and flowlmnes corr per em ts spi lly ii if water

ci tel lo iii
ig vroi rt iur bay ccc ci esen

trxmt ySO fb jfa dna fi or.

ye year Ia is

SU achy ty eaom ng Icapem

Over 60 of global LPIC SURF Ccliv in next five yaara

xp at tobr nwitard pths aOOm

aOOri

bOOi39m

1b
00 1499rr

25
1500a

128

hell Sitter tltacas sthat the to clvi Ic

at ant allatco are ii ring

EPIC SURF wart is expect it to crease 60 over tie cx

vs ye ii co apa to the prey cue year with dcvi Ic meats

epth cheater tb
cii o00 no cci spa ed row at

faicsf ra rest sorre of SURF rket is

cxp Ito die wet

Ir ortarit lead caters for the 3URF rio kat lude doepwcitar

Ilin contracts cubs trec installat ii Ic Ic cc id for

cc atoll eor pci sits with the ub con lion

oatr .ueh as aipeline air bilicals ar lexibles

Following iortagc of cvii able asets am the cad mcci

mequirc to build cow units in cent yars craters have

beer keen mrs acc ss to apacity in the
city stage

ha tfst ore upstream cycle As result igaihoant number

of ii ultnyear deapwater drill ng eor tracts have bec awarded

cur 2007 amid 2008 typically asi aj fre ci 2003103013 14

It reoas hat proxmrn italy cx to aigl mew epwat
wilt ha lelivr very quarte from th ad half

cf 208 for the foreaeeable future The Ils
iq coat Is

eserit significant investment or behalf of 11 or

co cam It expected that oct of these contracts

mcliii cc irs COat .ti- sm tir rm at ev
data only ci sir all ax only of the soai itad lc SURF

on tsiit esubcim cliii have boa maw if

ret eat ii gn fiean futu owl oot atial for thi

offtto ecrstrutcr aidSURFmnark taasboa

eiF 55 tJ



vo trees ech Ito neta lation is

oilier nciiea rowt th irket in ay
year Gapac cons raint th oughout the upply iain

cent ye tnv cappe the yr at SI sea tr

in to Ia one 11 ibi lati of or ufacturer inve sort

and dum mg owth ithedn aid by rrajoroçerators

the otisho 11 and gas arkr suggests sitiv growth

It ii ostirr atad that the run bar at trec to at Illation in 10

penod %09 2013 rc presents an in ..rease of some 80% on

iat the previous ye years of these ear 10 55 are expect

ista led water deptte of 500 11 ras or greater

lie market tar SURF actv ties has 510 ically de iiontrated

cycl cal
ty ic easir and on plexity of projects

je rr with ext II tacit ielud 10 ii company
rats ancia rang nen% for Ic Id air and

II It Jo so as

vh cc

or cvi we ay cat rut naik main

Ic sI ni stirs

Inspection Maintenance and Repair IMR and Survey

lie rr iket for Ml work las traditic
ially used he

Ut old rwegia scato sot tie rti Sca and the ulI of

Mexice ted or wt ich ftcii drives by rrica so

ai voik ci Is ct few yea thc level JIll dot chore

coo al xpcndi ore a.ed lit
Ely

whih togetter

expe ted nt mod inc th ir stalled base

of cubse egu pme suggest it at the vel opo ing

cxpon thu osauirr to flak amin stone by specialist

rurvey ass ts sd to sir to rcv so ly installed

Oh hal Subsea tree nstallnttor tar cost by water depth

Subsea tree stsl di is Icading dicator or the SURF

rket It is xect that th number of trees to be nstalled

ii se ext live years will crease by more than 80% over the

s.t live yea with 55% for instal ati water depths greater

ito 500 iT circa

and xisting intrsstri ci no will also ncres his IS in pr rOot

ii ipl cations to rc wit otst ore an sub ca as

Jail OS Su vey and lapection Mac lena ice Repair

sich excIudr urr sn op ir work is ext cited raw

gr tiaan ly ii the corns ye ins Furl ionic or this narket is

oxpected to come re global in nati tollowir th trend

at ir creasi sg globalisat on oft uosea iginee in and

construction market

ConventIonal

The onvention sI riarket relates lotte abr ca ion or allatian

of fixed ottat are atforms and as ate pcI In en by

operators needs to ensure onti tied pro luct tram currer

01 and gas acil ties 11 otei cau as rena an at

xstil shallowwotar p1 ttai and as st ist

wI suni sIc to safe

snlsvr rtls and cs

For Acergy our cony itional bus no acu nt ly the

West Atncan narket We have car sic at cal aaaab lilies

Angola sno Nigeria ano nave irlvestea gnu conic

develop ng Ia at xpcrti.e and ir nc va we cap ibitty Il ou

pr oplo and ou fabrication ama We see our Ia sg erOs ic

esonco as only or ke at ci gth wi ich getl ci wit

our track record ios Sons us wll to eli lii market

in support sg cI erts to sta eir aurent pr ductior

Opportunhes tor Acergy

crqy viaioi to be the cck owlet god la dcr abedd

surface engineenoc aid co st uctian ie ip dicated

to shar sg is expe Le aid expnence create iniicvatve

solut or ala our clients tie world national iota at anal

ar independent and gas compan as

Acergya cI st base expc once snd industry knowlcdge

means it well poaitianed to or ticipate ma Set developments

and ensure it is prepared for futur ten Icr ci sojor SURF

cc ntracts as axistirg and new basi sa react vclq ment

ilcatones Over the corning yea we be ieve access

new reserves wi be in inane sair gly har.h ar vina in cots

and oflsha velopmc rita one set to became deepe

aid inane ca aplex Many is pit tu utica expected

in oftshorc dcci water dovelo monts thc At di tniangl

of the Gulf of Mexic Wet AIr ca and bn al Is dii the

dew lo me at dcc pwat tat Is in Asia P.t ic in srtic.ulan

ii istralis India and Mslsy will pnavido alter itivo

uncn of dcii arid Eff twa torward pIano tc

sine Acengy aft cii ely optic these apportu litie

gh utilsation across the fOharc ailtic cry

15 pror ted it ie Ill ye

iid nurni en 100W iiIs ing fec

UHF loot Ac jy trans en ifidrthat tie

sels in ur liSt
ly

50rn

1454

500 Olin

100 4Mm
dM1

1502

Seldi5 to

dJ.ty

an

jl bal

0111

ra oft



Managements Discussion

offshore industry given the ongoing investment required in

terms of finance people equipment and expertise to enable

them to compete in this market The maintenance of

differentiated fleet of assets represents strong competitive

advantage for Acergy and we continue to keep asset levels

marginally below full complement to ensure good utilisation

in market downturn

Acergy operates internationally as one group globally aware

and locally sensitive We have had significant presence

in the countries in which we operate for many years We

recognise the need to invest in and to develop our people

and our assets locally which has proven to be differentiating

strength Over recent years Acergy has further developed its

infrastructure and business in the parts of the Atlantic triangle

including Brazil Angola and Nigeria together with Asia Pacific

including Australia and Malaysia where significant offshore

deepwater opportunities exist an investment trend that is

expected to continue

New frontiers

North and Norwegian Seas

The North and Norwegian Seas have long been an important

market for offshore construction contractors After decades

of exploration and production the developed infrastructure

allows fast-track development from discovery to production

with relatively high profitability Recent prominent discoveries

such as Dagny and Ermintrude in one of the most explored

areas shows that with new technology new concepts and

even better geologists new resources can be found With

time the harsh and extremely challenging environments

of the Barents Sea and eventually the Arctic will be within

the technological capabilities of the industry and the

realisable ambitions of our clients

Atlantic triangle Brazil

The recent pre-salt discoveries in offshore deopwater in

Brazil represents substantial opportunity for Acergy given

its long track record in the country and strong relationship

with Petrobras Brazils national oil company In January 2009

Petrobras announced 55% increase in total planned

investment for the period 2009 2013 with the largest

increase focused on investment in offshore EC activities

Almost $50 billion is earmarked for new upstream projects

focused on new production systems at Campos Basin the start

of the Santos Basin pro-salt development and accelerating

the development of the Espirito Santo pro-salt Parque das

Balelas Pre-salt production is expected to account for

nearly 50% of Petrobras production by 2020 from nil today

Atlantic triangle Gulf of Mexico

The Gulf of Mexico is one of the most prolific hydrocarbon

basins in the world and
activity

levels remain high Development

of the regions ultra-deepwater fields in close to 10000 feet

some 3000 metres of water is expected to lead to significant

opportunities from 2010 onwards These fields bring

technological challenges and require substantive innovation

to provide the engineering and construction solutions that

Acergys clients require The award of the Pordido contract

in fiscal year 2008 demonstrates Acergys ability increasingly

to become the partner-of-choice as focus turns to the

deepwater fields of the future

Atlantic triangle West Africa

Angolas offshore deopwater production is expected to double

to over three million barrels of oil equivalents per day by 2015

subject to OECD quotas following major developments by
the oil majors in conjunction with Sonangol in blocks 15 17

18 and 31 and the identification of significant opportunities in

producing blocks and recent discoveries such as blocks 31

BP and 32 crotal

Contract awards for Nigerias significant deepwater offshore

reserves have experienced delays and are expected to

be announced during 2009 and beyond In addition the

requirement to eliminate gas flaring will lead to number

of initiatives in this region as demonstrated by the recent

sanction of the Angola Lng plant in Soyo and the associated

gas gathering system for blocks 14 15 17 and 18

Asia Pacific

Growing demand for energy in Asia is driving offshore oil and

gas exploration and development in the Asia Pacific region

notably in Malaysia Indonesia India Australias Northwest

Shelf and China Development activity in the region is

expected to grow sharply to exploit untapped deepwater

resources providing significant and growing opportunities

for SURF contractors

Summary

The expected profile of major developments in particular

the fact that the next development phase of fields in the

Atlantic triangle is expected to coincide with the development

of deepwator markets in the Asia Pacific region means

that demand for deepwater oilfield services is expected

to significantly exceed supply in the medium to long-term

Acergy is well positioned to capitalise on these future

market growth opportunities

Operational

Corporate
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Operational Review Africa and Mediterranean

Kizomba Offshore Angola

ExxonMobls largest deepwater development successfully

achieved first oil from the Mondo Field on January 2008 and

Saxi Batuque on July 2008 These subsea production fields

are located 90 miles offshore Angola in water depths of 800m

Acergy performed the majority of subsea installation work

on 36 subsea wells tied back to two Floating Production

Storage and Offloading vessels FPSOs enabling the

overall development to achieve an ultimate production

rate of 200000 barrels per day

In total 47 reels of six different sizes up to 11.4m diameter

with flexible flowlines risers and umbilicals were installed

and surveyed by seven construction and survey vessels

in accordance with plans Flexibility
in adding ships to

accommodate schedule constraints along with operational

excellence were key factors in achieving delivery on the

clients first oil targets

Despite the challenges the installation was compleled on

schedule huge achievement against backdrop of

tight market conditions for materials services and internal

support strong safety focus involvnig parties successfully

resulted in no recordable inuries aboard Acergy ships

during the project

Performance overview

For hscal year ended Nov 30 In millIons 2008 2007

Revenue 1175.9 1398.4

Nel operating income 183.7 229.2

Figures icr coelnulng operatIons

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008

of $1175.9 million accounted for 46.6% of the total revenue

from continuing operalions decrease of $222.5 million

compared to $1 .398.4 million in fiscal year 2007 The decrease

was due to lower activity levels resulting from the unusually

high level of planned dry.docks on Acergy Polaris Acergy

Legend and Acergy Hawk during the second half of the year

During fiscal year 2008 good progress was marIe on major

SURF projects such as Moho Bilondo Tornbua Landana

Block 15 and the successful completion of the Kizornba

Mondo and Saxi Batuque Projects as well as conventional

projects such as EPC2B During the fiscal year SURF

projects contributed revenue of $736 million compared to

$1055 million in fiscal year 2007 and Conventional projects

such as EPC2B contributed revenue of $440 million compared

to $343 million in fiscal year 2007

Net operating income from continuing operations

Acergy Africa and Mediterranean net operating income from

continuing operations of $183.7 million accounted for 39.9%

of the total net operating income from continuing operations

decrease of $45.5 million compared to $229.2 million in fiscal

year 2007 The decrease was due to the unusually high level

of planned dry-clocks especially in the second half with Acergy

Polaris out of operations for this entire period which resulted

in lower activity levels of projects in offshore installation in the

second half of the year partly offset by strong performance of

the segments projects in installation phase during the year
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The following table sets forth the most significant projects in the Acergy Africa and Mediterranean segment

Pr Description

cts

EPC2
ject

offs ore Nigeria.executed unng 2005 to 2008 for EnMobtl

Mafu am acergy project for fabrication 2007 and 2008 of jacket and-deck for chevron Texaco

OSo Oct re Nigeria executed in 2007 for ExxonMobil

Soname allow water and deepwator fab ictor projects peormed at the fabrication faci tn

Sonaôer on our behalf and other external clients

Luinp sumS

Agbami ect ore Nigeria executed during 2005 to 2008 for Star Doopwater Petroleum

Block 15 re Angola expected to be executed dunng 2008 to 2010 fOr ExxonMobil

Greater Plut ct offshore Angola executed 2004 to 2007 for BR

Moho Bilondo offshore ongo executed during 2005 to 2008 for Total Firia Elf

Kizomba Mo ct offshore Angola oxecuted during 2006 to 2008 for ExxonMobil

Kizomba Saxi Project offshore Angola executed during 2006 to 2008 for ExxonMobil

.PazFlor Project offshore Angola expected to executed duing 2008 to 201 for Total Fins Elf

Tombua Landana Project offshore Angola expected to be executed dunrig 2006 to 2009 for Chevron Texaco
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Operational Review continued

Northern Europe and Canada

Performance overview

For tiscat year ended Nov 30 in milIorrs 2008 2007

Revenue 843.1 696.6

Net operating ncome 192.0 121.5

Fsgures tar continoir.g operations

For discormnued operahons see Note 12 to the consotidated Foranuat Statements

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008

of $843.1 million accounted for 33.4% of the total revenue

from continuing operations an increase of $146.5 million

compared to $696.6 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase was driven by high levels of SURF IMR and

Survey activity including good progress on projects including

Marathon Volund Sage Hot Tap Miskar and the Tyrihans

subsea installation In addition the number of chargeable

vessel days increased following the delivery of new assets

during the year High vessel utilisation was achieved on all

regional assets

The increase was mainly due to higher SURF activities which

reported revenue of $647 million compared to $590 million

and IMR and Survey projects which contributed revenue of

$196 million compared to $107 million in fiscal year 2007

Net operating income from continuing operations

Acergy Northern Europe and Canada net operating income

from continuing operations of $192.0 million accounted

for 41.7% of the total net operating income from continuing

operations an increase of $70.5 million compared to

$1 21.5 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase was driven by good project performance

increased vessel capacity and 833 million credit arising

on the settlement of Norwegian defined benefit pension

SAGE Hot Tap North Sea

The hot-tapping technique was an essential part of the

development of the Ettrick Field located in the UK sector

of the North Sea straddling Block 20/2a and Block 20/3a

Throughout the entire project lifecycle the Acergy team

worked extremely well with our client ExxonMobil and

achieved an exceptionally high standard of engineertng

In order to facilitate the tie-in of the Ettrick Fields gas export

pipeline 12 branch was hyperbarically welded to the 30
Scottish Area Gas Evacuation ISAGE pipeline

This pioneering technique called hot-tapptnq where

Acergy has extensive and leading experience includtng

patented technology is the process of joining small

diameter tlowline to an existing pipeline within subsea

habitat without interrupting the existing flow enabling the

pipeline operator to avoid shutting down the pipeline

Our technical expertise in hot-tapping enabled operations

to be performed while the SAGE
pipeline was transporting

hydrocarbons at normal operating pressure and flow conditions

All offshore activities were undertaken from Acergy Osprey

lnstallation was completed during 2008 ahead of schedule

and in line with the highest technical
integttty requirements

of the ptpeltne operators
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Operational Revtew continued

North America and Mexico

Performance overview

For fiscal year ended Nov 30 in millions 2008 2007

Revenue 4.4 3.2

Net operating income loss 10.5 5.2

Fioares for continuing operations

For discoctinued operations see Note 12 to the consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008

of $4.4 million accounted for 0.2% of the total revenue from

continuing operations an increase of $1.2 million compared

to $3.2 million in fiscal year 2007

Net operating income loss from continuing operations

Acergy North America and Mexico net operating income from

continuina operations of $10.5 million accounted for 2.3%

of the total net operating income from continuing operations

an increase of $15.7 million compared to net operating loss

of $5.2 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase is due to the contribution from the cross-regional

projects PRA-1 offshore Brazil which completed during the

year and Frade offshore Brazil which progressed on schedule

Net operating income from these cross-regional projects

was shared on an equal basis with Acergy South America

The following table sets forth the most significant projects

in the Acergy North America and Mexico segment

Proiect name Descipeon

Lump sum SURF projects

Perdido Project offshore USA
expected to be executed

duting 2008 to 2009 for Shell

PRA-1 Offshore Brazil

The North America and Mexico segment provided cross-

regional project management and engineering support

to Acergy South America enabling the successful

completion of the PRA-1 Project for our client Petrobras

offshore Brazil

The two-year contract involved the tie-in of 20 Oceanic

Terminal oil line 20 and 10 gas lines to the PRA-1 gas

system as well as four export lines from various deepwater

oilfields in the Campos Basin to the PRA-1 Platform

The work carried out at depths of up to 173 metres was

part of contract covering complementary services to the

installation of rigid lines to PDET oil transportation system
in the Campos Basin

The workscope included charter of vessels survey of

seabed data design work construction erection and

assembly laying and installation of pipeline manifolds

and tie-ins saturated diving services hydrostatic tests

pipeline inspection gauge and ROV inspection and pro-

commissioning of both oil and gas lines

Both Ac orgy Discovery and Acergy Harrier which were

deployed on the project were praised for their excellent

performance ospecally in rotation to safety
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South America

Long-term presence Offshore Brazil

Acergy has three ships on long-term service arrangement

for Petrobras in Brazil Acergy Condor Acorgy Hairier and

Pert macta These vessels have for many years achieved

art excellent safety and operational track record enabling

the client to confidently undertake broad range of

activities offshore Brazil highlighting Acergys ability

to deliver complex projects to the clients satistacton

in all water depths

Performance overview

For local
year ended Nov 30 er milicers 2008 2007

Revenue 320.1 202.0

Net operating income loss 22.6 1.3

Fgures br contlnarrg operahons

For discor.trrued
operations see Note to he consolidated Fnancvrt Staterrerits

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 20DB

of $320.1 million accounted for 12.7% of the total revenue

from continuing operations an increase of S118.1 millon

compared to 5202.0 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase was due to higher activity
in cross-regional

SURF projects FAA-i and Frade both offshore Braztl

which contributed revenue of S200 million compared

to Si 21 million in fiscal year 2007 The three ships on

long-term service arrangement achieved full utiltsation

outside of planned dry-docks and contributed revenue

of $120 million compared to $81 million in fiscal year 2007

Net operating income loss from continuing operations

Acergy South America net operating income from continuing

operations of $22.6 million accounted for 4.9% of the total net

operating income from continuing operations an increase of

S23.9 million compared to net operating loss of Si .3 million

in fiscal year 2007 The increase was due to the contribution

from the cross-regional projects PRA-1 which completed

during the year and Frade which progressed on schedule

Net operating income from the cross-regional projects was

shared on an equal basis with Acergy North America and Mexico

The following table sets forth the most significant projects

in the Acergy South America segment

-I

Project name

Lump sum SURF projects

Frade

PRA-1

Description

Project offshore Brazil expected to be executed during 2006 to 2009 for Chevron Texaco

Project offshore Brazil executed during 2006 to 2008 for Petrobras

Ships on long-term service arrangements

Acergy Condor

Acergy Harrier

Pertiracia

Projects offshore Brazil expected to be executed during 2006 to 2010 for Petrobras

Projects offshore Brazil expected to be executed during 2001 to 2010 for Petrobras

Projects offshore Brazil expected to be executed during 2007 to 2013 for Petrobras
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Operational Review continued

Asia and Middle East

mber 2004

.Ntyinthe
or in London and

dry over 30 years ago He worked with

ed Nortcrofts International prior to

sllrstmovedtoAceri Asia
onded to PT Komar as

avaiiety

otlcinl999.J

act management on

Performance overview

For tscul
year ended Non 30 ye rnillons 2008 2007

Revenuec 180.8 102.4

Net operating income lossu 14.4 28.7

Figures for continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008

of $180.8 million accounted for 7.2% of he total revenue

from continuing operations an increase of 878.4 million

compared to $102.4 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase was driven by SURF projects which contributed

revenue of $178 million compared to 888 million in fiscal year

2007 due to the completion of the Vincent Maari and Liu Hua

projects and good progress on other projects including Van

Gogh and Pluto

Net operating income loss from continuing operations

Acergy Asia and Middle East net operating income from

continuing operations of $14.4 million accounted for 3.1%

of the total net operating income from continuing operations

an increase of $43.1 million compared to net operating toss

of $28.7 million in fiscal year 2007 due to the good project

performance and successful project close-outs

Our
joint venture SapuraAcergy took delivery of Sapura

3000 during the year which delivered strong operational

performance post delivery completing the first offshore

phase of the Kikeh Project

The following table sets forth the most significant projects

in the Acergy Asia and Middle East segment

Projec name Description

Lump sum SURF projects

Dai Hung Project offshore Vietnam executed during 2005 to 2008 for Petrovietnam Exploration and

Production Company

Kerisi Project offshore Indonesia executed during 2006 to 2007 far ConocoPhillips

Kikeh SapuraAcergy project offshore Malaysia expected to be executed during 2007 to 2009 for Murphy
Sabah Oil Co utilising Sapura 3000

Maari Project offshore New Zealand executed during 2006 to 2008 tar Tanker Pacific

Liu Hua Project offshore China executed during 2007 to 2008 for CNOOC

Pluto Project offshure Australia expected to be executed during 2008 to 2010 for Wood do

Van Gogh Project offshore Australia expected to be executed during 2007 to 2009 for Apache Energy

Vincent Development Project offshore Australia executed during 2006 to 2008 tot Woodside

Liu Hua Offshore China

Chinas deepest offshore development was damaged

following super typhoon Acergy was appointed to replace

existing lines with new flexibles while minirnisng the effect

on production levels Despite many challenges the offshore

campaign completed this complex and challenging project

ahead of schedule with an exemplary safety record

.1
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Performance overview

For fiscal year
ended Nov 30 in millions 2008 2007

Revenue loss 1.9 3.7

Net operating income 37.6 36.0

Figures for continuing operations

This segment includes all activities that serve more than

one segment These include marine assets which have

global mobility including construction and flowline lay

support ships ROVs and other mobile assets that are

not allocated to any one segment management of

offshore personnel captive insurance activities and

management and corporate services provided for the

benefit of all of the Groups businesses It also includes

the joint ventures NKT Flexibles and Seaway Heavy

Lifting SHL

Discontinued Operations

Performance overview

For fiscal year ended Nov.30 in millions 2008 2007

Revenue 261.8 274.0

Net operating loss income 22.5 1.3

For diacontinued operations see Note 12 to the consolidate Financial Statements

Discontinued operations in fiscal year 2008 relates to

the Trunkline business Following the Boards decision

to sell Acergy Piper the asset was held for sale at

November 30 2008 The disposal of the asset was

completed on January 2009 and represented the

Groups discontinuance of this operation The segments

impacted in fiscal year 2008 are Northern Europe and

Canada South America and Corporate

Discontinued operations in fiscal year 2007 also relates

to the final completion of the remaining Inspection

Maintenance and Repair and Conventional project work

in Trinidad and Tobago part of the North America and

Mexico segment

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations for fiscal year 2008 was

$1.9 million compared to $3.7 million in fiscal year 2007 due

to the reversal of prior year corporate accrued revenue

Net operating income from continuing operations

Acergy Corporate net operating income from continuirtg

operations was $37.6 million accounting for 8.2% of the total

net operating income from continuing operations an increase

of $1.6 million compared to $36.0 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase was due to strong contributions from our joint

ventures NKT Flexibles and Seaway Heavy Lifting partially

offset by lower utilisation on corporate assets due to

planned drydocks

Revenue from discontinued operations

Revenue from discontinued operations for fiscal year 2008 was

8281.8 million compared to $274.0 million in fiscal year 2007

The increase related to progress and activities on the Mexilhªo

Trunkline Project in Brazil

Net operating income loss from discontinued operations

Net operating loss from discontinued operations for fiscal year

2008 was $22.5 million compared to net operating income

of $1.3 million in fiscal year 2007

The operating loss in fiscal year 2008 related to the loss on

the Mexilhªo Trunkline Project in Brazil offset by the partial

reversal of previously recorded impairment charge on

Acergy Piper compared to positive contributions from

Trunkline projects Eldfisk and Tyrihans in fiscal year 2007

which were offset by losses on the MexilhSo Trunkline

Project in fiscal year 2007
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Our People and Responsibilities

Our Values underpin all that we are and all that we do Through focus and disciplined adherence

to those values we will be able to achieve our vision to be acknowledged by our clients our

people and our shareholders as the leader in seabed-to-surface engineering and construction

Jean Cahuzac Chief Executive Officer

Our People

Acergy is at heart business driven by the passion and

know-how of our people Attracting developing and retaining

truly
multicultural world-class workforce is key to achieving

our ambitions We work hard to attract and retain the best

people we want them to choose us ahead of our competitors

so we become the employer of choice in our industry

We have successfully grown our workforce from some 4000

people in 2004 to over 6000 today One of the tightest constraints

on the growth of our business is people with the average age

and experience of people within the industry falling significantly

over the past decade The industry is faced with considerable

challenge of recruiting today to satisfy future capacity

Despite this challenge we continue to focus on targeted

recruitment in the traditional regions as well as maintaining

strong focus on critical growth countries Angola Brazil

Malaysia and Nigeria These actions will ensure that we

have truly integrated presence and that we are well

placed to satisfy demand for our services in the future

In keeping with our commitment to our people Acergy

is committed to ensuring that we act on our commitments

under the highest ethical standards As such there is

whistle blowing system in place and available to all of our

people to be able to confidentially report any concerns

relating to internal procedures and our code of conduct

Every day Acergy utilises advanced technologies in some of the

worlds harshest environments to deliver and exceed our clients

expectations We depend on human innovation and endeavour

to succeed We encourage all our people to think deeper about

learning and development and their career within Acorgy Placing

individuals at the centre of their own learning and development

represents the cornerstone of our Group culture
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Acergy Academy

Since its launch the Acergy Academy has been instrumental in

delivering wide range of development opportunities Initially

designed to help the development and career progression of our

engineering discipline via functional and technical training the

long-term goal of the Academy has always been to provide the

same opportunities across all business functions within Acergy

During 2008 we have focused on number of initiatives

including

Extending our Acergy Academy development programmes

to cover all employees wherever they live and work This

initiative is expected to continue into 2009 to ensure full

coverage across the Group In addition to developing skills

within field of expertise it will provide our people with the

ability to broaden their individual skill base and to enable

greater career opportunities throughout the business

Increasing investment in our current managers and leaders

to help them become better managers and leaders so that

they can help others to fulfil their potential

Targeted development of key talent at all levels including

the identification development and retention of todays

management as well as an emphasis on our young talent

creating the leaders of the future in respect of leadership

in both management and technical expertise

Succession planning to ensure all key roles have identified

successors ready to step into roles and facilitate smooth

transition and to support our vision to become the

acknowledged leader in our field

In summary people are central to our success Providing

opportunities for our people to develop their capabilities and

to achieve their potential while ensuring they remain healthy

fit and secure whether at home or at work wherever they

may be in the world means we are well placed to meet

with enthusiasm the challenges of the future

Globally aware locally sensitive is strong ethos within

Acergys operations and underlines the importance of local

expertise and innovation indeepwater subsea fabrication

while ensuring compliance with national regulations

For more than 40 years the Acergy-owned Globestar

fabrication yard in Warn Nigeria has played an instrumental

role in Nigeria providing fabrication support to the countrys

developing offshore industry strong track record in

technological innovation high quality welding and fabrication

techniques led to the Globestar fabrication yard being selected

as subcontractor of choice by Cameron Offshore Systems

Nigeria Ltd for work on the Akpo Field in 2005 As result

of the excellent relationships that have developed at all

levels during this contract Cameron has recently awarded

Globestar further substantial fabrication works

Globestar continues to make substantial investments in

both people and infrastructure helping to expand the yards

technical capabilities and develop skills as well as contributing

to Nigerias infrastructure and the national economy

To enhance further our presence and to strengthen

our expertise in the country we founded Global Oceon

Engineers Nigeria Limited Oceon Nigerian joint venture

with Petrolog Engineering Services Limited an established

Nigerian contractor to provide engineering support for

shallow and deepwater projects to he executed in Nigeria

Innovation

Acergy has established an industry-leading reputation

for developing and delivering world-class technological

innovation particularly in the field of Remote Intervention

The Acergy Core Vehicle ACV is an advanced high

performance intervention Remote Operated Vehicle ROy
system It is capable of supporting demanding SURF IMR

and Survey operabons at depths of up to 3000m Units

have been deployed on the Polar Queen Acergy Viking

Sapura 3000 and the SkandiAcergy

Stationkeep The control system of the ACV offers one of

its most important differentiators Stationkeep is subsea

dynamic positioning system which enables the ACV to

maintain its position within 100mm and then move in any

direction in very controlled manner The ability to park the

vehicle then plan the next operation reduces operational risk

especially in poor visibility This capability is now in regular use

An extension to Stationkeep is the AutoTrack feature

which can programme the ACV to fellow and automatically

survey designated course across the seabed The vehicle

can survey the plotted route for several hours with no

manual intervention This automation offers considerable

improvement in the quality speed and accuracy of the

survey operation The enhanced tooling and high degree

of control improves efficiency and reduces the cost of

both construction and survey operations
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Our People and Responsibilities continued

The Days Away From Work Cases DAFWC
frequency rate is calculated as

DAFWC Frequency

Number of DAFWCs 20000

Safety

Acergy is committed to policy of achieving Health Safety

Environment and Quality HSEQ and security excellence in

all of our business activities and operations Safety remains

at the heart of all our operations and we are committed to

an incident-free workplace every day everywhere

Recognising the importance of HSEQ in achieving our

ambitions and the need for continued focus and visibility

changes were made during 2008 resulting in the Corporate

VP HSEQ reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer

As Acergy operates internationally and our people continue

to move around the world HSEO needs to look and feel

the same everywhere whilst meeting local regulations This

requires everyone to adhere to our safety visions and to share

consistent HSEQ expectations and to be committed to ensure

that we only do things one waythe safe way -- with the

confidence that any one of us can stop the job if they are

unsure or feel unsafe

Looking ahead we have to remain focused on getting the

HSEQ basics right An increased focus on health and well

being for all of our people will be made as we consolidate

our efforts in managing our impact on the environment in

which we live and work

Fiscal year 2008 has seen an intense operational focus

including the offshore completion of more major projects

than in any other year With this has been considerable

effort with respect to HSEQ We have continued to increase

the number of safety observation cards completed the

number of management HSEQ visits conducted and

delivered Positive Attitude to Subsea Safety PASS
behavioural modules to nearly 5000 people

During fiscal year 2008 19 million manhours were worked

with DAFWC frequency rate of incidents was 0.17 compared

to 0.12 in 2007 and overall Group target of 0.1

All the projects we undertake in remote and hostile environments

present their own set of challenges and risks key task for

our Project Managers is always to evaluate the risks involved at

every stage of the project lifecycle and take steps to eliminate or

mitigate them as far as possible Acergy aims to push back the

boundaries of seabed-to-surface development and construction

but always in safe sustainable ways

Our safety vision

An incident free Acergy workplace every day everywhere

Nobody hurt

No damage to the environment

No damage to the property vessels or equipment

In addition to clarifying our safety vision Jean Cahuzac Chief

Executive Officer set out his HSEQ expectations which are

Absolute transparency and integrity at all times

Every supervisor must demonstrate leadership

-You set the tone

Your people are your first responsibility

Make your expectations known and hold people accountable

Know your people

Every person on our vessels and yards must be alert

to hazards

Danger of operations

Do not let an operation proceed without proper

precautions/procedures

Shut down an unsafe operatiom it is an obligation

not right

100% compliance with policies and procedure

Expect it require it

Do not treat it as guidelines

DAFWC frequency rate

The trend in the frequency rate of recorded days away from work

cases DAFWCs as result of accidents on Acergy worksites is

monitored to show actual safety performance

0.41

0.31

Number of Manhours

NOV 05 MAY06 NOV 06 MAY 07 Nov 07 MAY08 NOV 08sc
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Undesired events always highly regrettable inthemselves

can also have negative impact on the progress of any

project Our track record in anticipating and managing all

types of risk is one of the reasons why Acergys projects often

run on schedule and within budget Our clients can depend

on us to take care of health safety security and environmental

considerations and risk management

Projects in different parts of the world fall under the regulatory

regimes of local governments Wherever in the world we

operate our projects always aim to meet or exceed any

applicable risk management and safety legislation

In keeping with our vision to be acknowledged by our clients

our people and our shareholders as the leader in seabed-to-

surface engineering and construction we aim to achieve no

harm to our people our assets our equipment and the

environment in which we live and work

Through our Management System we have established

framework for setting and reviewing HSEQ and security

objectives for the Group

Our HSEQ and security philosophy is based on the international

standards of ISO 90012000 for Quality OHSAS 18001 for

occupational health and safety ISO 14001 for environmental

management and international best practice and standards

for security This is supported by management commitment

personal accountability training fairness and performance

measurement Accordingly we are committed to preventing

injuries damage to the environment and damage to or loss

of property or equipment

Everyone working at Acergy has duty to comply with this

policy and to embrace the following principles to which

management is fully
committed

Uphold HSEQ and security as core business value of

the Group to achieve the elimination of unsafe actions

and conditions

Communicate to our people that anyone who observes

an action or condition that is unsafe has
right

and duty

to intervene and stop the operation and that this action

will be supported by management

Foster positive and progressive HSEQ and security culture

throughout our organisation ensuring that all our people

whether employed directly by us or working on our behalf

work responsibly to meet our HSEQ and security standards

whilst complying with the applicable laws regulations and

good industry practices in each country of operation

Provide the resources training and development to ensure

that work is carried out safely professionally and with full

consideration for environmental protection

ldentify hazards and assess risks so that we actively manage

our operations safely

Investigate all events where injuries damage to property

or harm to the environment has occurred or could have

occurred Furthermore we will learn from such events to

prevent them recurring in the future and operate just

system of accountability when dealing with HSEQ and

security infringements

By working in accordance with these principles we will create

culture that holds at its heart the critical values of HSEQ

and security and improves our business performance on

continuous basis

Positive Attitude to Subsea Safety training schools

In order to reach our goal we have set up acclaimed PASS

training schools in every operational region Now that safety

performance has reached plateau PASS courses are

designed to drive further improvement by

Delivering common message to all our people

Delivering general intermediate and advanced HSEQ

training courses appropriate to everyone at Acergy

PASS HSEQ training is widely recognised as some of the

most effective available in the offshore sector Many external

organisations also looking to improve their performance

send their staff to PASS making our training schools

recognised safety brand in their own right

As Acergy operates internationally and our people continue

to move around the world HSEQ needs to look and feel the

same everywhere This requires every one to share consistent

HSEQ expectations and to be committed to ensure that we

only do things one way the safe way with the confidence

that any one of us can stop the job if they are unsure or

feel unsafe

Looking ahead we remain focused on getting the HSEQ

basics right on investing in our people to enable them to

fulfil their potential and in achieving this in keeping with

our core values to be well positioned for the future
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Our People and Responsibilities continued

Our Assets

Dunng fiscal year 2008 the responsibilities of the former

Marine Assets Group were split to achieve better integration

of the day-to-day operations of our assets with our projects

under common management

The creation of the Vessel Engineering and Shipyard

Department VESD enables us to maintain long-term

focus on capital expenditure and dry-dock activities

while ensuring closer integration with and leverage

from our engineering capabilities and expertise

The recently formed VESD is responsible for planning

engineering and executing projects including managing

new builds conversions upgrades major refurbishments

and planned dry-docks

During fiscal year 2008 the focus has included the delivery of

Acergy Viking SkandiAcergy and Sapura 3000 the new build

for our joint venture in Malaysia all of which joined the fleet

during the year together with the management of an extensive

planned dry-dock programme

The Marine Assets Group is responsible for the crewing

efficiency effectiveness arid integrity of the Groups ships

pipelay barges equipment and ROVs worldwide

The Ship Management Group is responsible for maintaining

the construction pipelay MR and Survey ships around the

world in good working order This is demanding task at

times of high utilisation such as has been experienced

over recent years

The Mobile Assets Group Constructions is responsible for

the equipment that is mobilised onto our ships and barges

to support specific construction and pipelay projects

The Mobile Assets Group ROVe is responsible for the ROV

fleet the tooling equipment and associated onshore support

and offshore crews

The financial results are reported in the individual geographic

and corporate segments
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Key developments in fiscal year 2008

Acergy Viking new generation multi-purpose survey IMR

and light intervention ship which meets the latest environmental

criteria has fast transit speed and an ice-class hull enabling

her to operate in the Barents Sea and Northern North Sea

joined the fleet in 01 2008 and immediately commenced work

Sapura 3000 designed to be the most advanced deepwater

construction ship in the growitlO Asia Pacific region Owned

and jointly opitrated by our Joint v8nture SapuraAcergy the

vessel was delivered in 01 2008 and commenced work

on the Kikeh Project in Malaysia

Acergy Petrel an extremely capable support ship for

pipeline inspection seabed mapping and ROy light

intervention activities Previously chartered the vessel

was acquired during 02 2008

Skandi Acergy new build class leader amongst heavy

construction stiIpwhich meets the latest environmental

criteria has fast transit speed and an ice-class hull enabling

her to operate in the 8arer4s Sea and Northern North Sea

She joined the fleet irs 032008 and immediately commenced

work for StatoitHydro

Acergy Polaris dynamically positioned derrick
lay barge

the Acery Polaris is the ideal barge for both and

configuration pipelay and construction activities in deepwater

fields Acergy Polaris completed major dry-dock during

fiscal year 2008 including an extensive upgrade and life

enhancement programme

Skandi Acergy Accrgy Polaris
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Mark Woolveridge

Chairman

Non-executve Director since 1993 Mr Woolveridge served as Der.rutv

Chairman from 2002 untt appointed Chairman of the Board in Februari

2005 He is Chairman of the Governance and Nomination Committee

He has Ire-Id number of positions with BP since 1968 most recently

serving as Chief Executive Officer of BP Engineering from 1989 until his

retirement in 1992 He was member of the Board of BP Oil Ltd His

previous appointment was General Manager Oil and Gas Developments

responsible- for field development proiects
in the U.K and Norwegiart

sectors of the North Sea He holds Masters degree from Cambridge

University and is Follow of the Royal Academy of Engineering and the

Institute of Mechanical Engineers Mr Woolvenidge is British citizen

James Hurlock

Deputy Chairman

Mr humlock is retired paitnar from he law firm of White Case LLP and

served as Chairman of its Management Comrnitfee from 1980 to 2000

He has been Non-executive Director of the Company since 2002 and

was appointed Deputy Chairman in February 2005 He is nrember of

botri the Audit Committee and the Governance and Nomination

Committee He participated in the fomiation and served on the Board

of Northern Offshore Ltd whrch during the 1970s operated diver lock-out

submarines and provided other services to the offshore oil industry

He holds BA degree from Princeton University BA and MA in

Junsorcdence from Oword University and JD from Harvard Law
School MrHuriock is U.S citizen

Trond We-stIle

Mr Westlio has been Norm-executive Director of the Comoany since

June 2004 He is Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the

Compensation Committee His current work is in the Telecommunication

sector as toe Executive Vice- President and Chief Financial Officer for

the Telenor Group He has previously long experience in the oil aria gas

service sector as the Group Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Oiticer of Aker KvaernerASA from 2002 to 2004 and management

poSitiorrs including Executive Vrce President and Chiet Financial Officer

of Aker Maritime AS.A from 2000 to 2002 and Executive Vice President

Business Development for Ake-r RGI ASA from 1998 to 2000 He ouaiified

as State Authorised Public Auditor from Norges Handelshoyskofe the

Norwegian School of Economics and Business Administratiord and has

served on numerous corporate boards Mr Westlie- is Norwegian citizen

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Sir Peter Mason was appointed to the Board as Non-executive Director

in October 2006 He is Chairman of the Compensation Commitf cc and

member of the Governance and Nomination Committee He brings

extensrve management and oil service experience having served as

Chief Executive of AMEC from 1996 until his retirement in September

2006 Prior management positions include Executive Director of BICC plc

arid Chairman and Chief Executive of Balfour Beatty He was appointed

as Chairman of the Board of Thames Water Cf ilitios Ltd in December

2006 end has also been Non-execufive Direcfor of RAE Systems since

January 2003 He was also until October2008 Board Member of the

2012 Olympic Delivery Authority He is Fallow of the Institute of Civil

Engineers end holds Bachelor of Sciences degree in Engineering

Sir Peter is British citizen

George Doremus
Mr Doramus h.as been Non-executive Director since June 2004
tte- member of both the Audit Commiftee arid the Comoensatiort

Committee He
currently serves as Chief Executive Officer of Gulf Energy

Technologies He worked Cf Aker Kvae-mnar ASA morn 2001 to 2003 serving as

Executive Vice President Oil and Gas Process Internaffonaf and President

of Houston region orrerations He- worked at Parsons Corporation from 1991

most
recently as Vice President and Manager of Eastern Hemisphere

Projects and Middle East Operations arid held various positions at

Atlantic Richfield Corporation and Exxon Corporation earlier in his career

He holds BS arid MS degrees i..n mechanical engineering front New Jersey

Institute of
Tectinofogy and MBA from New York University Mr Doremnus

is U.S citizen

Tom Ehret

Mr Elect was appointed to the Boaru in November 2003 and lres served

in the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March

2003 until his retire-merit on April 142008 He cont irs ed as an Executive

stoerd Me-robe-n until June 30 2008 at whicfi time he became Non-executive

Director Mr Ehret isa member of the Governance and Nomination

Comrnitt.ee an.d the- Compensation Committee ProvioLisly he was Vice

Chairman of the Management Board of Technip and President of its

Offshore Branch He-was iilsfrumental in the 1995 merrier between Ste-nra

Offshore end Coflexip and negotiated the acquisition of this group by

Technip in 2002 Mr Ehret has worked in all lbs rnaior
disciplines both

technical and commercial and has been
Project Manager New Product

Development Manager Marketing arid Saics Manager Managing Director

COO and CEO and Executive Cherman Mr Ehret is French citizen.

Frithjot Skouveree

Mr Sgouverae joined lie Board as Non-executive Director in 1993 He

is member of the Audit Committee and the- Governance and Nomination

Committee ftc has be-en in the offshore business since 1976 He was

previously CEO of Stolt-Nielsen Seaway predecessor of the Company
Mr Skouveree is tn.e active- owner of group of companies operating

within industrial and financial investment actMties in Norway He is the

longest serving Board member He has
successfut.iy participated in the

start-up or new ventures in prolects for
turning around and growing

companies in variety of industries throughout his career He has an

MBA from INSEAD and an MSc from the Technical University of Norway
Mr Skouverae is Norwegian citizen

Jean Cahuzac

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Cahuzac joined Acergv as Chief Executive Otticer on April 14 2008

ano joined the Board as an Execufive Director toll owing the 2008 AGM on

May 23 2008 Prior to joining Acergy he gained over 29 years experience in

the offshore oil and gas industry having held various technical and senior

management positions around the world From 2000 until April 2008 Jean

worked at Iransocaan in Houston USA where he held the positions of Chief

Operatirrg Officer and than President prior to the merger with Global

Sant aFe Prior to this he worked at Schlumberger fnc.mn 1979 to 2000 where

he served in various positions including Field Engineer Division Manager
VP

Errgineerin.g
and Shipyards Manager Executive VP and Presidr He is

Follow arid Director of the lnlemnaiicnai Associatron of Drilling Contractors

aria Fellow of the
Society of Petroleum Engirreers He holds Masters

degree irr
Me-cfranicaf

Engineerirrp romn tcole des Mines de St Etieririe

and is graduate of the French Petroleum Institute in Pads Mr CstrLrxac

is Fran.ch citizen



ry

Corporate Management Team



Managements Discussion

Business Review

Operational Review

Corporate Responsiedity

Board and Management Team

Corporate Governance

Financial Review

Jean Cahuzac

Chief Executive Officer

Jean Cahuzac joined Acergy as Chief Executive Officer on April 14 2308

and ioined the Board as an Executive Director following the 2008 ACM

on May 23 2008 Prior to joining Acorgy Jean gained over 29 years

experience in the offshore oil and gas industry having hetd various

technical and senior management positions around the world From

2000 until April2008 Jean worked at Transocean in Houston USA where

he field the positions of Chief Operating Officer and then President prior

to the merger with Global SantaFe Prior to this he worked at Schlumoerger

from 1979 to 2000 where he served in various positions including Field

Engineer Division Manager VP Engineering end Shipyards Manager
Executive \rp and President He is Follow and Director ot the Internatronal

Association of Drilling Contractors and Fellow of the Society at Petroleum

Engirreers Jean noids Masters degree in Mechanical Engineering front

Ecole des Mines da St Etienne and is graduate of the French Petroleum

Institute in Pans

Bruno Chabas

Chief Operating Officer

Bruno Crr.abas was appointee Chief Operating Officer in October 2002 with

responsibility for all the day-to-day commercial and operational activity of

the five segments In October 2008 his scope wee extended to include our

Marine Assets Operations and Supply Chain Management Since
erring

the Group in 1992 Bruno has helo various positions in the U.K France and

the U.S latterly ser4no as Chief Financial Officer He has seen the Groups

rapid growth from the inside having lived through all the major acquisitions

Bruno holds an MA in Economics from the Universily of Science at Aix-en

Provence and an MBA from Babson College in Massachusetts

Andrew Cuiwell

Corporate VP HSEQ
Andrew Culwall joined Acergys Corporate Management team in October

2003 as Corporate VP HSEQ reporting orectly to the Chief Executive

Oiiicer As Corporate VPHSEO Andy has overall responsibility for HSEO

within the Group and is aligned with all cur operational activities around

the world Andrew has held wide range of project and operational

management roles onshore and offshore and lies worked irs toe UK
France Netherlands US Brazil Peru Austresa Angola and Ivory Coast

during his 35 years in the industry 18 of which have been with Acergy

Stuart Jackson

Chief Financial Officer

Stuart Jackson joined Acergy in Aoril 2003 as Chief Financial Officer where

he was immediately responsible for the financial restructuring
of the Group

Before joining Acergy Stuart was Managing Director of NRC Energy lrrcs

U.K operations a.nd completed leveraged management buyout and

restructuring of the principal businesses He has previously headed

trading finance commercial and HR functions in trio power sector and

spent 12 years in the oil and gas sector working whh Marathon Oil and

LASMO in London North Africa and tOe Far Easi Stuart is an honours

gractuate of Loughborough Universty of lbchnology and an FCMA

Jean-Leo Laloº

Corporate VP MA and Corporate Development

Jean-Leo Laloe pried Acergys Corporate Management learn in May

2003 nrirrging with nim over 25 years of rrternational experience irr the

olishore oil and gas construction iridustiy As Corporate VP MA ano

Coiporate Developmenl Joan-Leo focuses on the lonq-term coiporate

development and evolution of tne Group together with the associated

MA strategic growth projects Jean-too began his career as naval

architect ita has since rreld wide vanety 01 positiorre .arourtd the world

with Stena Offshore r.otlexi Stone and latterly hrchnip including

Executiva VP-- North America Managing Director U.K VP Special

Prolects in Paris CEO for Brazil and VP Strategic Planning Paris

JeanLeo has Masters degree rI Aerunautic.al Space Engineering

Allen Leatt

Chief Technology Officer and Corporate VP Engineering

Allen _eall joined Acergys Corporate Management Team in September 2003

as Chief Technology Officer In this capacity he has been responsible for

various parts of bra business over trio last five years Today he is resoonsible

For the whole engineering function within Acergy including corporai.e

techrrologydeveloprnerit ard the asset development teem comprising

vessel engineering shipyards arrd dry-decks Allen begarr his career in

marine civil engineering with John Laing Construction for five years and

then spent six years at SubSea Offshore now Subsea7 as Project

Errgineer and
Project Manager He

joined
what is now Technip in 1983

where he held or .mber of managenrerit and executive
positions ultimately

as Executive Vice President for the SUI.F Product Line based in Paris

before joining Acorgy Allen has first class degree in Civil Engineering

is chartered civil engineer in the UK end holds MBA

Mark Preece

Corporate VP Business Development and Marketing

Mark Preece orned Acergys Corporate Management Team in February

2004 as Corporate VP Business Development and Marketing Mark nas

extensive commercial operations management and business development

experience gained both in the UK and intern.ationall Previously he was

Merraging Director with Bibby Line Ltd arrd with Stene Otlshore Coltexip

Stona and lCch.nip where he was Marraging Director Canaoa and

Caspian Senior VP U.K and International Business De.voloprneni and

Board Mem ber of Genesis Oil and Gas In his earlier offsnore career he

was Ships Master and Marine Superintendent Mark is Master

Mariner with an MBA from Henley Management College

Johan Rasmussen

Corporate VP and General Counsel

Johan Rasmussen serves as our Corporate Vtce President one General

Counsel He first
joined

in 1988 as an in-house
legal advisor and was

promoted to tIre positiorm of General Counsel in March 1996 Johan provides

tlie essential ingredierrts
of

legal contracting and risk management expertise

10 trio Corporate Management ibam and is the furrctionel hoed of tire Group

legal and contract support teams within the segments and businesses He

helps set quality standards levels of resourcing and develops tire team

Prior to joining lire Company he served with subdivision of the Norwegian

Ministry of Defence end as Deputy Judge in the Haugesund District Court

irom 19861988 Johen has Law Degree from the University of Oslo in

Norway is Norwegian attorney-at-law and memoer of the Norwegian Bar

Association He is also currently serving as Presidorrt of tire lntom.etiorral

Marine Contractors Association IMCA

Keith Tipson

Corporate VP Human Resources

Keith Tipson joined Acorgys Corporate Management Team in November

2003 as Corporate VP Human Resources Keiths rote within the Corporate

Management Tearrr is to develop and imptenrerrt the Group HR strategy

and develop the giooal HR team He has
resporrsrbilitv ton resourcirrg

performance and reward people development and internal communicatiorrs

Keiths previous expenierrce
in itme

engirreening proiect sector was with the

Dowly Group one latterly
with Alstomn where he Oclo the posrtioni of Senior

Vice President Human Resources Power Sector based in Paris Keitri has

business degree from Thames
Valley University London end has worked

irm Belgium F-ranrce Switzenianr.1 and the UK
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Corporate Governance

Acergy S.A is SociØtØAnonyme Holding organised in

the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg under the Company Law

of 1915 as amended and incorporated in Luxembourg in

1993 as the holding company for all of our activities

Our registered office is located at 412F route dEsch
L-2086 Luxembourg and registered in the Companies

Register of the Luxembourg District Court under the

designation R.C.S Luxembourg 43172 The term

Group refers to Acergy S.A and its subsidiaries

As company incorporated in Luxembourg and quoted

on both the Nasdaq Global Select Market and Oslo Stock

Exchanges Acergy is subject to number of different laws

and regulations with respect to corporate governance

key corporate governance activity undertaken by the Group

concerns compliance with the provisions of Section 404 of

the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 which is applicable to all

companies listed on U.S national securities exchange and

enforced by the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC The Group is committed to achieving high corporate

governance standards at all times We believe the observance

of those standards is in the best interest of all stakeholders

The Group acknowledges the division of roles between

shareholders the Board and the Corporate Management

team The Company further ensures good governance is

adopted by holding regular Board meetings which the

Corporate Management Team attend to present strategic

operational and financial matters

Corporate Governance requirements

We are subject to Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4350 Rule 4350
establishing certain corporate governance requirements

for companies listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market

Pursuant to Rule 4350a as foreign private issuer we may

follow our home country corporate governance practices in

lieu of all the requirements of Rule 4350 provided that we

comply with certain mandatory sections of Rule 4350

ii disclose each other requirement of Rule 4350 that we

do not follow and describe the home country practice followed

in lieu of such other requirement and iii deliver letter to

Nasdaq Global Select Market from our Luxembourg counsel

certifying that the corporate governance practices that we do

follow are not prohibited by Luxembourg law Our independent

Luxembourg counsel has certified to Nasdaq Global Select

Market that our corporate governance practices are not

prohibited by Luxembourg law

The requirements of Rule 4350 and the Luxembourg corporate

governance practices that we follow in lieu thereof are

described below

Rule 4350c requires that if there is nomination committee

it be comprised solely of independent directors as such

term is defined in Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4200a1
In lieu of the requirements of Rule 4350c we follow

generally accepted business practices in Luxembourg

which do not have rules governing the composition of

the nomination committee

Rule 4350d2A requires that the Audit Committee has

at least three members each of whom among other things

must be independent as defined under Nasdaq Marketplace

Rule 4200a 15 and meet the criteria for independence set

forth in Rule OA-3b1 under the U.S Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act In lieu of

the requirements of Rule 4350d2A we follow generally

accepted business practices in Luxembourg which do not

have rules governing the composition of the Audit Committee

Rule 4350c requires regularly scheduled meetings at

which only independent directors as defined in Nasdaq

Marketplace Rule 4200a15 are present executive

sessions In lieu of the requirements under Rule 4350c

we follow generally accepted business practices in

Luxembourg which do not have rules requiring regularly

scheduled executive sessions and therefore permit the

attendance at such executive sessions of directors that

are not independent

Rule 4350f requires that the quorum for any meeting of the

holders of common stock must not be less than 33 1/3% of

the outstanding shares of our common voting stock In lieu

of the requirements of Rule 4350f we follow generally

accepted business practices in Luxembourg which do not

require specific quorum for meetings of its shareholders

other than in specific cases required by Luxembourg law

Rule 4350g requires that we solicit proxies and provide

proxy statements for all meetings of shareholders and

provide copies of such proxy solicitation to Nasdaq Global

Select Market In lieu of the requirements of Rule 4350g we

follow generally accepted business practices in Luxembourg

which do not require the provision of proxy statements for

meetings of shareholders

Rule 43500 requires us to obtain shareholder approval

when certain plans or other equity compensation arrangements

are established or materially amended In lieu of the
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requirements of Rule 4350i1A we follow generally

accepted business practices in Luxembourg which do not

require shareholder approval before the establishment or

amendment of such plans or arrangements to the extent they

relate to equity compensation of employees of the Company

or directors or employees of subsidiaries of the Company

as opposed to equity compensation of directors of the

Company in their capacity as such directors

Other than as noted above we comply with the corporate

governance requirements of Rule 4350 and the applicable

SEC rules and regulations In addition as company listed

on Oslo Brs we seek to comply with certain aspects of

Norwegian Securities law where these do not contradict

Luxembourg laws and regulations and those of the Nasdaq

Global Select Market and the SEC

Dividends

Acergys objective is to give shareholders competitive return

on their invested capital over time The return is to be achieved

through combination of an increase in the value of the share

and dividend payments

Final dividends are declared once year at the Annual General

Meeting AGM of the shareholders Interim and final dividends

on common shares can be paid out of earnings retained and

current as well as paid in surplus after satisfaction of the legal

reserve as referred to hereinafter

Luxembourg law authorises the payment of stock dividends if

sufficient surplus exists to pay for the par value of the shares

issued in connection with any stock dividend In addition

further requirements under Luxembourg law relating to the

payment of dividends are detailed in the Companys Annual

Report on Form 20-F The satisfaction of all legal requirements

must be certified by an independent auditor

The Company paid dividend of $0.21 per common share

on June 12 2008 The Board has resolved to recommend

the payment of dividend with respect to fiscal year 2008 of

$0.22 per common share subject to shareholder approval at

the AGM in May 2009 This reflects our confidence in the future

of Acergy and our sector

General Meetings

Under the Articles of Incorporation we are required to hold

general meeting of shareholders in Luxembourg each yea
on the fourth Friday in May In addition the Board may call

any number of Extraordinary General Meetings which may be

held in Luxembourg or elsewhere although any extraordinary

general meeting convened to amend the Articles of Incorporation

will be held in Luxembourg The Board is further obliged to call

general meeting of shareholders to be hold within 30 days

after receipt of written demand therefore by shareholders

representing at least one-fifth of the issued and outstanding

shares entitled to vote thereat

All holders of American Depository Receipts through Deutsche

Bank Trust Company our depository in the United States and

all shareholders that are registered in VPS the central

depository of Oslo Bars or other such depository receive

written notice of meetings may attend and vote at our general

meetings They have the right to submit proposals and may

vote either directly or by proxy

The AGM elects the Board approves the Annual Report

and Financial Statements of the Company and approves the

appointment of the external auditors Directors may be elected

for terms of up to six years and serve until their successors are

elected It has been our practice to elect directors for one-year

terms The term of all of our directors will expire on the date of

our next AGM of shareholders

Board of Directors responsibilities

The Board is responsible for and committed to the maintenance

of high standards of corporate governance The table on

page 34 provides details of the Groups assessment of

independence of its current Directors together with details

of their membership of the various Board committees and

attendance record

The quality of the Nonexecutive Directors each of whom has

suitable background and relevant experience ensures that

they are able to challenge and to help decide on the overall

strategic direction of the Group approve the financial statements

acquisitions and disposals and examine controls and review

performance to ensure the maintenance of robust governance

standards The skills and experience of the Executive and Non-

executive Directors on the Board help to ensure that the Board

operates as team

The Boards Governance and Nomination Committee

periodically reviews the composition of the Board to ensure

that the shareholders elect total number and balance of

Directors that is appropriate in view of the size and complexity

of the Groups operations with the necessary expertise

diversity and capacity to ensure that it can effectively function

as cohesive body Biographies of the individual directors are

detailed on page 29 of this Annual Report

Under the Articles of Incorporation our Board is to be

comprised of not less than three members elected by

simple majority of our outstanding shares represented at

general meeting of shareholders for period not exceeding

six years and until their successors are elected and at least

three directors have accepted It is our customary practice

that directors are elected for terms of one year at the AGM
of shareholders held each year in Luxembourg

The Board is the principal decision making forum of the

Group and exercises overall control of the Groups affairs

Board meetings are held at least four times year
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Corporate Governance continued

Governance

and

Audit Nominatron

Committee CommitteeIndependent

Mark Woolveridge Chairman 1993 Yes No Chairman No

James Hurlock Deputy Chairman 2002 Yes Yes Yes No

Jean Cahuzac 2008 No No No No

George Doromus 2004 Yes Yes No Yes

Tom Ehret 2003 Yesttt No Yes Yes

Sir Peter Mason 2006 Yes No Yes Chairman

Frithjof Skouveree 1993 Yes Yes Yes No

Trond Westlie 2004 Yes Chairman No Yes

The Board is accountable for the proper stewardship of the

Groups affairs with the Non-executive Directors having

particular responsibility for ensuring that strategies proposed

for the development of the businesses are critically reviewed

This ensures that the Board acts in the best long-term interest

of shareholders takes account of the wider community of

interests represented by employees clients and suppliers

as well as broader social environmental and ethical interests

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that any director who has

personal interest in transaction must disclose such interest

must abstain from voting on such transaction arid may not be

counted for purposes of determining whether quorum is

present at the meeting Such Directors interest in any such

transaction shall be reported at the next general meeting of

shareholders Director who owns less than 5.0% of our

capital stock or of the other party whose transaction with

us is being submitted to our Board for its approval is not

subject to the provisions of this paragraph

The Corporate Management Team comprises the Chief

Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial

Officer and the heads of all key Group functions The Corporate

Management Team meets on regular basis to ensure

appropriate control and management of day-to-day business

matters The Board delegates day-to-day and business control

matters to the Chief Executive Officer who with the Corporate

Management Team is responsible for implementing Group

policy and monitoring the performance of the business

Membership of the Board and Board sub committees together

with attendance by Directors either in person at the meeting or

via telephone conference at the meetings of the Board and its

committees during fiscal year 2008 is summarised below

Committee meetings

Board

Governance

and

Audit Nomination Compensation

committee committee Committee

2008 Meetings

Mark Woolveridge

Chairman

James Hurlock

Deputy Chairman

Jean Cahuzact

George Doremus

Tom Ehret2

Sir Peter Mason

Frithjof Skouveroe

Trond Westlie

Appointed to the Board on May 23 2008

Appointed Non-executive Director on June 30 2008

Committee membership

for the year ended November 30 2008

Year of

appointment

to the Board

Compensation

committee

tat Mr Ehret is not considered an Independent Director for the purpose of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules until July 12011 three years after his employment with the Company However

he does rneet the criteria for independence under Rule 1OA-3 ol the Exchange Act and is eligible for nomination to Board Committees under home country Luxembourg practice



Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Groups

system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness

The Groups system of internal control is designed to manage

rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Groups management using the criteria set forth by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway

Commission in internal Control Integrated Framework

believes that as of November 30 2008 the Groups internal

control over financial reporting was effective

Disclosure relating to our internal control over financial

reporting managements report on internal control over

financial reporting as well as an attestation report from our

independent registered public accounting firm will be included

in our Annual Report on Form 20-F for fiscal year 2008 which

will be filed with the SEC We intend to maintain our focus on

improving the control environment within the business and we

consider it to be key pillar contributing to an appropriate

financial strategy

The Board derives further assurances from the reports from

the audit committee which has been delegated responsibility

to review the effectiveness of the internal financial control

systems implemented by management and is assisted by

internal audit and the external auditors where appropriate

Code of Ethics

Acergy has adopted Code of Business Conduct applicable to

all Directors employees and officers which also constitutes the

Code of Ethics applicable to our Chief Executive Officer Chief

Financial Officer Controller and persons performing similar

functions in accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

and the applicable laws rules and regulations of the SEC and

the Nasdaq Global Select Market

The Companys Code of Business Conduct requires any director

or employee to declare if they hold any direct or indirect interest

in any transaction entered into by the Company Any

transactions between the Company and members of the

Board Corporate Management Team or close associates

are detailed as related party transactions in Note 38 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

copy of the Code of Business Conduct is available to

download from the Groups website www.acergyrngroup.com
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Committees

Audit Committee Terms of Reference

This Committee has minimum of three independent

Non-executive Directors and meets at least four times

per year The Committee is responsible for appointing the

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm approving

its fees monitoring internal controls throughout the Group

approving the Groups accounting policies and reviewing

the quarterly and annual financial statements full copy

of the Audit Committee Terms of Reference is available to

download from the Groups website www.acergy-groupcom

Governance and NominatIon Committee Charter

This Committee has five independent Non-executive

Directors and is responsible for defining the qualifications

for candidates for Director positions evaluating qualified

candidates recommending candidates to the Board for

election as Directors and proposing number of Directors

for election by stockholders at each AGM The Committee

considers matters of Corporate Governance and establishes

and reviews Corporate Governance guidelines full copy

of the Governance and Nomination Committee Charter is

available to download from the Groups website

www.acergy-group.com

Compensation Committee Terms of Reference

This Committee has four independent Non-executive

Directors the Committees primary role is to review and

recommend to the Board compensation strategy and

compensation awards full copy of the Compensation

Committee Terms of Reference is available to download

from the Groups website www.acergy-group.com
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Financial Review

Overview

In 2008 we achieved record total revenues of $2804 million

2007 S2680 milion from all group operations representing

an increase of 4.6% Our total Adjusted EBITDA was 19.4%
an increase from 16.7% last year This was driven by

combination of improved project performance stronger

contributions from our joint ventures and one off

pension settlement

Total profits before tax are up 35% to $468 million driven

by combination of the factors highliqhted above foreign

exchange gains artd an impairment reversal of $14 million

Total net ncome is up 128% to $307 million due to significant

reduction in the effective tax rate to 34.3%

At the balance sheet date Acergy Piper is classified as an asset

held for sale following an agreement concluded in January

2009 to sell the asset to Saipem Portugal Comercio Maritimo

S.U Lda for $78 million Acergy Piper was the sole Trunkline

asset consequently this business segment has been classilled

as discontinued operations for 2008 and 2007 has been

restated accordingly

This is our frst full reporting year under IFRS The impact
of the change to IFRS on our results has not been significant

and is consistent with the position presented in our IFRS

Transition document published on April 24 2008

Continuing operations

Overview

Continuing operations comprising our core SURF business

and also conventional and 1MB streams delivered strong

project results during 2008 Revenues for the year from

continuing operations were up 4.8% to $2522 million

2007 $2406 million Net income before income tax in

2008 increased to $492 million an improvement of $148 million

or 43% compared to $344 million in fiscal year 2007

Revenue

Our core SURF
activity contributed $1832 million or 73%

of continuing revenues 2007 $1905 million 79% with

growing presence in Africa and Brazil as well as increased

activity in Northern Europe Conventional comprised $442

million or 18% of continuing revenues 2007 $354 million

15% with almost all the
activity occurring in Africa Other

revenue streams relate to MR $164 million 2007 $81 million

and Survey work of $84 million 2007 $62 million

Operating profit

Operational performance remained strong due largely

to good on-going contract management and successful

project execution with operating profit up 31% to $461 million

2007 $352 million

Gross
profit at $648 million is up 18% on the previous year

2007 8547 million representing gross profit margin
of 25.7% compared to 22.7% in 2007 It should be noted that

1.3% of the margin improvement relates to $33 million credit

in the NEC region arising on the settlement of Norwegian
defined benefit pension scheme with the gain representing

the avoidance of future potential pension liabilities for existing

employees Vessel utilisation of major ships excluding the

Acergy Piper in the period has reduced slightly to 84%

compared to 86% in 2007 due largely to the seven month dry
dock ot the Acergy Polaris and number of other dry-docks for

other fleet ships in the second half of the year Despite this

slight tall in utilisation total chargeable major ship days have

increased by over 600 days in 2008 following fleet expansion

Administrative expenses have increased by $26 million 11.5%
to $254 million from $228 million last year Administrative costs

are 10.1% of revenue 2007 9.5% higher than our target of
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8-9% due largely to administrative costs not being allocated

to discontinued operations in fiscal year 2008 as they will

remain with the business and higher tendering and support

costs to meet business requirements We are undertaking

number of initiatives in the short and mediumterm to reduce

this cost base back within our target range

Our solid operational performance has been enhanced by

the contribution from our joint ventures in fiscal year 2008

increasing to $63 million from $32 million in 2007 The increase

has been primarily attributable to strong performances from

NKT Flexibles of $46 million 2007 $18 million due to increased

demand for flexible pipe and Seaway Heavy Lifting contributing

$30 million 2007 $9 million Although SapuraAcergy

contributed net loss of $15 million 2007 loss $10 million

the Sapura 3000 is now generating revenues and the outlook

for 2009 is more encouraging

Net income

Net income from continuing operations is up 156% to $330

million enhanced by significant reduction in the effective

tax rate to 33.0%

Combined our investment income of $18 million and our

financing costs of $31 million produce net finance cost

of $13 million 2007 loss of $8 million The small increase

in deficit is due to lower deposit rates being available on

overnight balances with our deposit investment retum down

$13 million on 2007

Other gains and losses contributed $44 million 2007 $1

million The largest element of this gain relates to foreign

exchange gains arising principally from the revaluation

of intercompany balances in subsidiary entities and the

strengthening of the U.S dollar

The reduction in the overall tax rate to 34.3% bringing the

tax rate back within our expected range is due largely to

management initiatives undertaken in the year following the

extra provisions taken in 2007 to reflect the ongoing tax audits

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted E8ITDA from continuing operations has increased

to 22.7% from 18.2% in 2007 4.5% up from last year

The increase has been driven by combination of improved

project performance stronger contributions from our joint

ventures and one off pension settlement of $33 million Total

Adjusted EBITDA including discontinued operations is 19.4%

compared to 16.7% in the previous year

Taxation

The effective total tax rate for 2008 is 34.3% compared to an

underlying effective tax rate for 2007 of 42.5% and an overall

tax rate in 2007 of 61.2% due to $49 million of provisions in

relation to prior year tax positions No further provisions have

been taken in the current year in relation to these matters

Discontinued operations

The Acergy Piper is classified as an asset held for sale at

November 30 2008 as an agreement to sell the asset was

reached before the balance sheet date The Acergy Piper

is our sole Trunkline asset hence this noncore business

segment has been classified as discontinued operations

for 2008 and 2007 has been restated accordingly The sale

of the asset to Saipem Portugal Comercio Maritimo S.U Lda

was completed on January 2009 for sales consideration

of $78 million Prior to being classified as an asset held for sale

partial impairment reversal of $14 million was booked in

2008 and credited to operating expenditure in discontinued

operations and consequently excluded from Adjusted EBITDA

Minority interest

The Group generated $307 million of net income in the year

2007 $135 million of which $6 million 2007 $7 million

is attributable to minority interests

Earnings per share and dividends

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations increased

by 171% to $1.76 per share 2007 $0.65 per share reflecting

the improvement in the underlying taxation rate strong

project performance and foreign exchange gains Total basic

earnings per share are $1.64 per share 2007 $0.68 per

share and total diluted earnings per share of $1.59 per

share 2007 $0.66 per share

Dividends per share

The Board has resolved to recommend dividend of $022

per share 2007 $0.21 per share payable in 2009 subject

to shareholder approval at the AGM

Financial strategy

There are four key elements to our financial strategy firstly

developing our capital structure and ensuring we continue to

have strong balance sheet that will support growth secondly

providing the operational base to ensure we can generate

suitable return to our shareholders thirdly ensuring our

corporate and entity structure is aligned with operational

performance and fourthly ensuring all of the above is

supported by suitably structured control environment
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Financial Review continued

We beeve our current financial results and position along

with the expected market outlook which we expect to be

challenging for the near term in our sector will nonetheless

provide our business with opportunities to grow Our focus

in 2008 was to continue to implement structured control

environment and to develop our capital structure so as

to ensure our financial strategy was fully aligned with our

business strategy Our focus in 2009 will be to expand

on this concept through the review of our corporate and

entity structure

Control environment

The Group operates within well structured control

environment The quality of this environment has been

assessed for the third year under Section 404 of United

States Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in accordance with

the rules and regulations of the U.S Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC This assessment is based on the criteria

for internal controls over financial reporting described in

the Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO

Management is of the opinion that as at November

30 2008 our internal control over financial reporting

was effective based on those criteria

We intend to maintain our focus on improving the control

environment within the business and we consider it to he

key pillar contributing to an appropriate financial strategy

Cash Flow

Movements in cash balances are summarised as follows

For the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Cash and cash equivalents

at the beginning of the year 582.7 717.5

Net cash provided by operating

activities 493.1 251.3

Net cash used in investing activities 286.7 220.8

Net cash used in financing activities 186.1 190.0

Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents 30.0 24.7

Cash and cash equivalents at the

end of the year 573.0 582.7

Our principal source of funds for 2008 has been cash

generated from operating activities of $493 million 2007 $251

million which has increased in 2008 due to combination

of stronger operating performance and better working capital

management This cash along with other inflows from the sale

of assets and the exercise of share options has been invested

ln the following way $294 million in capital expenditure $15

million in advances to our joint venture SapuraAcergy $138

million on our share buy-back programme and $38 million

in dividend payment

Unutilised facilities are sufficient for the Group to avoid

any requirement to consider new credit requirements until

well into 2010

Liquidity

At the year end Acergy had unutilised credit and guarantee

facilities of $296 million of which we estimate we will use

up to halt of this headroom in the next six months by way of

guarantees for new contracts Of the remaining facilities up to

$100 million are available for cash drawing which combined

with cash balances of $573 million and the consideration of

$78 million received from the sale of the Acergy Piper in

January 2009 ensures the Group has sufficient liquid

resources to meet the current operating requirements

Covenant compliance

Our credit facilities contain various financial covenants

including but not limited to minimum level of tangible net

worth maximum level of net debt to earnings before interest

taxes depreciation and amortisation EBITDA maximum

level of total financial debt to tangible net worth minimum

level of cash and cash equivalents and an interest cover

covenant The Group must meet the requirements of the

financial covenants on consolidated basis in quarterly

intervals on the last day of February May August and

November of each year Given the improved performance

of the business and the more favourable financial covenants

in the new credit facilities the Group consider based on our

latest forecasts for fiscal year 2009 that we will be able to

comply with all financial covenants during fiscal year 2009

Foreign exchange

Our financial results are reported is U.S dollars We have

foreign currency denominated revenues expenses assets and

liabilities in subsidiary entities As consequence movements

in exchange rates can affect our profitability
the comparability

of our results between period and the carrying values of our

assets and liabilities Our major foreign currency exposures

are to the Euro British pound sterling and Norwegian krone

The Group does not use derivative instruments to hedge the

translation value of investments in foreign subsidiaries

The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiorls are translated

into U.S dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance

sheet date and their income and expense items are translated

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year During

the year $100 million of exchange differences arose on

balance retranslations which have been recorded in equity

in the translation reserve This movement is significantly

larger than in previous years and has been driven by the

volatility of exchange rates in the final quarter of the year



Net assets

Despite record level of net income in 2008 net assets have

reduced by $18 mition in the year as this income has been

offset in reserves by the combined effect of $138 million of

share buy backs $100 million of movements in the

translation reserve and $49 million of other reserves

movements mainly relating to effective hedges of foreign

exchange cashflows The translation reserve movements

of $100 miff ion have arisen largely in the fourth quarter

and have been generated by the strengthening of

the U.S dollar

Acergy continues to maintain strong balance sheet

as is demonstrated by the high levels of cash held of $573

million the high quality fleet and related assets portfolio with

net book value of $908 million and generally profitable joint

venture investments with book value of $140 million

Backlog

Total backlog at November 30 2008 is $2625 million

down from the $3175 million recorded last year The main

reason for the decrease is $345 million of foreign exchange

movements as well as slight reduction in the level of granted

contract awards as certain awards have been deferred

to early 2009 We anticipate $1550 million of backlog

will be executed in 2009

Position and outlook

Our strong balance sheet and operating cash flows place us in

solid position to adjust and react to the unprecedented recent

uncertainty in the financial markets and be in position to take

advantage of the opportunities this situation presents Whilst

focus will continue on streamlining our administration costs we

intend to continue with planned capital expenditure to support

growth initiativeslwhen the return exceeds the required hurdle

rates for investment

Stuart Jackson

Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the fiscal year ended Iovember 30

.._.._____.._____ __._._ 2008 ______

Continuing operations

Revenue 2522.4 2406.3

Operating expenses ________________ _________ ______________________
1874.2 1.859.1

Gross profit 648.2 547.2

Administrative expenses 253.8 227.6

Not ether operating income 3.4 0.4

Share of results of associates and joint ventures 16 63.0 31.5

Net operating income from continuing operations 460.8 351.5

Investment income 17.9 30.8

Other gains and losses 44.1 0.6

Finance costs 10 30.5 39.0

Income before taxes 492.3 343.9

Taxation 11 162.6 215.1

Income from continuing operations 329.7 128.8

Net loss income from discontinued operations
_____________

12 22.5 5.7

Net income 307.2 134.5

Net income attributable to

Equity holders of parent 301.4 127.3

Minority interest 5.8 7.2

307.2 134.5

Earnings per_share ________- __________ ________________________ perhare prhe
Basic

Continuing operations 1.76 0.65

Discontinued operations 0.12 0.03

Net income 13 1.64 0.68

Diluted

Continuing operations 1.70 0.63

Discontinued operations 0.11 0.03

Net income 13 1.59 0.66

.rnp.uiyirj pI 4th .. Cn Iidt.1 rrnr.i.iu t.t
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued

As at November 30

in millions Notes 2008 2007

Equity

Issued share capital 25 389.9 389

Own shares 26 229.4 111.2
Paid in surplu 27 498.7 492.9

Equity reserves 27 110.7 110.7

Translation reserves 27 70.4 29.1

Other reserves 27 70.4 21.9
Retained earnings accumulated deficit 27 158.6 88.6

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 787.7 800.9

Minority interest 28 13.7 18.1

Total equity 801.4 819.0

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Non-current portion of borrowings 29 409.2 386.6

Retirement benefit obligation 40 21.2 49.6

lieferred tax liabilities ii 56.1 35.6

Provisions 34 8.0

Derivative financial instruments 37 57.1

Other non-current liabilities 31 3.9 33.8

555.5 507.6

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 32 651.6 701.4

Derivative financial instruments 37 62.6 12.1

Current tax liabilities 33 69.1 157.3

Current portion of borrowings 29 10.1

Provisions 34 15.2 8.8

Deferred revenue 41 305.6 217.4

1114.2 1100.2

Total liabilities
1669.7 16078

Total equity and liabilities 2471.1 2426.8

The accompanying Notes we an Integral part ot these Consolidated Financiai Statements



consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the fiscal year ended November 30

uS rI.ir 2008 200

Net cash generated from operating activities
________________

42 493.1 251.3

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 12.2 35.3

Purchase of property plant and equipment 294.3 261.0

Dividends from joint ventures 16 10.9 24.2

Payments for intangible assets 14 0.4
Investment in associates and

joint
ventures 18.9

Advances to joint ventures
____________ ______ _____________

16 15.1 0.4

Net cash used in investing activities
_________ 286.7 220.8

Cash flows from financing activities

Convertible loan interest paid 30 11.3 11.3

Proceed from borrowings net of issuance costs 29 6.3

Own share buy backs 26 138.3 146.8

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the parent 27 38.3 37.5

Exorcise of share options 39 4.2 14.3

Dividends paid to minority interests 28 8.7 8.7
Net cash used in financing activities

________________ 186.1 190.0

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 20.3 159.5

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 582.7 717.5

Effect
of_exchange

rate changes on cash and
cash_equivalents 30.0 24.7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 573.0 582.7

Th rup yn tJ.t fl int.irI ci CrkItd Inu ci t.i.qr
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Adoption of new accounting standards continued

IFRS is more closely aligned with the equivalent US GAAP standard that the Group used to follow than the prodecessor standard

lAS 14 Segment Flopoi1ing

Future accounting standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following standards and interpretations that have not been applied

in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective

ft.IapL5rr
IFRS Revised Business Combinations December 2009

lAS 27 Revised consolidated and separate financial statements December 2009

lAS 23 Revised Borrowing cos December 2009

IFRIC 14 lAS 19 The Limit on Defined Bonelit Asset Minimum Funding Requirements and their December 2008

Interaction

IFRIC 16 Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operation December 2008

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Ownjrs December 2008

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in the future periods will not have material impact

on the financial statements of the Group

Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial staterrients have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB and as adopted by the European

Union EU They comply with Article of the EU lAS Regulation The transition date for adoption of IFRS was December 2006

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of financial instruments

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities corrtrotled by the Company

its subsidiaries made up to November 30 each year Control is assumed to exist where the Company has the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

Subsidiaries

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from

the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are macto to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into

line with those used by the Group

All intragroup transactions balances income and experiss are eliminated on consolidation

Minority interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Groups equity therein Minority interests consist

of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the minoritys share of changes in equity since

the date of the combination Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minoritys interest in the subsidiarys equity are

allocated against the intcrosts of the Group except to the extent that the minority has binding obligation and is able to make

an additional investment to cover the losses

Invstmonts in associates and joint ventuws

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control and which is neither subsidiary nor

joint venture Significant influence is defined as the right
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies

joint
venture is commercial business governed by an agreement between two or more padicipants giving theni joint control

over the business
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Significant accounting policies continued

Investments in associates and
joint

ventures are accounted for using the equity method Under the equity method the investment

is carned in the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Groups share of net assets of the associate or

joint venture less any provisions for impairment The consolidated income statement reflects the Groups share of the results

of operations after tax of the associate or joint venture Losses in excess of the Group nterest are only recognised to the extent

that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture

Where there has been change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture the Group recognises its share

in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense Net incomes and losses resulting from transactions between

the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Groups interest

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods

and services provided in the normal course of business net of discounts and sales related taxes

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in accordance with the Groups accounting policy on construction contracts

see below Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when services are delivered and title has passed

Long-term contracts

Long term contracts are accounted for using the percentage-of-completion method Revenue and gross profit are recognised

each period based upon the advancement of the work-in-progress unless the stage of completion is insufficient typically when

less than 5% completion has been achieved to enable reliable estimate of gross profit to be established In such cases

revenues are recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is probable that they will be recoverabla The percentage-

of-completion method is calculated based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to total estimated costs taking into account the

level of completion The percentage-of-completion method requires us to make reliable estimates of progress toward completion

of contract revenues and contract costs Provisions for anticipated losses are made in full in the period in which they

become known

major portion of the Groups revenue is billed under fixed-price contracts However due to the nature of the services performed

variation orders and claims are commonly billed to clients in the normal course of business and are recognised as contract revenue

where recovery is probable and can be measured
reliably

During the course of multi-year projects the accounting estimates for the current period and/or future periods may change

The effect of such change is accounted for in the period of change and the cumulative income recognised to date is adjusted

to reflect the latest estimates Such revisions to estimates will not result in restating amounts in previous periods

Service revenues

Revenues received for the provision of services under charter agreements day-rate contracts reimbursable/cost-plus and similar

contracts are recognised on an accruals basis as services are provided

Dry-dock and mobilisation expenditure

Dry dock expenditure when incurred to maintain vessels classification is capitalised as distinct component of the asset

and amortised over the period until the next dry-docking is scheduled for the asset usually to years All other repair

and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred

Mobilisation expenditures which consist of expenditure incurred prior to the deployment of leased vessel are classified as

prepayments and expensed over the period of the lease charter

Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception

date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys

right
to use an asset Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases
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Significant accountmg policies continued

The Group as Lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or if lower at the present value

of the minimum lease payments each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding liability
to the Lessor is included

in the balance sheet as finance lease obligation

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement on straight line basis over

the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit Initial direct costs

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are aggregated and recognised on straight-line basis over the lease

term Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised on the same basis as the

related lease

Refurbishment expenditure and improvements to leased assets are expensed in the consolidated income statement unless they

significantly increase the value of leased asset under which circumstance this expenditure will be capitalised and subsequently

recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement on straight line basis over the lease term applicable to the

leased asset

The Group as Lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified

as operating leases

Rental income excluding charges for services such as insurance and maintenance is recognised on straight line basis over

the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit derived from the

leased asset is diminished Costs including depreciation incurred in earning the lease income are recognised as an expense

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset

and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Us Dollars which is the Groups reporting currency

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity

are measured using that functional currency which is defined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which

the entity operates This is usually the local currency but the US Dollar is designated as the functional currency of certain

entities where transactions and cash flows are predominantly in US Dollars

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

All differences are taken to net income or loss Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign

currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions Non monetary items measured

at fair value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined

Foreign exchange revaluations on short-term intercompany balances are recognised in the consolidated income statement

Revaluation on tong-term intercompany loans are recognised in the translation reserve

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

and their income and expense items are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year The exchange differences

arising on the translation are taken directly to separate component of equity On disposal of foreign entity the deferred

cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement

Borrowing costs

Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs plus accrued interest less

any repayments and subsequently stated at amortised cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets that

necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
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Significant accounting policies continued

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in net income or loss in the period in which they are incurred

Finance costs

Finance costs or charges including premiums on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are accounted for

on an accruals basis using the effective interest rate method

Retirement benefit costs

The Group administers several defined contribution pension plans Payments in respect of such sthemes are charged to expense
as they fall due

In addition the Group administers small number of defined benefit pension plans which require contributions to be made to

separately administered funds The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each

plan using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method with actuarial valuations carried out at each balance sheet date

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur in the consolidated statement of recognised

income and expenses

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised

on straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation

as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from

this calculation is limited to past service cost plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions

to the scheme

The Group is also committed to providing lump-sum bonuses to employees upon retirement in certain countries These retirement

bonuses are unfunded and are recorded in the financial statements at their actuarial valuation

Taxation

Income tax

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable net income for the year Taxable net income differs from net income as reported

in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount of current

tax payable are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Current tax relating to items recognised

directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in net income or loss

Income tax assets or liabilities are representative ofrespective taxes being owed or owing to the local tax authorities and additional

tax provisions which have been recognised in the computation of the Groups tax position Full details of these positions are set out

in Note 11 Taxation

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities

in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable net income and is accounted for

using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all temporary differences and deferred

tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable net incomes will be available against which deductible

temporary differences can be utilised Such assets or liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets or liabilities in transaction other than in business

combination that affects neither the taxable net Income nor the accounting net income

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable net income will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are substantially enacted and expected to apply in the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement except when it relates

to items charged or credited directly in equity in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity
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Signifcant accounting policies continued
Delorrod tax isseIs and liabilities are ofFset when thore is IegiIIy enforceable right to set off current tax assets agairst curron

hicorne tax liibilitios and when hoy relate to incoilie taxes levied by the same taxation authority arid the Group intends to sonic

its current income lax assets and liabilities on not lasiS

Cthor Ges
Other taxes which include value added tax arid sales tax represent the amounts receivable or payable to local tax authorities

in the countries where the Group operates and are included within net operating income

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and ecluipment are stated at cost loss accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

Such cost includes Iriajor spare parts acquired and hold for future use on ship or in plant

Assets under construction are carried at cost less any recognised impairmenl loss Cost includes external professional fees

and borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Groups accounting policy Depreciation of these assets commences

when the assets are ready for their intended use

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis over the useful life of the asset as follows

Construction Support ships 10 to 25 years

Operating equirment to 10 years

Buildings 20 to 33 years

Other assets to years

Land is not depreciated

Ships are depreciated to their estimated residual value In general residual values are not anticipated on other tangible assets

Costs for
fitting

out construction support ships are calntalised and arnortised over period equal to the remaining uselul life

of the related equipment

Residual values useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at toast annually and adjusted it appropriate

The gains or losses arising on disposal or retirement of an asset is doterminecl as the difference between any sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is included in net income or loss in the year the asset is disposed or retired

Discontinued operations

The Grout classifies an asset or disposal group as discontinUed operation when it has been either disposed of or classified

as held for sale representh single major line of business or geographical area of operation and is part of coordinated plan

for disposal In the period an asset or disposal group has boon disposed of or is classified as held for sale the results of the

operation are reported as discontinued operations in the current arid prior periods

Assets held for sale

The Group classifies assets and disposal grou ips as being field for sale when the following criteria are met niarlagomnent has

committed to plan to sell the asset disposal group the asset disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present

condition an active program to locate buyer and other actions required to complete the plan to sell the asset disposal greup
have been initiated the sale of the asset disposal group is highly probable and transfer of the asset disposal group is expected
to qualify for recognition as completed sale within one year the asset disposal group is being actively marketed for sale at

price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value and actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely

that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn

Noncurrent assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value

loss cost to sell These assets are riot depreciated once they moot the cmitoria to be held for sale

Tendering and bid costs

Costs incurred in the tendering process are expensed as incurred except those costs which are incurred once tire Gmomip

has achieved preferred hidder status whemi the project is highly probable of frOCOedinçJ arid future benefit likely

to occur Subsequent costs are accumulated until the project is awarded at whic point they are included in roject costs for

net income recognition purposes
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Significant accounting policies continued

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchae method The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate oF

the fair values at the date of exchange ot assets given liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group

in exchange for control of the acquiree plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination The acquirees identifiable

assets liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their Fair value at the acquisition

date except for non-current assets or disposal groups that are classified as held for sale which are recognised and measured at

fair value less cos to sell

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Groups share in the net

fair value of the acquirces identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities After initial recognition goodwill is measured

at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquirce is measured at the minoritys proportion cf the net fair value ct the assets

liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised

Intangible assets

Overview

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost The cost of intangible assets acquired in

business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition intangible assets are carried

at cost less any accumulated amnortisaticnm and army accumulated irripairment losses Except for capitalised development costs

internally generated intangible assets are not capitalisod and expenditure is reflected in the corisolkiated income statement

in the year in which the expenditure is incurred

lrmtançjible assets with finite lives are amnortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment at least annually or

whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired The amortisation period and the amortisation method

for an intangible asset with finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end changes in the expected useful

life or the expected pattern oF consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing

the amnortisation period or method as appropriate and are treated as changes in accounting estimates The amortisation expense

on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolktated income statement in the expense category consistent with

the function of the intangible asset

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred The Group recognises development expenditure en an individual project

as an intangible asset when we can demonstrate

the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it will he available for use or sale

the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it

the ability to use or sell the asset

how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits

the availability
of resources to complete the asset

and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an intangible asset the asset is carried at cost less any

accumulated amortisation and accumulated imnpairmvrmt losses

Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use IL is amortisect over the period

of expected future benefit During the period of development the asset is tested for impairment at least annually or when indicators

of impairment exist

Patents and tademarks

Patents and trademarks are measured initially
at purchase cost amel are amnortised on straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives



rgy riu r- St in 20L

Notes to the consohd ted Financi Sta monts coritinu

Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of non-financial assets

Overview

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any such indication

exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required the Group estimates the assets recoverable amount An assets

recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating units fair value less costs to sell and its value in use Where

an asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pretax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining

fair value less costs to sell an appropriate valuation model is used

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated income statement in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset

For assets excluding goodwill an assessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that

previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists the Group makes

an estimate of recoverable amount previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only it there has been change in the

estimates used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised If that is the case

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined net of depreciation had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated income statement

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets

Goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill acquired in business combination is from the acquisition date allocated

to each of the Groups cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually on each balance sheet date and when circumstances indicate that the carrying

value may be impaired Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units

to which the goodwill relates

Where the recoverable amount of cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount an impairment loss is recognised first

to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of that unit on pro-rata basis

Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods

Where goodwill forms part of cash-generating unit and an operation within that unit is disposed of the goodwill associated

with the operation is included in the carrying amount when determining the gains or losses on disposal of the operation

In this circumstance goodwill is allocated based on the relative value of the operation and the portion of the cash-generating

unit retained

Associates and joint ventures

The Group determines at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in an associate

or joint venture is Impaired If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between

the estimated fair value of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated

income statement

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location

and condition is accounted for using the weighted average cost basis

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
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Significant accounting policies continued

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks

and charactenstics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with

unrealised gains or losses reported in the consolidated income statement

Hedge accounting

At the inception of the hedge reJationship the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged

item along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Furthermore at the

inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis the Group documents its assessment as to whether the hedging instrument

that is used in hedging relationship is highly effective in offsethng changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item

Changes in the carrying value of financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows cash flow

hedges are recognised directly in equity and any ineffective portion of the derivative that is excluded from the hedging relationship

along with any ineffectiveness is recognised immediately in the other gains and losses line in the consolidated income

statement The difference between the spot rate and the forward rate on derivative is recognised in the other gains and

losses line in the consolidated income statement Amounts deferred in equity in respect of cash flow hedges are subsequently

recognised in the consolidated income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects net income or toss

Where non-financial asset or non-financial
liability

results from forecasted transCction or firm commitment being hedged
the amounts deferred in equity are included in the initial measurement of that non-monetary asset or liability

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated exercised or no longer qualifies

for hedge accounting Any cumulative gains or losses relating to cash flow hedges recognised in equity are retained in equity

and subsequently recognised ri the consolidated income statement in the same periods in which the previously hedged item

affects net income or loss It forecasted hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gains or losses

recognised in equity is transferred to the consolidated income statement immediately

Restricted cash balances

Restricted cash balances comprise both funds held in separate bank account which will be used to settle accrued taxation

liabilities and deposits made by us as security for certain third-party obligations Cash subject to restrictions that expire after more

than one year is classified under non-current assets There are no other significant conditions on the restricted cash balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid assets

with an original maturity of three months or less and readily convertible to known amounts of cash Bank overdrafts are

included within current borrowings

Trade receivables and other receivables

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether any indications exist that financial asset or group of financial

assets is impaired

In relation to trade receivables provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence such as the probability of

insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under

the original terms of the invoice The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced with the amount of the loss recognised in net

other operating income Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible

Loans receivable and other receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Interest

income together with gains and losses when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired are recognised
in the consolidated income statement

Convertible loan notes

The component of the convertible notes issued by the Group that exhibits characteristics of
liability is recognised as

liability

in the balance sheet net of transaction costs On issuance of the convertible notes the fair value of the
liability component is

determined using market rate for an equivalent non convertible note and this amount is classified as financial
liability measured

at amortised cost until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption
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Critical accounting udgcmcnts zind key sources Of estimation uncortanty continued

claim is an amount that may be collected as reimbursement for costs not included in the coniract price claim may arise from

client caused delays errors in specifications or design arid disputed variations in contract work The measurement of the amounts

of revenue arising from claims is subject to high level of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of negotiations

Therefore claims are recognised in contract revenue only when negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that

it is probable that the client will accept the claim and the amount that it is prohablo wilt be accepted by the client can be

measured reliably

Properly plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciation is recorded on straight-tine basis over the useful

lives of the assets Management uses its experience to estimate the remaining useful life of an asset particularly when it has

been upgraded

Impairment of investments in and advances to joint ventures and associates

Investments in joint ventures and associates are reviewed periodically to assess whether there is decline in the carrying value of the

investment The Group considers among other things whether or not we are able to recover the carrying value of the investment

provision is mado against non-colloctibility of loans and advances made to joint venlures arid associates when it is probable that

we wilt be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the agreement as impairment or bad debt losses

under lAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement

Recognition of provisions and disclosure of continqent liabilities

The Group is subject to various claims suits and complaints involving among other things clients subcontractors erriployeos

and tax authorities in tho ordinary course of business Management in consultation with internal and external advisers will recognise

provision in the Consolidated Financial Statements if information available prior to issuance of the Consolidated Financial

Statements indicates that it is probable that liability had boon incurred at the balanco sheet date and the amount of the loss

can be reasonably estimated Contingent liabilities for which possible obligation exists are disclosed but not recognised

Where the provision relates to targe population of items the use of an expected value is appropriate to arrive at best estimate

of the obligation This is the amount that takes account of all possible outcomes using probabilities to weight the outcomes

Where there is continuous range of possible outcomes and each point in that range is as likely as any other the mid-point

of the range is used

Thxation

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions and significant judgment is required in calculating the consolidated

tax provision There are many transactions for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and for which the Group makes

provisions based on an assessment of internal estimates and appropriate external advice including decisions regarding whether

to recognise deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts

that were initially recorded such differences will impact the tax charge in the period in which the outcome is determined Full details

of all judgernents and other issues considered are sot out in Note 11 Taxation

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

As described in Note 37 Financial instruments the directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique

for financial instruments not quoted on an active market Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied

For derivative financial instrumiments assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the

instrument Other financial instruments are valued using discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions suppom ted where

possible by obseivable market prices or rates Detaits of the assumptions used and of the results of sensitivity analyses regarding

these assumptions are provided in Note 37 Financial instruments



60 cjyAriuilRor dFr ii al ihmcts_O

No to the Corisohdated Fnanci Stat monts onhnued

Revenue

An analysis of the Groups revenue is as follows

For the fiscal year in mtIions 2008 2007

Continuing operations

Lump-sum contracts 2228.8 1999.7

Day rate contracts 293.6 406.6

2522.4 2406.3

Discontinued operations

Lump Sum contracts see Note 12 281 274

Total revenue 2804.2 2680.3

portion of the Groups revenue is denominated in foreign currencies and is cash flow hedged The amounts disclosed above

for revenue include the recycling of the effective amount of the foreign currency derivatives that are used to hedge foreign currency

revenue refer to Note 37 Financial instruments

Segment information

For management and reporting purposes the Group is organised into five geographical regions or divisions which are

representative of its principal activities In addition there is the corporate segment which manages activities that serve

more than one segment The corporate segment is described in more detail below

The chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer of Acergy S.A He is assisted by the Chief Operating Officer

the Vice Presidents of each geographical segment and other members of the Corporate Management Team The Vice

Presidents are responsible for managing all aspects of the projects within the geographical region from initial tender to

completion Where projects are Serviced by more than one segment the costs and associated revenues are allocated to

segments on the basis of the work actually performed by each segment

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Groups accounting policies described in Note

Significant accounting policies

Business segments are based on geographical segments or divisions and are defined below

Acergy Africa and Mediterranean AFMED
Includes all activities in Africa and Mediterranean has its office in Suresnes France and also operates fabrication yards

in Nigeria and Angola

Acer9y Northern Europe and Canada NEC
Includes all activities in Northern Europe Eastern Canada and has offices in Aberdeen United Kingdom Stavanger Norway
St Johns Canada and Moscow Russia

Acergy North America and Mexico NAMEX
Includes activities in the United States Mexico Central America and Western Canada and has its office in Houston Texas

United States

Acergy South America SAM
This segment includes all activities in South America and the islands of the southern Atlantic Ocean and has its office

in Rio de Janeiro Brazil and operations in Macae Brazil

Acergy Asia and Middle East AME
This segment includes all activities in Asia Pacific India and Middle East but excludes the Caspian Sea and has its offices

in Singapore Jakarta and Balikpapan Indonesia and Perth Australia

Acergy Corporate CORP
This segment includes all activities that serve more than one segment These include marine assets which have global mobility

including construction and flow line lay support ships ROVs and other mobile assets that are not allocated to any one segment

management of offshore personnel captive insurance activities management and corporate services provided for the benefit

of all of the Groups businesses
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Segment information continued

The Groups discontinued operations have been shown separately from the reportable geographical business segments

Additional information is shown in Note 12 Discontinued operations and Note 20 Assets clas ified as held for sale

Summarised financial information concerning each reportable geographical business segment is as follows

Year ended November 30 2008
Total

continuing Discontinued

in millions AFMED NEC NAMEX SAM AME CORP operations operations

RevenuelN 1175.9 843.1 4.4 320.1 180.8 1.9 2522.4 281.8

Operating expenses 897.1 574.5 268.9 129.0 21.9 1874.2 304.4

Share of results of associates and

joint ventures 0.3 3.5 15.4 752 63.0

Depreciation 31.4 10.0 18.9 5.0 42.5 107.8 8.0
Mobilisation costs 0.2 0.3 1.9 2.4
Amortisation expense 02 0.2
Impairment of property plant and

equipment 1.8 1.8 1.0
Reversal of impairment of property

plant and equipment 14.3

Research and development expense 6.8 6.8
Net operating income from operations 183.7 192.0 10.5 22.6 14.4 37.6 460.8 225
Investment income 1.4 4.5 2.4 9.6 17.9

Other gains and losses 34.8 11.7 7.3 5.1 0.4 8.2 44.1 1.1
Finance costs 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.6 29.7 30 1.0
Net income loss before tax 219.3 185.1 17.9 27.1 17 25.7 492.3 24.6

Total assets 707.6 304.3 22.1 206.9 102.2 1128.0 2471.1

Non-current assets 339.3 95.6 0.2 123.8 52.4 484.3 1095.6

Interest in associates and
joint

ventures 4.3 2.6 133.3 140.2

Capital expenditure 17.5 229.3 0.2 204 0.3 25.2 292.9 -1.4

Revenue represents only external revenues earned by each segment An analysis of inter-segment revenues has not been included as this information is not regularly provided

to the chief operating decision maker

bTwo clients in the twelve months period ended November 30 2008 accounted for more than 10% ci the Groups revenue from continuing operations
The revenue from these

clients was $1009.5 million and wax attributable to AFMED and NEC
Noncurrent assets consist of property plant and equipment interest in associates and joint ventures advances and receivables and clenvetive tinancial instruments

Capital expenditure is actual cash outflow expenditure incurred

See Note 12 Discontinued oporations for further information

The amoant includes inter-regional expenditure sharing arrangements
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Year ended November 302007
Tatal

continuine Oisnt8nued

lrmilliotts AFMEO NEC NAMEX SAM AME COfIP operations pcatJdns1

Rqvrtu 1398.4 696.6 3.2 202.0 102.4 3.7 24063 74
OeiuØxpensos 1069.8 502 32 889 101.1 131 185911 26an
Share of

re5tiIta
of associates and joint

Ventures 2.8 12.3 10.3 267

Dpkeciation 33 0.9 9.6 27 ii 83 7.8

cbss 0.2 18 0.4 0.2 2.6
Arnortisaliort

expense 0.3 0.3
lmpairrnentof property plant and

equipment 01 0.2 0$
Resbarch and devekpment epenSe 4.2 4.2
Net operating inconle from operatIons 229.2 12t5 5.2 1.3 28.7 360 35-L5 1.3

lnvestnint income 1.5 5.4 0.1 1.3 22.5 308
Other ns and JosdS 20.2 187 0.2 1.0 11 10.6 0.8

Finance cbts 10.4 0.1 28.5 39.0
Net income los before tax 200.1 145.5 5.3 0.3 15.5 19.4 343.9 2.8

Total assets 744.3 291 271 216.3 99.5 1048.6 2426.8

Non-currentassets 56.8 11.3 0.3 125.1 49.3 410.6 960.4

Interest in aSsociateS and
joint

ventures 6.4 2.5 97.5 106.4

Capital expehditure 47.8 73 44.5 19.2 142 260.8 0.2

Rpvenueivp yerilti only external revenues tiarned by each se5meet An analysis of ister-segrnenttevetues has not been incilided as thIs tnfbtmation Is sot readyprov1ded
tolhe c8ef operting lecIston casket

bTviG clients jt tbtitiNeIve months penod ended November 5O SOoaacciounted toy snore thaniO.O the Groups tesenuti born continuing operations The revenue from these
ctiehtsas $li58..bmillion and was attributable to AFMEb rtEC ad AME

ci Non5bett e$etycorrsist of properis plant aYrd tquipnnert iifletest tin associates tind dint trentures advances and receivables and derivative financial tnstt-Umtits

dClaiexpenditrsrels actual cash oulllow exptrnditure incursed

eSee lotei2 Discontinued operatlonsibr1xtfrerinfortnatron
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Net operating income

Net operating income from continuing and discontinued operations has been arrived at after charging crediting

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

For the fiscal year inS millions
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Research and development costs as expense 6.8 42 6.8 4.2

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 107.8 83.2 8.0 7.8 115.8 91.0

Mobilisätion costs 2.4 2.6 2.4 2.6

Amortisation expense
0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3

Impairment of property plant and equipment 03 03

Rever al of impairment of property plant and equipment 14.3 14.3

Operating lease costs recognised as expense 130.9 95.9 130.9 95.9

Cost of inventories recognised as expense 60.6 45.0 60.6 45.0

Write down of inventory recognised as expense 3.3 3.3 0.3

Employee benefits 799.6 749.5 799.6 749.5

Pension settlement 33.3 33.3

Investment income

For the llscai year in millions 2008 2007

Interest income

Bank deposits 17.9 30.8

Total 17.9 30.8

Investment income represents interest received on positive cash balances invested at variable interest rates

Other gains and losses
Fo the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Gains on disposal of property plant and equipment 5.4 13.6

Net foreign currency exchange gains losses 39.0 11.6

Reclassification of foreign currency adjustments upon liquidation of entities 0.3 1.4

Total 44.1 0.6

Ineffective hedges are disclosed within the net foreign currency exchange gains losses

10 Finance Costs
For the liscal year in millions 2008 2007

Interest on borrowings 4.2 2.0

Interest on convertible loan notes 28.4 27.1

Unwinding of discount on provisions see Note 34 0.2

Total borrowing costs 32.8 29.1

Less amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 3.0 0.8

29.8 283

Interest on lax liabilities 0.7 10

Total 30.5 390

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated

by applying capitalisation rate of 7.35% 2007 7.35% to expenditure on such assets
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11 Taxation

Tax on net income for the year

________ ___________- --...- 2008

Tax charged in the income statement

Current tax

Corporation tax 109.7 164.5

Adjustments for prior years 3.0 59.0

Total current tax 112.7 223.5

Deferred tax due to origination and reversal of temporary differences 47.8 111 .3

Total 160.5 212.2

Attributable to

Contirri iinq oparations 162.6 215.1

DiscontiriLiud operations 2.1 2.9
Total 160.5 212.2

Tax recognised in equity

2008

Tax relating to items charged credited to equity

Current tax

Share based_payments
_________ _______________ __________ _________________ _________

2.4 5.9

Income tax recognised directly in equity 2.4 5.9
Deferred tax

Ilet loss on rovalualion of cash flow hedges 8.5 O.81

Share based payments 4.1 .8

Actuarial losses /gains on defined benefit pension schemes 1.1 2.5

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity 5.5 3.5

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

Acergy S.A is 1929 Luxembourg Holding Company Luxembourg tax law provides for special tax regime for 1929 Holding
Companies and consequently Acergy S.A is not subject to tax in Luxembourg Incoirie taxes have been provided based on the

tax laws and rates in the countries where business operations have been established and earn income The Groups tax charge
is determined by applying the statutory tax rate to the net income earned in the jurisdictions in which we operate taking account
of permanent differences between book and tax net incomes

The Groups tax charge has been reconciled to an effective tax rate for the fiscal year 2008 of 28% 2007 30% being the expected
blended statutory rate taking into consideration the jurisdictions in which the Group operates

innI _q8
Accounting income before tax on continuing operations 492.3 343.9

Tax at the effective tax rate of 28% 2007 30% 137.8 103.2

Effects of

Benefit of Tonnage tax regime see below 7.5 0.51
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating

in other jurisIictions tax rate differences 11.6 4.1

Share based payments 5.3 0.8
Adjustments related to prior years 3.0 59.0

Movement iii rice-provided deferred tax 4.1 35.4
Net incomes riot subject to tax 4.3 21 .3

rax olfoct cif sham of results of associates and joint ventures 4.1 0.5

Withholding taxes 16.2 29.1

Expenses not deductible br tax purposes 0.3 10.7

Other parnianent differences 0.2 4.3
Tax charge in the income statement

-._______
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11 Taxation continued

Deferred tax

Analysis of the movements in net deferred tax balance during the year

For the fiscal year in millions
2008 2007

At December 24.3 16.3

Charged to income statement 47.8 11

Charged directly to equity 5.5 3.5

Foreign exchange movements 1.7 0.2

At November30 16.3 24.3

Deferred tax assets and liabilities in respect of continuing operations before offset of balances within countries are as follows

Year ended November 30 2008

Net Amount

recognised credited
Gross Gross Less deferred tax charged in

deferred tax deferred tax amounts not asset income

in millions asset iiabiiity recognised liability statement

Property plant and equipment 1.1 13.0 11.9 5.4

Accrued expenses 91.0 36.3 46.7 8.0 49.9
Share based payments 0.5 0.5 3.4
Convertible loan notes 17.7 17.7
Tax losses ____________________________

47.5 42.7 4.8 0.1

Total 140.1 67.0 89.4 16.3 47.8

Year ended November 30 2007

Net Amount

recognised credited

Gross Gross Less deterred tax charged is

deterred lax deterred ian amounts not asset income

rn millions asset liability recognised liability statement

Property plant and equipment 17.3 17.3 7.2
Accrued expenses 71.6 24.9 46.7 166
Share based payments 7.9 7.9 0.8

Convertible loan notes 17.7 17.7
Tax losses 85.9 81.2 4.7 11

Total 1654 350 106.1 24.3 113

Deferred tax is analysed in balance sheet after offset of balances within countries as

For the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Deferred tax assets 39.8 59.9

Deferred tax liabilities 56.1 35.6
Total 16.3 24.3

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of $194.6 million 2007- $257.4 million available for offset against

future net incomes deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of $13.9 million 2007 $3.6million of such losses No

deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining $180.7 million 2007 $253.8 million due to the unpredictability

of future net income streams

Net operating losses NOLs including Internal Revenue Code IRC s.1 63js in the US

NOLs to carry forward in various countries will expire as follows

For the fiscal year in millions 2007

Within five years 0.1 56.1

6toloyears

lltol5years

l6to2oyears 82.7 160.1

Without time limit ______________________________ 111.8 412

Total 194.6 257.4
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11 Taxation continued

The majority of NOLs are concentrated in the US where our ability to carry forward NOLs is subject to limitation as consequence

of Stolt Nielsen S.A SNSA having sold its remaining stock in the Company in 2005 As at November30 2008 it is considered

likely
that subject to future profitability the Group wilt be able to access NOLs arising both before and after the date of the change

of control of $808 million 2007 $101.4 million In addition to NOLS the Group has IRC s.1 63 suspended interest deduction

$563 million 2007 $576 million However with history of incurring losses for tax purposes in the US none of the NOLs and

IRC s.1631 suspended interest deductions in the US has been recognised as deferred tax asset

Tonnage tax regime

Our tax charge reflects net benefit in fiscal year 2008 of $75 million 2007 $05 million as result of being taxable under

the current United Kingdom UK Tonnage Tax Regime as compared to the UK tax that would be payable had an election

to join the tonnage tax regime not been made

Under the current UK tonnage tax legislation proportion of tax depreciation previously claimed by us may be subject to tax in the

event that significant number of ships are sold and not replaced This contingent liability
decreases to nil over the first seven years

following entry into the Tonnage Tax Regime Management has made no provision for the contingent liability as determined by lAS

37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets relating to ships because it is not probable that it wilt sell ships under

circumstances that cause charge to income taxes to arise The unrecorded contingent liability in respect of these ships as at

November 30 2008 was $nil 2007 $5.1 million because the Group has been within the Tonnage Tax Regime for seven years

Tax contingencies and provisions

Our operations are carried out in several countries through subsidiaries and branches of subsidiaries and are subject to the

jurisdiction
of significant number of taxing authorities Furthermore the offshore mobile nature of our operations means that

we routinely have to deal with complex transfer pricing permanent establishment and other similar international tax issues as

well as competing tax systems where tax treaties may not exist

In the ordinary course of events our operations will be subject to audit enquiry and possible re-assessment by different tax

authorities In accordance with lAS 37 management provides taxes for the amounts that it considers probable of being payable as

result of these audits and for which reasonable estimate may be made Management also separately considers if taxes payable
in relation to filings not yet subject to audit may be higher than the amounts stated in the filed tax return and makes additional

provisions for probable risks if appropriate As forecasting the ultimate outcome includes some uncertainty the risk exists that

adjustments will be recognised to our tax provisions in later years as and when these and other matters are finalised with the

appropriate tax administrations

In the year to November 30 2008 net tax charge of $4.1 million 2007 charge of $59.8 million excluding interest which

has been charged to finance costs in the consolidated income statement was accrued in respect of ongoing tax audits

Whilst the Group has made the incremental provision noted in the preceding paragraph reflecting our view of the most likely

outcomes it is possible that the ultimate resolution of these matters could result in tax charges that are materially higher or

lower than the amount the company has provided

In 2008 operations in various countries were subject to enquiries audits and disputes including but not limited to those in France

UK Nigeria and Congo These audits are all at various stages of completion The incremental adjustment arising from these tax

audits was an additional provision of $4 million 2007 $368 milliort excluding interest in respect of the UK tax audit tonnage
tax The audit in France which commenced in February 2007 has continued into 2008 and 2009 The tax audit in France involves

several legal entities and initially covered the years from 2004 to 2006 However the audit scope has effectively been extended

back to 2000 by way of challenge to the utilisation of losses brought forward and forward through an extension to 2007 for

certain French companies In addition the French tax authorities have adopted very wide ranging approach and have raised

number of challenges including both international tax issues such as transfer pricing and territoriality as well as more routine

domestic French matters Our operations in these territories have co-operated fully
with the relevant tax authorities whilst seeking

to robustly defend their tax positions

In addition to the tax audit noted above in October 2007 the French tax authorities also conducted formal search of our French

subsidiarys offices in Suresnes France The documents authorising the search claim that Acergy had inaccurately reported to

the French tax authorities the extent of Acergys activities and revenues in France in an effort to minimise French taxes During

2008 the French tax audit noted above was extended to various subsidiaries incorporated outside France This audit has continued

into 2009 The Group will defend its tax positions and has appealed against the original authorisation to search to the French

Supreme Court
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11 Taxation continued

In the UK during 2007 an enquiry was started with respect to the Groups UK ship owning companies and the amounts of net

incomes allocated to transport activities and therefore
eligible for tonnage tax treatment Under the Tonnage Tax Regime the

commercial net income of our UK ship owning companies arising from transport operations allocated on Just and reasonable

basis are subject to tax calculated by reference to formula linked to the tonnage of the vessels concerned The enquiry covers

years 2003 to 2006 As noted above tax provision of $4.1 million is held against this risk

The cumulative benefit for all years to November 30 2008 as disclosed in our previous annual report arising from being within

the Tonnage Tax Regime since 2002 is $15.0 million 2007 $11 million excluding the total release of the deferred tax liability

on ships which was no longer required when the ships entered Tonnage Tax of $36.0 million 2007 $36.0 million in the years

ended November 30 2001 and 2002

On January 23 2008 the UK Government signalled its intention to change the tonnage tax legislation prospectively with effect

from April 2008 following discussions with the European Commission on the interpretation of the guidelines on State Aid

On March 2008 these draft proposals were withdrawn

12 Discontinued operations

On November 27 2008 the Group entered into an agreement with Salpem Portugal Comercio Maritimo S.U Lda to dispose of

the Acergy Piper semi-submersible pipelay barge for $78 million The disposal was driven by desire to continue to focus the

Groups energy on the core operations of deepwater Subsea construction Umbilicals Risers and Flowlines SURF The disposal

was completed on January 2009

The Acergy Piper was the Groups sole operating unit in the Trunklines market which involves the offshore market installation of

large-diameter pipelines used to carry oil and gas over large distances The disposal of the barge therefore represents the Groups
discontinuance of this operation

As at November 30 2008 the Acergy Piper has been classified as an Asset classified as held for sale refer to Note 20 However

because the ofter price indicated that the market value less cost to sell of the asset was higher than the value on the books

the impairment recorded in fiscal year 2003 needed to be
partially reversed to adjust the carrying value to market value less costs

to sell as confirmed by the agreed sale price

Discontinued operations in fiscal year 2007 also includes to the final completion of the remaining Inspection Maintenance and

Repair IMR and conventional project work in Trinidad and Tobago part of the North America and Mexico region which had

commenced prior to the disposal of nine IMR and conventional ships to Cal Dive International Inc during 2005 and 2006

The results of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows

2008 2007 2007 2007

NAMEX

Total MR arid

For ihe fiscal year in mi lions 1runkiines Txunktines convenfionat Total

Revenue 281.8 2571 169 274.0

Expenses 320.7 260.2 11 271

Impairment reversal 14.3

Loss income before tax 24.6 3.1 5.9 2.8

Taxation gains on discontinued operations 21 2.9 2.9

Loss income from discontinued operations 22.5 0.2 5.9 5.7

Includes operating expenses administrative expenses finance costs and other
gains nd losses
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Al December 1.2006 639.4 445.7 41.8 27.8 1154.7

Additions 29.3 189.2 2.4 14.9 235.8

Exchange dillorencos 2.3 11.9 1.3 2.1 17.6

Disposals 30.1 11.6 1.6 0.4 43.7

Reclassified as held for sale -- 1.6 1.6

Transfers 1.8 1.6 0.4 2.9

At November 30 2007 642.7 636.8 36.4 44.0 1359.9

Additions 180.1 123.4 6.6 16.5 326.6

Exchange differences 12.7 53.1 4.6 9.3 79.7

Disposals 15.3 11.7 1.6 33.0

lieclassifiecl as held for sale 131.0 131.0

Transfers 9.5 3.9 0.5

At November 30 2008 665.2 695.7 26.2 49.6 1436.7

Accumulated depreciation

At December 1.2006 285.3 168.2 12.7 15.3 481.5

Charge for the year 43.4 38.5 2.0 7.1 91.0

Exchange ddurencus 1.1 6.9 0.5 1.2 9.7

Impairment 0.3 0.3

Eliminated on disposals 26.0 10.5 1.2 0.3 38.0

Reclassified as held for sale 0.5 0.5

Transfers 0.1 1.6 1.7

At November 30 2007 303.9 205.0 13.5 23.3 545.7

Charge for the year 34.1 69.9 2.1 9.7 115.8

Exchange differences 2.3 28.6 1.7 5.6 38.2

Impairment 2.8 2.8

Reversal of impairment 143 14.3

Eliminated on disposals 4.2 14.5 5.9 1.5 26.1

Reclassified as held for sale 56.6 -- 56.6

Transfers 5.8 6.1 0.3

At November 30 2008 266.4 228.5 8.0 26.2 529.1

carrying amount

At November 30 2007 338.8 431.8 22.9 20.7 814.2

At November 30 2008 398.8 467.2 18.2 23.4 907.6

In fiscal year 2008 imnpairmont chargus were recorded from operations in respect of property plant and equipment assets of

$2.8 million and an impairment reversal of $14.3 million as follows

Under-utilised operating equipment $1.8 million Deep Modular Advanced Tie-In System was identified to be under-utilised

with no anticipated utilisation for 2009 onwards In the fourth quarter of 2008 an impairment charge of $1 .8 million was recorded

to reduce the net book value of the asset to Snil
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15 Property plant and equipment continued

Operating equipment $1.0 million the equipment represents four generators and generating sets which were purchased for

the Acergy Piper Following the classification of the Acergy Piper as an asset held for sale in the fourth quarter of 2008 it was

anticipated the generators would be underutilised in the future Therefore an impairment charge of $1 million was recorded

to reduce the net book value to $2 million the estimated current market value

Prior to the classification of the Acergy Piper as an asset held for sale refer to Note 20 Assets classified as held for ale
an impairment of $14.3 million as recorded in 2003 was reversed This has been included within Note 12 Discontinued operations

In fiscal year 2007 impairment charges were reco ed from operations in respect of property plant and equipment assets of

$0.3 million as follows

Bucksburn land and buildings$0 million An impairment charge was ecorded in the second quarte of fiscal year 2007

of $0.2 million to reduce the net book value to $8.3 million which is the expected proceeds from the disposal of these assets

following the decision to relocate the offices in Aberdeen Scotland

Under utilised mobile equipment $0.1 million 120 tonne tensioner was identified to be under-utilised and with no anticipated

utilisation for fiscal year 2008 The hydraulic power unit of the tensioner was also damaged beyond repair As result of the

under-utilisation and the costs to repair the power unit an impairment charge of $0.1 million was recorded in the fourth quarter

to reduce the net book value of the asset to $nil

The carrying amount includes $156.6 million 2007 $76.3 million in respect of assets in the course of construction

At November 30 2008 the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property plant and

equipment amounting to $1300 million 2007 $1100 million Refer to Note 35 Commitments and contingent liabilities

16 Interest in associates and joint ventures

Investment in associates and joint ventures

For ihe fiscal year in millions Country Acergy Business Segm at Ownership 2008 2007

Mar Profundo Girassol MPG Angola AFMED Joint Venture 50

DaliaFPSOt Angola AFMED Associate 17.5 4.3 64

Global Oceon Engineers Nigeria Limited

Oceon Nigeria AFMED Associate 40

Acergy/Subsea Norway NEC Joint Venture 50 2.6 2.5

Acergy Havila Umited Acergy Havila Cyprus NEC Joint Venture 50

SapuraAcergy Malaysia AME Joint Venture 50

Seaway Heavy LIfting SHL Cyprus CORP Joint Venture 50 64.6 53.5

NKT Flexibles I/S NKT Flexibles Denmark CORP Joint Venture 49 687 440

Total 140.2 106.4

Acergy owns 17.5 and has signiiicani influence in Dalia FPSO Acergy has veto on decision-making as decisions require unanimous agreement

The movement in the balance of equity investments including long-term advances during the fiscal years 2008 and 2007

were as follows

For the tiscai year InS millionS 2008 2007

At December 106.4 76.9

Share in net income from associates and joint ventures 63.0 31.5

Dividends distributed to the Group 109 40.6

Increase in investment 34.5

Gain on sale of assets

Reclassification of negative equity balance as liabilities 19.8 1.5

Change in fair value of derivative instruments 23.7 0.2

Impact of currency translation 14.4 3.1

At November30 140.2 1064
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16 Interest in associates and jomt ventures continued

Share in net income of associates and joint ventures

For the fiscal year inS millions 2008 2007

MPG 0.1

Dalia FPSO 0.6 3.4

Oceon 0.9 0.5

Acergy/Subsea 3.5 12.3

Acergy Havila

SapuraAcergy 15.4 10.3

SHL 29.6 8.8

NKT Flexibles 45.6 17.9

Total 63.0 31.5

includes the result of Acergy/Subsea of $3.5 million for 2008 2007 $2.9 million 117 By-Pass project of $nit for 2008 2007 $76 million and Consortium agreement of $nil for 2008

2007 $1 million

Taxation in respect of the NKT Flesibles joint venture which has legal status of pwfnership has been included in the resutts of the relevant subsidiary which holds the investment

in the joint venture

Dividend distributed to the Group

In fiscal year 2008 we received total of $10.9 million dividends from four joint ventures two with Acergy/Subsea

one from NKI Flexibles and one from Dalia FPSO

In fiscal year 2007 we received total of $40.6 million dividends from seven joint ventures three with Acergy/Subsea

and one from each of the following NKT Flexibles MPG Kingfisher D.A and SHL $15.million of the SHL dividend was used

to increase the Groups investment in this venture and $0.8 million of the MPG dividend was offset against receivable balance

Increase in investment

In the fiscal year 2008 there was no additional investment in our joint ventures except for $15.1 million cash advance

to SapuraAcergy The Group has additional commitments to the SHL joint venture as described in Note 35 Commitments

and contingent liabilities

In the fiscal year 2007 the Group and our joint venture partner KS Baltic Offshore Cyprus Limited increased the investment

in SHL to contribute to the construction of the new heavy lift barge Oeg Strashnov The Groups contribution was $34.4 million

which was satisfied by cash contribution of $188 million and $156 million in lieu of dividend due from SHL $01 million was

also invested in new joint venture Oceon with our joint venture partner Petrolog Engineering Services Ltd in Nigeria

Significant restrictions

No dividend is payable by SHL until the delivery of the new ship Oleg Strashnov expected in March 2009 During this period any
dividend that is payable is directly to be reinvested in the joint venture

SapuraAcergy is regulated by the central bank of Malaysia on repatriation of funds Dividends are not subject to withholding taxes

Capital commitments

SHL has entered into ship building contract for the heavy lift vessel to be named Oeg Strashnov amounting to 2860 million

$363.0 million

As at November 30 2008 instalments representing 50% of the contract value were paid

The investment is financed by Revolving Credit and Guarantee
Facility of $30.0 million and 6140 million $178.0 million

plus $180 million Buyer Credit Facility This is non recourse financing agreement

Reclassification of negative equity balance

The Group accrues losses in excess of the investment value when we are committed to provide ongoing financial support

to the joint venture

In fiscal year 2008 $19.8 million reclassification was recorded against long term funding $19.0 million for SapuraAcergy

and $0.8 million for Oceon
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16 Interest in associates and joint ventures continued
The Groups share of any net liabilities of joint ventures is classified as trade payables or other liabilities Accordingly $1 million

reclassification was recorded in fiscal year 2007 in respect of our share of liabilities $1 million for SapuraAcergy $0.4 million

for Oceon and $0 million for MPG

Impact of currency translation

This relates to the translation of investments in the equity of joint ventures which have functional currency other than the

US dollar and relates mainly to NKT Flexibles

Summarised financial information

Summarised financial information for associates and
joint ventures representing 00h of the respective amounts included

in their financial statements is as follows

Aggregated financial data for associates and joint ventures

For the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Revenue 757.7 537.9

Operating expenses 524.5 350.6

Gross profit ____________________________________________
233.2 187.3

Other income 64.8

Other expenses 139.3 109.5

Net income 158.7 86.9

Aggregated balance sheet data for associates and joint ventures

For the liscW year tin milliOns 2008 2007

Current assets 516.3 430.1

Non-current assets 593.1 399

Total assets 1109.4 829.8

Current liabilities 341.4 2960

Non current liabilities 442.3 288.8

Total liabilities 783.7 584.8

Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Certain contractual services are conducted with
joint ventures for commercial reasons

In fiscal year 2008 the income statement data for the
joint ventures presented above includes expenses related to transactions

for charter hire of $21.3 million 2007 $14.6 million and other expenses including general and administrative charges

$47.4 million 2007 $48.9 million

Joint ventures received in fiscal year 2008 $28.2 million 2007 $51.6 million in respect of goods and services provided

As at November 30 2008 the balance sheet data includes amounts payable to joint
ventures of $8.8 million 2007 $nil and current

amounts receivable of $22.8 million 2007 $17.5 million refer to Note 19 Trade and other receivables and non-current amounts

receivable of $16.6 million 2007 $21.3 million refer to Note 17 Advances and receivables

17 Advances and receivables

For the racer
year tin millions 2008 2007

Non-current amounts due from associates and joint ventures see Note 16 16.6 21.3

Capitalised fees for long-term loan facilities 4.0 4.6

Deposits held by third parties 0.5 0.5

Prepaid expenses 8.3 13.2

Total 29.4 39.6

The fee for the loan facilities refer to Note 29 Borrowings is deferred and is expensed over the periods for which each loan

facility
is held

Prepaid expenses are incurred in the normal course of business and represent expenditure which will be recognised in period

exceeding twelve months
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18 Inventories

For the fiscOl veer In millions 2008 2007

Materials and spares 25.4 20.0

Consumables 13.1 9.2

Total 38.5 29.2

Total amount of inventory charged to income statement 60.6 45.0

Write-down on inventory charged to income statement 3.3 0.3

The nventories include reserve as at November 30 2008 of $3.5 million 2007 $2.2 million During the fiscal year 2008

$2.0 million 2007 $0.9 million of the inventory reserve was reversed due to slow moving items which were subsequently

consumed during the fiscal year

There are no inventories pledged as security for liabilities

19 Trade and other receivables
For the fiscal year millions 2008 2007

Trade receivables 298.7 420.6

Allowance for doubtful debts 1.1 2.2

Net trade receivables 297.6 418.4

Current amounts due from associates and joint ventures see Note 16 22.8 17.5

Tax receivables 1.1

Other taxes receivable 14.2 32.8

Other receivables 19.9 15.3

Total 354.5 485.1

The carrying amount of net trade receivables approximates the fair value The majority of the Groups trade account receivables

are companies in the oil and gas exploration and production sector Ongoing credit evaluations are conducted on clients financial

condition and the credit extended is limited as deemed necessary without the necessity for collateral Due to the nature of the

Groups client base interest is not charged The average credit period taken dudng 2008 was 39 days 2007 57 days which

is indicative of improved cash collection performance

Details of how the Group manages its credit risk and further analysis of the trade receivables balance can be found in Note 37

Financial instruments

Trade receivables includes in respect of the largest client as at November 30 2008 $64.2 million 2007 $153.9 million

and in respect of the second largest client $52.5 million 2007 $136.2 million

Tax receivables and other taxes receivable are for amounts refundable from the tax authorities in the various countries

of operations during the next fiscal period

Other receivables consist of advances to suppliers and amounts receivable under insurance claims

20 Assets classified as held for safe

Assets held for sale as at November 30 2008 were as follows

Acergy Piper semi-submersible pipelay barge in NEC The asset is the sole operating unit in the non-core trunkline market

and was sold January 2009 for gross proceeds of $78 million The sale of this asset forms part of discontinued operations

as discussed in Note 12 Discontinued operations which includes the impairment reversal details as well

Balikpapan land buildings and office equipment in AME The assets are expected to be sold during the fiscal year 2009 as part

of the decision to dispose of some Indonesian assets involved with shallow water and diving activities
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20 Assets classified as held for sale continued

As at November 30 2008 our disposal groups held for sale comprised assets of $75.5 million 2007 $1 million

which are detailed as follows

For the tlscat year In mithons 2008 2007

Property plant and equipment 75.5 1.1

Total assets held for sale 75.5 11

The total liabilities associated with the assets classified as held for sale is $nil 2007- $nil

The allocation of assets held for sale by segment is as follows

2008 2008 2007 2007

For the fiScal year in millions Assets Liabilitiea Assets Liabitities

AME 1.1 1.1

NEC 74.4

Total assets held for sale 75.5 1.1

21 Other accrued income and prepaid expenses
For the tiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Construction contracts see Note 22 156.6 2480

Unbilled revenue 60.6 14.3

Prepaid expenses 16.3 11.1

Total 233.5 273.4

Unbilled revenue relates to completed work which has not yet been billed to customers

Prepaid expenses are incurred in the normal course of business and represents expenditure which has been deferred and will

be recognised within the next fiscal year

22 Construction contracts

For the tisca year In mitlions 2008 2007

Contracts in progress at balance sheet date

Amounts due from contract chents included in other accrued income and prepaid expenses
see Note 21 156.6 2480

Deferred revenue recognised under construction contracts see Note 41 245.8 1858
Total 892 622

Contract costs incurred plus recognised net incomes less recognised losses to date 3516.8 4051.2

Less progress billings 3606.0 3989.0

Total 89.2 62.2

As at November 30 2008 $nrl 2007 $26million of revenue relating to unsettled claims was included in lieported revenue

or receivables that has not been subsequently collected in full

As at November 30 2008 retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to $54.2 million 2007 $54.7 million Advances

received from customers for contract work amounted to $59.8 million 2007 $31.6 million refer to Note 41 Deferred revenue

As at November30 2008 $nii 2007- $nil included in trade and other receivables and arising from construction contracts

are due for settlement after more than twelve months

As at November 30 2008 total of $22.6 million 2007 $19.8 million was recorded for losses expected at completion
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23 Restricted cash balances

For the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Restricted cash balances 11.0 8.9

Restricted cash balances comprise both funds held in separate bank account which will be used to settle accrued taxation

liabilities and deposits made by us as security for certain third-party obligations There are no other significant conditions on the

restricted cash balances

24 Cash and cash equivalents
For the fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

Cash at bank and in hand 573.0 582

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks cash in hand and short-term highly liquid deposits with an original maturity

of three months or less and readily convertible to known amounts of cash Additional information on credit risk management and

interest rate risk management is included in Note 37 Financial instruments

25 Issued share capital

Authorised shares

2008 2008 2007 2007

For the fiscal year Number of shares in millions Number of shares
is millions

Authorised common shares $2.00 par value 230000000 460.0 230000000 460.0

Issued shares

2008 Number 2008 2007 Number 2007

For the fiscal year of shares in millions of shares in millions

Fully paid and issued common shares 194953972 389 194953972 389.9

The issued common shares consist of

Common shares excluding own shares see below 182816093 365.6 188018444 3760

Own shares see Note 28 12137879 24.3 6935528 13.9

Total 194953972 389.9 194953972 389.9

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income

The common shares excluding own shares outstanding are as follows

2008 2001

Number Number
For the fiscal year of shares of shares

Balance at December 188018444 192 713204
Own shares bought see Note 26 6374100 8098625
Own shares reissued see Note 26 1171749 2957018

New shares issued 446847

Balance at November30 182816093 188018444

26 Own shares

On September 11 2006 the commencement of share buyback program was announced which allowed for the purchase of

up to maximum of 10% of our issued share capital pursuant to the standing authorisation granted to the Board at the Annual

General Meeting held on May 15 2006

The share buyback program was completed during fiscal year 2008 total of 15.4 million shares for total consideration

of $301.6 million were repurchased These wore open market repurchases on the Oslo Stock Exchange
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26 Own shares continued
The own shares reserve represents the purchase of the Companys own common shares at the market price on the date
of purchase arid the movements are shown in the table below

2008 2008 2007 2007

For the fiscal year Number of Shares in millions Number of shares iii millions

Balance at December 6935528 111.2 1793921 17.5

Number of shares acquired in the period 6374100 138.3 8098625 146.8

Number of shares reissued 1171749 20.1 2957 018 53
Balance at November30 12137879 229.4 6935 528 111.2

Consisting of

Common shares held as treasury shares 11258758 056407
Common shares held by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary 879121 879 121

Total 12137879 6935528

Of the balance of 12137879 common shares 2007 6935 528 common shares held at November 30 2008 included 879121
common shares 2007 879121 common shares held

indirectly by wholly-owned subsidiary of Acergy S.A

Luxembourg law requires that 5% of our unconsolidated net income each year is allocated to legal reserve before declaration

of dividends This requirement continues until the reserve is 10% of our stated capital as represented by common shares after

which no further allocations are required until further issuance of shares The legal reserve may also be satisfied by allocation of

the required amount at the issuance of shares or by transfer from paid-in surplus The legal reserve is not distributable The legal

reserve for all outstanding common shares has been satisfied and appropriate allocations are made to the legal reserve account

at the time of each issuance of new shares

27 Movements in reserves

Retained earnings

Paid in Equity Translation Other accumulated
For the tiscat year tins millions surplus reserves reserves reserves deficit

December 12006 480.0 110.7 28.1 137.1
Share based compensation 7.3

Exercise of share options 1.5

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 21.4

Reclassification of foreign currency translation adjustments

upon liquidation of entities 1.4
Share of derivative hedge losses from associates and

joint ventures 0.2

Gains on derivative financial instruments cash flow hedges 0.4

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 7.3

Tax effects 1.7
Income attributable to equity holders 127.3

Dividends declared and paid 37.5
Loss on reissuance of own shares 41.3
November 30 2007 492.9 110.7 29.1 21.9 88.6
Share based compensation 7.5

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 82.8
Reclassification of foreign currency translation adjustments
upon liquidation of entities 0.3
Share of derivative hedge losses from associates or

joint ventures 23.7
Losses on derivative financial instruments cash flow hedges 23.3
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 11.1
Tax effects 1.7 16.4 9.6

Income attributable to equity holders 301.4

Dividends declared and paid 38.3
Loss on reissuance of own shares 15.9
November 30 2008 498.7 110.7 70.4 70.4 158.6
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27 Movements in reserves continued
Paid in surplus

Thi is inclusive of the Groups activities based on its share based payments arising from the share option plans which are available

to various staff members within the Group

Equity reserves

This reserve represents the equity component of the converhble loan notes refer to Note 30 Convertible loan notes

Translation reserves

Exchange differences arise upon the translation of foreign entities currency into the Groups functional currency

Other reserves

Other reserves relate to inclusive of any tax effects

the net cumulative gains or losses effect by the hedging activity entered into by the Group

actuarial gains or losses incurred on the Groups defined benefit pension schemes

the Groups share of other comprehensive losses from its associates and joint ventures

Retained earnings accumulated deficit

The directors propose that dividend of $0.22 per share will be paid to shareholders in June 2009 This dividend is subject

to approval by shareholders and has not been included as liability in these consolidated financial statements The total estimated

dividend to be paid is $40.2 million refer to Note 44 Post balance sheet events

During fiscal year 2008 1171749 own shares 2007W 2957 018 own shares purchased for $201 million 2007 $53.1 million were

reissued for consideration of $4.2 million 2007 $11.8 million

On May 23 2008 dividend of $0.21 per share total dividend of $38.3 million was approved for shareholders on record

on May 29 2008

The consolidated retained earnings exclude undistributed earnings from joint ventures as at November 30 2008 of $130.2 million

2007 $63 million

28 Minority interest

For ihe fiscal year in millions 2008 2007

At December 18.1 18.7

Share of net income for the year 5.8 7.2

Dividends 8.7 87
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 1.5 0.9

AtNovember3o 13.7 181

Acergys respective interest in subsidiaries which are not wholly owned is as follows

2008 2007

Sonamet industrial SA 55.0 550

Sonacergy Servicos Construcoes Petroliferas Lda 55.0 55.0

Pelagic Nigeria Ltd 80.0 80.0

Offshore Installer Nigeria Umited 60.0 60.0

Alto Mar Girassol 66.7 66.7

Alto Ma Giraoi with a667 interest was iiquidated in December 2007
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29 Borrowings continued

The facility utilisation is as follows

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007

For the tiscal year fi millions Utilised Unutiiised Total Utilised Unutilised Total

Cash loans 100.0 100.0 84.4 844

Guarantee facilities 304.1 195.9 500.0 315.6 315.6

Total 304.1 295.9 600.0 315.6 844 4000

$15 million loan
facility

On May 26 2008 Sonamet joint venture entered into $15.0 million loan facility with BAI-Banco African de Investimentos S.A

for the construction of faciltties at the company Lobito yard After an initial 18 month repayment grace period the loan is repayable
in equal Instalments over 66 months with final maturity of May 26 2015 The loan carries interest at month L1BOR plus 2% per

year but subject to minimum rate of 7% and maximum rate of 8% The facility is not guaranteed by Acergy S.A or any of its

subsidiaries As at November 30 2008 $6.1 million was drawn on this facility and there are no covenants over thts facility

Other facilities

$9.5 million 2007 $9.5 million unsecured loan provided by Sonangol to Sonamet bearing interest at fixed rate of 75%

per year and is repaid in annual instalments for remaining period of two years as at November 30 2008

During fiscal year 2008 facility of $0.2 million was provided to Pelagic Ntgeria Ltd by Pegasus International Services Inc
the minority interest holder of this entity

Bank overdraft and short-term lines of credit

The overdraft facilities consist of $247 million 2007 $43.6 million of which $6.1 million 2007 $nil million were drawn as at

November 30 2008

Guarantee arrangements with
joint ventures

SapuraAcergy Sdn Bhd SASB is 50/50-owned joint venture between Acergy M.S Ltd subsidiary of Acergy S.A and

Nautical Essence Sdn Bhd subsidiary of SapuraCrest Petroleum Berhad This joint venture has issued Charter Guarantee

guaranteeing the charter payments from the charterer of the Sapura 3000 vessel to the ship owner Nautical Vessels Pte Ltd

NVLP The limit of the guarantee is at any time the sum of the outstanding amounts under the $240 million
Facility Agreement

of NVLP less US$100000000 Any call under the guarantee will not result in lump sum payment being made but the guarantors

severally will have to service the debt by way of charter payments due from the charterer to the ship owner until the termination

date ol the loan which is February 22015

Acergy Havila Limited is 50/50 joint venture between Acergy M.S Ltd and Havila Shipping Pte Ltd This joint venture has entered

into loan facility with group of banks led by DnB NOR Bank ASA for post-delivery financing of up to Norwegian krone 977.5

million $139.3 million for the purchase of dive support vessel to be owned by the joint venture when it is delivered in early 2010

The facility is guaranteed severally by the investors in the
joint

venture

Other guarantee arrangements

In addition to the amounts available under the $400 million amended and restated revolving credit and guarantee facility and $200
million rnulticurrency revolving guarantee facility the Group have $30 million 2007 $30.0 million bank guarantee facility with

Credit lndustriel et Commercial Bank of which $nil 2007- $nil was utitised as at November 30 2008 There are also number of

unsecured local lines in Indonesia Brazil Madera and Nigeria for the sole uses of PT Acergy Indonesia Acergy Brasil S.A
Sonacergy and Globestar Engineering Company Nigeria Limited respectively The lines are with HSBC Indonesia $0.5 million
HSBC Bank Brasil S.A $5.4 million Banco Espirito Santo S.A $8.5 million First Bank of Nigeria plc $10 million The bonds

under these facilities were issued to guarantee our project performance and that of our subsidiaries and joint ventures to third

parties in the normal course of business The amount issued under these facilities as at November 30 2008 was $14.6 million

2007 $57.6 million The Group had past arrangements with number of financial institutions to issue bank guarantees on our

behalf As at November 30 2008 the aggregate amount of guarantees issued under these old facilities was $1 3.2million 2007
$15.1 million There was no availability for further issuarices under these facilities
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30 Convertible loan notes

On October11 2006 Acergy S.A issued $500.0 million 2.25% convertible note due 2013 The issuance was completed on

October 2006 with the receipt of net proceeds after deduction of issuance related costs of $4908 million The issuance costs

of $9.2 million have been
split

between the liability and equity components

The convertible notes have an annual interest tate of 225% payable semi annually arrears on Apnl ii and October 11 of each

year up to and including fiscal year 2013 They were issued at 100% of their incipal arnoun and unless previously redeemed

converted or cancelled will mature on October 11 2013 The convertible notes are listed on the Eur MTF Market of the

Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The noteholders were granted an option which allows them to convert the convertible notes into common shares with an initial

conversion price of $2405 equivalent to 20790021 common shares or approximately 107% of our existing issued share capital

at the date of issue This was subsequently revised to $2352 following the payment of the dividends since issuance The

conversion price will continue to be adjusted in line with market practices for this type of instrument to provide anti-dilutive

adjustments for items such as payment of dividends and events such as change of control which can affect materially the

marketability liquidity or volatility of common shares

There is also an option for Acergy to call the convertible notes after years and 14 days from the date of issue if the price

of the common shares exceeds 130% of the then prevailing conversion price over the above specified period

The following undertakings apply

unsecured but with negative pledge provision in respect of other current and future debt to ensure that the convertible

notes will rank equally with other debt issuance

cross default provision subject to minimum threshold of $100 million and other events of default in connection with

non-payment of the convertible notes

various undertakings in connection with the term of any further issuance of common shares continuance of the listing

of the shares and the convertible notes on recognised stock exchanges- and

provisions for the adjustment of the conversion price in certain circumstances

There were no conversions of these convertible notes as of November 30 2008

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible loan notes have been split between the
liability

element and an equity

component representing the fair value of the embedded option to convert the
liability into equity of the Group as follows

in millions
___________________

Principal value of convertible loan notes issued 500.0

Proceeds of issue net of apportioned transaction costs 490.8

Liability component at date of issue 362.4

Equity component 128.4

Deferred tax 17.7
Transfer to equity reserve see Note 27 110.7

The liability component is as follows

For the fiscal year In mIllions 2008 2007

Liability component at December 380.3 364.5

Interest charged 28.4 27.1

Interest paid 11.3 11.3

Liability component at November 30 397.4 380.3

The interest charged in the year is calculated by applying an effective rate of 7.35% The liability component is measured at

amortised cost The difference between the carrying amount of the liability component at the date of issue and the amount

reported in the balance sheet at November 30 2008 represents the effective interest rate less interest paid to that date

The directors estimate the fair value of the liability component of the convertible loan notes at November 30 2008

to be approximately $397.3 million 2007 $380.3 million These have been recognised as borrowings within the Group

refer to Note 29 Borrowings
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35 commitments and contingent liabilities

Commitments

These consist of

purchase of property plant and equipment and from external suppliers as at November 30 2008 for $130.0 million

20O7 $110.0 million

operating lease commitments as indicated in Note 36 Operating lease arrangements

credit facility
to the

joint venture Seaway Heavy Lifting SHL of an amount equal to the greater of either $2 million

or 80% of SHL accounts receivable

Contingen

Contract disputes occur from time to time due to the nature of our activities as contracting business involved in several long-term

projects at any given time Provisions are made to cover the expected risk of loss to the extent that negative outcomes are likely

and reliable estimates can be made However the linal outcomes of these contract disputes are subject to uncertainties as to

whether or not they develop into formal legal action and therefore the resulting liabilities may exceed the
liability anticipated

Furthermore legal proceedings incidental to the ordinary conduct of business are entered into from time to time Litigation is

subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of individual matters is not predictable with assurance It is reasonably possible

that the final resolution of any litigation could require us to make additional expenditures in excess of reserves that have been

established In the ordinary course of business various claims suits and complaints have been filed against us in addition to

the ones specifically referred to above Although the final resolution of any such other matters could have material effect on

the operating results for particular reporting period it is considered that they should not materially affect our consolidated

financial position

For accounting purposes legal costs are expensed as incurred

36 Operating tease arrangements

The Group as Lessee

Fm the iisoaty or millions 2008 2007

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in operating expenses for the year 130.9 95.9

The total operating lease commitments as at November 30 2008 were $5265 million 2007 $3397 million These consisted

of Charter hire obligations towards certain construction support diving support survey and inspection ships of $3420 million

2007 $2299 million The remaining obligations related to office facilities and equipment as at November 30 2008 of $184.5

million 2007 $109.8 million

The Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows

For the liscaty Or un millions 2008 2007

Within one year 125.3 107.5

In the second to fifth years inclusive 285.7 201.9

After live years 115.5 30.3

Total 526.5 339.7
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37 Financial instruments continued

Market risk

The Groups activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates see below

and interest rates see below The Group enters into variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure

to interest rate and foreign currency risks incIuding

forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on future revenues operating costs

and capital expenditure

interest rate risk due to interest rate fluctuations from floating rate credit facilities and variable interest rate returns on deposits

There has been no change to the Group exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies Hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations

arise Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group reporting currency is the US dollar The majority of net operating expenses and income are denominated in

the functional currency of the individual subsidiaries operating in different regions namely

Africa and Mediterranean US dollar and Euro

Northern Europe and Canada US dollar British pound sterling Norwegian krone and Canadian dollar

North America and Mexico US dollar

South America Brazilian real

Asia and Middle East US dollar and Australian dollar

The Groups exposure to exchange rate fluctuations results from our net investments in foreign subsidiaries primarily in the

United Kingdom Norway France and Brazil and from our share of the local currency earnings in our operations in Africa and

the Mediterranean Northern Europe and Canada and South America However the Group does not use derivative instruments

to hedge the value of investments in foreign subsidiaries

Furthermore the Group conducts operations in many countries arid as result is exposed to currency fluctuations through

generation of revenue and expenditure in the normal course of business Hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise

Our currency rate exposure policy prescribes the range of allowable hedging activity The Group primarily uses forward foreign

exchange contracts to hedge capital expenditures and operational nonfunctional currency exposures on continuing basis for

periods consistent with our committed exposures

The carrying amounts of the Groups primary foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities including

foreign exchange derivatives receivables and borrowings issued in currency different from the functional currency of the issuer

arid inter.company foreign currency denominated receivables payables and loans at the balance sheet date are as follows

Assets Uabilities

As at ember 30 tin millions _________________ 2008 2007 2008 2007

Australian dollar 72.5 79.6 46.8 688

Brazilian real 47.9 42.1 81.2 69.8

British pound sterling 566.7 720.7 488.8 269.2

Canadian dollar 24.6 2.4 30A 58

Central African franc 11.6 7.4 125.3 115.5

Euro 1287.2 1958.1 750.8 608.0

Nigerian naira 105.4 179.4 290.6 325.3

Norwegian krone 241.8 5023 157.3 78.6

US dollar 2318.4 3286.4 3063.7 5467.8
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roreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group operates in various geographical locations and is eXposed to number of currencies dependent upon the functional

currency of individual subsidiaries as indicated in the foreign currency risk management section above

We consider that our principal currency exposure is to movements in the US dollar against other currencies on the basis that

the US dollar is the Groups reporting currency the functional currency of many of our subsidiaries and the transaction currency

of significant volume of the Groups cash flows We have performed sensitivity analyses to indicate how profit or loss and

equity would have been affected by changes in the exchange rate between the US dollar and other currencies in which the Group

transacts Our analysis is based on strengthening of the US dollar by 10% against each of the other currencies in which we have

significant assets and liabilities at the end of each respective period movement of 10% reflects reasonably possible sensitivity

when compared to historical movements over three to five year timneframe

Our amalysis of the impact ott profit and loss in each year is based on morttary assets amid liabilities in the balance sheet at the

end of each respective year

Our analysis of the impact on equity includes the profit and loss movements from above in addition to the rtrara of the

closina riot assets of our major subsidiaries which have non-US dollar functional currencies

The Sensitivity analyses exclude the impact of exchange rate rnovenmemits on foreign currency derivatives the majority of

which rrpresenl effective accounting hedges of forecast cash flows and so would not have significant iuipact Or the analyses

nie amounts disclosed have not been adjusted for the impact of taxation

Based nn the above 10% increase in the US dollar exchange rate against other currencies in which the Group transacts would

increase net foreign currency exchange gains reported in other gains and losses by $65 million 2007 $7.3 million The

corresponding impact on equity would he reduction in reported net assets of $49.2 million 2007 $29.3 million

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group enters into pnimnianily standard forward foreign exchange contracts with mnaturitics of up to five years to manage the

risk associated with transactions when there is minimum level of exposure risk These transactions consist of highly probable

cash flow exposure relating to operating income and expenditure and capital expenditure

The following tabte details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the balance shoot date

For the fiscal year ended November 30 2008

US DlIar Fair Value

Foei9n ci.nency Value Fry contract Maturity Dy contract Maturity

uy SrQ___ Maturity

in rnilIi Ypar 1-5 Years Yar 1-b Yars Ynar 1-5 Years

Britishpoiindstorling 66.4 13.6 19.5 1.7 11.3 3.1
Danish krone 22.7 0.1

Euro 121.3 50.5 54.5 11.5 5.8

Japanese yen 3350.8 6.9

Norwegian krone 214.7 747.7 321.7 5.3 22.5

Singapore dollar 17.3 0.1
US dollar 174.3 47.4 148.0 126.5 4.4 7.3

Total 16.8 38.7
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37 Financial instruments continued

The Group borrows funds at fixed and variable interest rates and has certain revolving credit and guarantee facilities

refer to Note 29 Borrowings

The Group exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities is detailed in the liq idity risk management

section of this Note

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest on the facilities is discussed in Note 29 Borrowings is payable at LIBOR plus margin which is linked to the ratio of net

debt to EBITDA and range from 8% to 9% per year As at November 30 2008 the Group had significant cash deposits leaving

it in net cash position at margin of 0.8% and it would have required significant reduction in EBITDA during fiscal year 2008 to

move the Group to the highest threshold

The Groups income and equity balances are not significantly impacted by changes to interest rates

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group

The Group has adopted policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where

appropriate as means of mitigating the risk of financial toss from defaults

The Group only invests with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above This information is supplied

by independent rating agencies The Groups exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored

and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties Credit exposure is controlled

by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the risk management committee annually In respect of its clients and

suppliers the Group uses credit ratings as well as other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate

its major counterparties

Net trade receivables refer to Note 19 Trade and other receivables consist of large number of clients spread

across diverse industries and geographical areas Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition

of accounts receivable

For ihe cal year in miiirons 2008 2007

Carrying Carrying
Trade debtor category amount amount

National oil and gas companies 68.0 5.4

International oil and gas companies 161.1 280.5

Independent oil and gas Companies 68.5 132.5

Total 297.6 418.4

National oil and gas companies are either
partially or fully

owned by or directly controlled by the government of any one country

whereas both international and independent oil and gas companies have majority of public or private ownership International oil

and gas companies are generally greater in size and scope than independent oil and gas companies although distinction between

them ultimately relates to the way the company describes itself

The Group depends on certain significant clients During fiscal year 2008 two clients 2007 two clients contributed to more than

10% of the Groups revenue from continuing operations The contribution from these clients was $1 0095 million 2007 $958.4

million The amounts of the receivables balance of the Groups five major clients as at November 30 are shown in the table below

For the fiscal year in millions

Counierpariy 2008 2007

ClientA 64.2 120.2

Client 47.4 95.1

Client 27.1 0.1

Client 14.0

ClientE 13.6

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having

similar characteristics as at November 30 2008 The Group defines counterparties as having similarcharacteristics if they are

related entities
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37 Financial instruments continued

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The table below shows the carrying amount of our major counterparties depositors at the balance sheet date using the Standard

and Poors credit rating symbols

For the fiscal year tin milhons
2008 2007

Carrying Carrying

Counierparty
amount amount

Counterparties rated AAA oo.o

Counterparties rated AA- to AA 157.9 300.0

Counterparties rated A- to 72.5

Counterparties rated BBB or below

Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors which has built an appropriate liquidity

risk management framework for the management of the Groups short medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

requirements The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves banking facilities and reserve borrowing

facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and liabilities Included in Note 29 Borrowings is listing
of undrawn facitittes that the Group has at its disposal to further

reduced liquidity risk

Liquidtly and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Groups remaining contractual matunty for its non-derivative financial liabilities

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Group can be required to pay The table consists of the principal cash flows

For the fiscal year ended November 302008
Less than months

in millisnst month 1-3 months to year 1-5 years 5-f years Total

Tradepayables 70.4 112.7 183.1

Convertible loan notes 500.0 500.0

For the fiscal year ended November 30 2007
Less than months

irs miihons month 1.3 months tot year 1-5 years years Total

Trade payables 88.0 170.0 258.0

Convertible loan notes 5000 500.0

The following table details the Groups liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments The table has been drawn up based

on the undiscounted net cash inflows outflows on the derivative instruments that settle on net basis When the amount payable

or receivable is not fixed the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated

by the yield curves existing at the balance sheet date

For the fiscal year ended November 302008
Less than months

in millions ________________________ _____________
month jiytfss_ to

year
1-5

years __f$5 Total

Forward foreign exchange contracts 3.3 21.3 38.6 58.6 121.8

For the fiscal year ended November 30 2007

Less than monihs

in millions month 1.3 months to year 15 years years
Total

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1.1 1.4 9.5 1.5 13.5
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Fair value of financial instruments

The tair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows

foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted

interest rates matching maturities of the contract

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets

is determined with reference to quoted market prlces

the fair value of other financial assets and financial habilities excluding derivative instruments is determined in accordance

with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market

tran actions and dealer quotes for Similar instruments

the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are not available use is made

of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non optional derivatives

and option pricing models for optional derivatives and

the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the main assumptions are

the probability of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from market-based credit information and the amount

of loss given the default

Except as detailed in the following table the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as indicated recorded

at arnartised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values-

2006 2008 2007 2007

Carrying Fair Carrying rae

As at November30 in millions amount value smount value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 573.0 573.0 582.7 582.7

Restricted cash deposits 11.0 11.0 8.9 89

Net trade receivables see Note 19 297.6 297.6 418 418.4

Employee loans 3.0 3.0 23 2.3

Fair value through profit or loss FVTPL 33.3 33.3 16.1 16.1

Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 30.9 30.9 5.4 54
Financial liabilities

Borrowings Other debt including current portion 21.9 21.9 9.5 9.5

Borrowings Convertible notes 397.4 397.4 380.3 380.3

Fair value through profit or loss FVTPL 62.4 62 10.2 10.2

Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 57.3 57.3 1.9 1.9

Assumptions used in determining fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value The estimated value of our long-term

debt is based on interest rates as at November30 2008 and 2007 using debt instruments of similar risk

Restricted cash deposits

The carrying amounts of restricted cash deposits approximate their fair value which is based on actual deposits held

with financial institutions

Net trade receivables

The fair value of trade receivables is based on their carrying value which is representative of outstanding debtor amounts

owing and includes taking into consideration any amounts of possible doubtful debt

Employee loans

The carrying amounts of employee loans approximate their fair Value The value of these debts is based on actual amounts

to be repaid In the future

Borrowings Convertible notes

The fair value of the liability component of convertible notes is determined assuming redemption on October 10 2013 and using

735% interest rate and holding the credit risk margin constant
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39 Share based payments

Equity-se Wed share option plan

The Group operates share option plan which was approved in April 2003 the 2003 Plan This plan includes of an additional

option plan for key directors and employees resident in France the French Plan as sub plan and additional options which

are granted under the Senior Management Incentive Plan SMIP

Compensation Committee appointed by the Board of Directors administers these plans Options are awarded at the discretion

of the Compensation Committee to directors and key employees

Under the 2003 Plan options up to but not exceeding 63 million ommon shares can be granted Following shareholder approval

at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 18 2008 the 2003 Plan was expanded to cover up to 8710000 shares

This plan replaced the previous plan the 1993 Plan Any options granted under the French Plan also count against this limit

Other than options granted under the SMIP options under the 2003 Plan and therefore also under the French Plan may be

granted exercisable for periods of up to ten years at an exercise price not less than the fair market value per share at the time

the option is granted Such options vest 25% on the first anniversary of the grant date with an additional 25% vesting on each

subsequent anniversary The cost of these non performance share options are therefore recognised using the graded vesting

attribution method Share options exercises are satisfied by either issuing new shares or reissuing treasury shares Furthermore

options are generally forfeited if the option holder leaves the Group under any circumstances other than due to the option holders

death disability or retirement before his or her options are exercised

In fiscal year 2008 1052500 common share options 2007 52000 common share options were granted which included 234000

options 2007 22000 options granted under the French Plan These options were granted subject to shareholder approval which

was obtained at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 18 2008

Restricted share plan

During fiscal year 2008 the Group introduced restricted share plan to provide retention incentive to selected senior executives

The number of shares that may be awarded under the plan may not exceed an average of 350000 common shares over three

year period During the three year restricted plan penod participants are not permitted to sell or transfer shares but Will be entitled

to dividends which will be held by the Group until the restricted period lapses

In fiscal year 200865000 restricted shares were issued at weighted average price and fair value of $22.23 being the market price

on the date of issue

Executive deferred incentive scheme

During fiscal year 2008 the Group introduced deferred incentive scheme for selected senior executives The scheme enabled

the executives to defer on voluntary basis up to 50% of their annual bonus into shares of the Group which will be matched

in shares at the end of three years subject to performance conditions The amount of the bonus deferred wa used to purchase

17 797 shares based upon the prevailing share price on March 31 2008 which was $21.35 The matched element is conditional

upon the growth of earnings per share over the three years to November 30 2010

Option activity including the SMIP are as follows

Weighted average Weighted average

Number of options exercise
price in Number of options exercise price in

For the iiscoi year 2008 2008 2007 2007

Outstanding at December 5115696 8.64 8500241 6.77

Granted 1052500 22.67 52000 2094

Exercised 1088952 3.83 3403865 4.20

Forfeited 228339 16.28 32680 6.22

Expired 333593 11.23

Outstanding at November30 4517312 12.51 5115696 8.64

Exercisable at the end of the period 2686308 829 2696840 668

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the fiscal year was $10.79 2007 $9.62
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39 Share based payments continued

The fair value of each option grant is estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with weighted

average assumptions as follows

For the fiscal year
2008 2007

Weighted average share price in 2267 2094

Weighted average exercise price in 22.67 20.94

Expected volatility
559% 45.8%

Expected life years years

Risk free rate 5% 46%

Expected dividends in 21

The expected life of an option is determined by taking into considerati the vesting period of options the observed historical

pattern
of share option exercises the effect of non-transferability and exercise restrictions The expected volatility over the expected

term of the options is estimated from our historical
volatility

For fiscal year 2008 the expected dividend takeS into account the

expected dividends over the four year vesting period assuming growth rate of 5% over the $021 dividend declared during the

year For fiscal year 2007 the expected dividends were $nil as historical pattern of dividends payments had not been established

at the grant dates and it was the first time the Group had paid dividend of $0.20

The following table summarises information about share options outstanding as at November 30 2008

Options outstanding

Weighted Weighted

average average

remaining exercise

Options contraciuai price

Common shares range of exorcise prices outstanding lite in years in

$17.01 26.16 1842826 8.67 21 09

$10.01 17.00 1029797 5.52 11.08

$3.01 10.00 785162 5.69 5.67

$1.193.00 859527 5.03 2.10

Total 4517312 6.74 12.51

The following table summarises the compensation expense recognised during the year

Forthefiocatyear in millions 2008 2007

Non-performance based share options 3.5 4.0

Senior Management Incentive Plan 0.2

Restricted Share Plan 0.3

Executive Deferred Incentive Scheme 0.1

Total 3.9 4.2

The non-performance based share options are stated taking into consideration the taxation benefit of $5.8 million

2007- tax benefit $3.6 million
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The Group operates both defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans depending on location covering certain

qualifying employees

Contributions under the defined contribution pension plans are determined as percentage of gross salary The expense relating

to these plans for fiscal year 2008 was $24.2 million 2007 $6 million

The Group operates both funded and unfunded benefit pension plans The benefits under the defined benefit pension plans are

based on years of service and salary levels at retirement age Plan assets of the funded schemes are primarily comprised of

marketable securities

During fiscal year 2008 one of the Norwegian funded schemes for existing onshore employees still in service was settled and gains

of $333 million were recognised in the consolidated income statement in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits Of this gain

$300 million was recognised in operating expenses and $3.3 million in administrative expenses The gain is result of break in

the link between the benefit and future salary and difference between the cost of settling the benefit and the accounting liability

under IASI liability remains for existing pensioners under this plan The settlement eliminated the Groups entire legal or

constructive obligation for the defined benefits in respect of non-pensioners under this plan The Group set up defined

contribution scheme for these employees

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement benefit

schemes is as follows

For the fiscal year inS millions 2008 2007

Present value of defined benefit obligations 33.9 99.4

Fair value of plan assets in defined scheme 24.8 62

Deficit in defined scheme 9.1 37.2

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 9.1 11.3

Past service cost not yet recognised in balance sheet 2.9

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 21.1 48.5

This amount is presented in the balance sheet as follows

Retirement benefit asset 0.1 1.1

Retirement benefit obligations 21.2 49.6

Total 21.1 48.5
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement within revenue operating expenses and administrative expenses in

respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

Norway United Kingdom France Total

For ihe ai year in milr 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Service cost 8.3 9.5 0.2 0.6 0.7 0.6 9.2 10.7

Interest cost 26 04 03 43 45

Expected return on plan assets 23 30
Past service cost 07 09 07 09

Settlement 33.3 33.3

Norwegian national insurance 1.3 1.3 1.4

Total 22.9 11.4 0.3 0.8 0.4 1.8 22.2 140

The amount recognised in the consolidated income statement for the Indonesian plan was $02 million 2007 $0.2 million

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during fiscal year 2009 is $1.5 million

2007 expected contributions in fiscal year 2008 was $58 million

Actuarial gains and osses have been reported in the statement of recognised income and expense Actuarial gains and losses

have been reported in the statement of recognised income and expense The net cumulative amount after tax of actuarial losses

recognised in the statement of recognised income and expenses is $35 million 2007 $25.1 million after tax effects of $11

million 2007 $9.9 million

The actual loss on scheme assets was $5.7 million 2007 actual return on scheme assets was $3.4 million

The major categories of plan assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date for each category are as follows

Norway United Kingdom Totai

For the fiscal year in millions 2008 200 2008 2007 2008 2007

Equity instruments 0.8 12.2 8.7 152 9.5 27.4

Bonds 7.7 18.4 3.4 5.1 11.1 23.5

Real estate 2.1 63 2.1 6.3

Other assets 2.0 46 0.1 0.4 2.1 5.0

Total 12.6 41.5 12.2 20.7 24.8 62.2

The overall expected rate of return is weighted average of the expected returns of the various categories of plan assets held

This takes into account the evaluation of the plans assets the plans proposed asset allocation historical trends and experience

and current and expected market conditions

The history of experience adjustments is as follows

For the fiscal year in miliioris 2008 2007

Present value of defined benefit obligations 42.8 110.2

Fair value of scheme assets 24.8 62.2

Deficit in the scheme 18.0 48.0

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 1.3 4.8

Experience adjustments on scheme assets 8.7 0.1

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS19 Employee Benefits in December 2004 the disclosures

above are determined prospectively from the date of transition to IFRS
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41 Deferred revenue

Revenue deferred relating to the Groups obligations are as indicatecJ

-__________ ____
Gonstruction contracts see Note 22 245.8 185.8

Advances received from clients Isee below 59.8 31.6

Tota 305.6 217.4

Construction contracts are the gross amount due to clients for contract work hilled prior to progress 01 work performed This is

adjusted for estimated losses at completion

Advances are amounts received before the related work is performed

The total deferred revenue relates to periods not exceeding twelve months

Advances received from clients are recognised as follows

niIli.n 2008

Balance at December 31.6 51.2

Revenue deferred in respect of revenue booked in advance 59.8 10.7

Revenue recognised on discharge of obligation 31 .6 30.3

Balance at November 30 59.8 31.6

42 Cash flow from operating activities

In th- y..u N.cnder In mIllIc .j 2008 0O7

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 307.2 134.5

Adju.lrnon1s for

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 15 115.8 91.0

Net impairment of property plant and equipment 15 11.5 0.3

Amnortisation of intangible assets 14 0.2 0.3

Share in net income of associates and joint ventures 16 63.0 31.5

Mobilisation costs 2.4 2.6

Share based payments 39 3.9 4.2

Interest on convertible loan notes 30 28.4 27.1

Inventories written back written off 0.9 0.7

Deferred tax 46.1 2.2

Gains on disposal of property plant and equipment 5.4 13.6

Foreign currency on liquidation of entities 16 0.3 1.4

425.3 213.4

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of acquisitions

Increase in inventories 10.8 5.9

Increase in trade and other receivables 47.6 90.0

Increase decrease in accrued salaries and benefits 2.3 5.2

Increase in trade and other liabilities 235.5 8.0

Decrease increase in current tax liabilities 96.7 145.8

Net realised mark-to-market hedging transactions
__________- __________ ________________

14.9 1.2

67.8 37.9

Net cash generated from operating activities 493.1 251.3

During fiscal year 2008 the Group paid tax of S213.6 mriitlioti 2007 S75.7 million
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43 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued

Reconciliation of equity at December 2006 Date of transition to IFRS
Financial

Financial InStruments Other

Reclassilication Share- Reclassilication Instruments Hedging Non-

of Diy-dock based Employee of Minority Impairment Convertible Capital matenal

in millions
US GAAP expendifure Payments Benefits Interest ot Assets Notes Expenditure Items IFRS 2006

Notes

Intangible assets 41 4.1

Property plant and equipment 645.6 284 2.2 6732

Interest in associates and
joint

ventures 68.2 0.4 8.6 05 76.9

Advances and receivables 79.6 28.4 5.9 7.7 37.6

Deterred tax assets 31.0 10.4 6.1 47.5

Total non.current assets 828.5 10.4 0.2 8.6 77 2.2 839.3

Inventories 23.5 1.4 22.1

Trade and other receivables 412.0 412.0

Other accrued income and

prepaid expenses 206.9 1.3 205.6

Restricted cash balances 4.1 4.1

Cash and cash equivalents 717.5 -- 717.5

Assets held for sale 16.7 16.7

Total current assets 1380.7 1.3 1.4 1378.0

Total assets 22092 10.4 0.2 9.0 2.2 0.5 2217.3

Issued share Capital 389.0 389.0

Own shares 17.5 17.5
Paid-in surplus 475.0 5.0 480.0

Equfty reserve 110.7 110.7

Translation reserve 18.1 18.1

Other reserves 10.6 153 2.2 28.1
Accumulated deficit 154.3 18.1 7.6 8.6 1.9 137.1

Minority interest 18.7 18.7

Total equity 699.7 2.6 15.3 18.7 8.6 108.8 2.2 815.7

Trade and other payables
tel 663 t30 676.1

Current tax liabilities 12.6 -- 12.6

Current borrowings 2.4 2.4

Deferred revenue 234.8 234

Non-current borrowings 507 135.5 371.6

Retirement benefit obligations 29.5 15 44.6

Deferred tax liabilities 13.5 17.7 312

Minority interest 18.7 18.7

Other non-current liabilities 27.8 0.5 28.3

Total liabilities 1509.5 13.0 15.1 18.7 117.8 0.5 1401.6

Total equity and liabilities 2209.2 104 0.2 8.6 9.0 2.2 05 2217.3

Includes deavative financial instruments
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Reconciliation of equity at November 30 2007 date of last US GAAP financial statements
l9nanciai

Finaiceit Instruments Other

Reclassification Share- Reclassification flaflu-nerts Hedging Non
ot Dry-dock based Income Employee of

Minority Impairment Caiveilbie Capital intangible matensi

in$mitIiops uSaep expenditure Payments Taxes Benefits Interest ofAssets Notes Expenditure Assets Items IFRS2007

Notes

Intangible assets 3.7 3.7

Property plant and

equipment 787.8 31.2 5.6 0.8 814.2

Interest in

associates arid
joint

ventures 98.0 0.4 7.2 1.6 106.4

Advances and

receivables 78.1 31.2 0.9 6.4 39.6

Derivative financial

instruments 0.2 0.2

Retirement benefit

assets 1.1

Deferred tax assets 48.2 7.9 3.8 599

Total non-current

assets 1017.1 7.9 2.5 7.2 6.4 56 1.6 0.8 1025.1

Inventories 30 1.4 29.2

Trade and other

receivables 485.1 485.1

Derivative financial

instruments 21.3 21.3

Other accrued

income and prepaid

expenses 274 1.3 273.4

Restricted cash

balances 8.9 8.9

Cash and cash

equivalents 582 582.7

Assets held for sale 1.1 1.1

Total current

assets 1404.4 1.3 1.4 1401.7

Total assets 2421.5 7.9 2.5 7.2 7.7 56 1.6 0.6 2426.8

Issued share capital 389.9 389.9

Own shares 111 111.2
Paid-in surplus 488.9 4.0 492.9

Equity reserve 110.7 110.7

Translation teserve 47.2 18.1 29.1

Other reserves 6.6 9.7 56 21.9
Retained earnings 795 18.1 6.0 124 0.6 7.2 16.4 1.6 0.6 88.6
Minority interest 18 18.1

Total equity 728.7 2.0 124 10.3 18 7.2 94.3 5.6 1.6 0.6 819.0
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43 Explanation of transition to WAS continued
Financial

Finmical tnstnirnents Other

Reclassification Share Reclassification trafluiierfs Hedging Non

otOry-dock bas Income Employee of Minority Impairment Cceeaxtble Capital Intangible mat nat

in millions
US GAAP expenditure Payments Taxes Benefits Interest of Assets Notes Expenditure Assets Items FRS 2007

Trade and other

payables 679 9.9 12 701.4

Derivative financial

instruments 12.1 12.1

Provisions 8.8 88
Current tax liabilities 157.3 157.3

Current borrowings 3.2 32
Deferred revenue 217.4 217.4

Non-current

borrowings 506.3 119.7 386.6

Retirement benefit

obligations 36.8 12.8 49.6

Deferred tax

liabilities 17.9 -- 17.7 35.6

Minority interest 181 18.1 --

Non-current

provisions 2.0 2.0

Other non-current

liabilities 33.8 33.8

Total liabilities 1692.8 99 12.4 12.8 18.1 102 1607.8

Total equity and

liabilities 2421.5 7.9 2.5 7.2 7.7 5.6 1.6 0.6 2426.8

IFRS First-time Adoption of IFRS

Cumulative Translation Differences IFRS allows cumulative currency translation differences to be set to zero as at the transition

date and translation differences arising subsequently are accumulated from that date The effect of this was one-off reduction

of the accumulated deficit as at December 2006 of $18.1 million with no effect on equity or net income

Reclassification of Dty-dock Expenditure Under US GAAP expenditure incurred to maintain vessels classification is deferred

and amortised over the period until the next dry-docking is scheduled for the asset i.e 2.5 years to years Under IFRS it

is capitalised as distinct component of the asset and depreciated over the same period The effect is to reclassify $31.2 million

of deferred dry-dock expenditure from non-current prepayments US GAAP to property plant and equipment IFAS at November

30 2007 2006 $28.4 million with no effect on equity

IFRS Share-based Payments

Corporate Taxation IFRS requires the estimated future corporate income tax costs and social security costs impacting on

the share options to be accrued in the current results based on the share price at the reporting date US GAAP previously required

recognition of payroll taxes only when the tax is levied The effect of this is the immediate recognition of additional costs and

taxation costs through the consolidated income statement and the tax liability

Deferred Taxation In addition the deferred tax is calculated based on the tax deduction for the share-based payment under

the applicable tax law whereas under US GAAP this was based on the accounting expense and adjusted up/down at realisation

of the tax benefltJdeticit

The effect of these adjustments is to increase the deferred income tax asset and trade and other payables associated with

further net effect on shareholders paid in surplus and retained earnings

The effect of this adjustment is to increase deferred income tax assets by $7.9 million as at November 30 2007 2006 $10.4

million and trade and other payables by $9.9 million as at November 30 2007 2006 $13.0 million The net effect on equity

is $2.0 million reduction as at November 30 2007 2006 $2.6 million Net income for the year increases by $1.6 million for

the year ended November 30 2007
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lAS 12Income Taxes

IFRS intmduces number of detailed provisions some of which differ to those under US GISAP As result of these differences under IFRS in

the year ended November 30 2007 an additional $12.4 million tax charge was recorded in respect of gains on intercompany asset sales

This is in addition to recording the tax effect of the accounting adjustments identified as result of conversion to IFRS

These tax effects are described as applicable alongside the discussion of the related IFRS adjustment

lAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment

Under IFRS the reversal of prior impairment by one of Acergys non consolidated joint ventures NK Flexibles results in

increased depreciation charges Refer to the discussion below in respect of lAS 36 for details of the reversal of the impairment

The effect of this is to reduce the share of net income of non-consolidated
joint

ventures and associates by $1.4 million in the year

ended November30 2007

lAS 19 Employee Benefits

The pension funding shortfalls attributable to actuarial gains and losses which under US GAAP were spread over future periods

through the consolidated income statement are required to be recorded in full in equity under IFRS The effect is an increase in

pension liabilities of $12 million as at November 30 2007 2006 $15 million resulting in an after tax reduction in shareholders

equity of $10.3 million as at November 30 2007 2006 $15.3 million

lAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Under IFRS minority interests are classified as equity rather than as liabilities under US GAAP The effect of this is an increase

in equity of $18.1 million at November 30 2007 2006 $18.7 million with corresponding decrease in non-current liabilities

lAS 32 Financial Instruments

Convertible Notes IFRS requires separate valuation of the equity option associated with convertible notes The effect of this

adjustment is decrease in borrowings of $1 19.7 million at November 30 2007 2006 $135.5 million with corresponding

after-tax increase in shareholders equity at November 302007 of $94.3 million 2006 $108.8 million Reported borrowing

costs for the year ended November 30 2007 increase by $14.5 million in respect of the amortisation of the discount

lAS 39 Financial Instruments

Hedging Capital Expenditure Under IFRS the impact of hedging capital expenditure transactions is included in the cost of

construction and depreciated over the useful life of the asset whereas under US GAAP the amounts are deferred in equity and

are arnortised to income as the asset is depreciated The effect of this adjustment is decrease in property plant and equipment

of $5.6 million at November 30 2007 2006 $2.2 million with corresponding decrease in equity

lAS 36Impairment of Assets

IFRS requires an asset impairment to be reversed in the event of subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of the asset

US GAAP does not permit this In 2006 the non consolidated joint venture NKT Flexibles reversed an Impairment charge in its

IFRS books that it had recorded in 2002 in respect of under-utilisation of its manufacturing plant The effect of this reversal is an

increase in investment in associates of $7.2 million as at November30 2007 2006 $8 million with an equivalent reduction

in accumulated deilcit Acergys share of the associated increased depreciation charge for the year ended November 30 2007

is $1 million after tax and is included in the share of results of associates

lAS 38Intangible Assets

IFRS requires development costs incurred to establish patents to be capitalised and amortised over the useful life of the patents

concerned The only capitalised patents in the Group are those developed by NK Flexibles and capitalised in the fourth quarter

of 2007 The effect of this is an increase in net equity as at November 30 2007 of $1.6 million

Explanation of material adjustments to the cash flow statement for 2007

The transition from US GAAP to IFRS has no effect on the reported cash flows generated by the Group The IFRS cash flow

statement is presented in different format from that previously required under US GAAP with cash flows
split into three

categories of actMties operating activities investing activities finance activities

The reconciling items between the US GAAP presentation and the IFRS presentation have no net impact on the cash

flow generated
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Investor Information

Stock Trading History and Shareholder Information

Acergy Contacts

Investor Information

Investor Relations

The Investor Relations section of this Annual Report provides

an outline of the Groups communication strategy towards

shareholders contact details for the Investor Relations team

Transfer Agents Registrars and Depository Bank

Acergy S.A is Company registered in Luxembourg whose

stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Select Market and Oslo

Stock Exchanges with its Principal Executive Office do Acergy

M.S Limited based in London The Group reports quarterly in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Acergys senior management devote considerable amount

of their time to communication with shareholders and analysts

by means of quarterly earnings reports and associated

presentations and conference calls playback facility for

conference calls is available for seven days after each call and

conference call transcript is published on the Groups website

Roadshows by the CEO and CFO in Europe and the United

States take place twice year immediately after the full-year

results are published in February and again in September

or October The Investor Relations team is available to meet

investors and those who may become investors at any time

either in London or elsewhere as necessary

The Group has three nominated people who manage the

dissemination of price sensitive information These are Jean

Cahuzac CEO Stuart Jackson CFO and Karen Menzel

Group Manager Investor Relations Requests for meetings

with Senior Management questions concerning Group

performance or other issues should be made directly

through Investor Relations

The Groups website can be accessed at www.acergy-group.com

The Investor Press section provides comprehensive

information for investors including financial reports news

and disclosures analyst coverage and stock price information

An email alert service is provided which notifies those who

elect to use this service to new information posted on this site

Visit our Annual Report online at

www.acergy-group.compublic/FinancialReports

Geographical distribution of shareholders as at

December 31 2008

United States 44%

Norway 26%

United Kingdom

Germany

France 2%

Source Capital Precision

Investor Relations and Press Enquiries

Shareholders securities analysts portfolio managers

representatives of financial institutions and the press may contact

Karen Lenzel

Group Manager Investor Relations

email karen.menzel@acergy-group.com

Acergy M.S Limited

200 Hammersmith Road

London W6 7DL

United Kingdom

4420 8210 5568

Financial information

Copies of press releases quarterly earnings releases Annual

Reports and SEC Form 20-F are available on the Groups

internet site or by contacting

Investor Relations Support

email kelly.good@acergy-group.com

Acergy M.S Limited

200 Hammersmith Road

London W6 7DL

United Kingdom

442082105545

9%

3%

The Netherlands

Rest of the World

2%
14%

Kelly Good
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Stock Trading History and

Shareholder Information

Stock listings

Common Shares Traded on Oslo Stock Exchange under

symbol ACY and on Nasdaq Global Select Market as an

American Depositary Receipt ADR under symbol ACG\

Shares outstanding as of November 30 2008

Common Shares 194953972of which 11258758 are held

directly by Acergy S.A This figure excludes 879121 Common

Shares held by an indirectly owned subsidiary of Acergy S.A

also in treasury

Common Shares Nasdaq US dollars Ticker ACGY

01 Q2 Q3 04

FiscalYear High 23.62 28.07 26.02 15.47

2008 Low 17.40 19.37 15.73 3.78

Common Shares Oslo Norwegian kroner Ticker ACY

01 02 03 04

FiscalYear High 125.25 140.00 133.00 88.70

2008 Low 94.00 104.00 81.90 25.60

ADR program

Acergy has sponsored Level II ADA facility for which Deutsche

Bank Trust Company Americas acts as Depositary Each ADR

represents one ordinary share of the Company The ADRs

are quoted and traded on Nasdaq Global Select Market under

the ticker symbol ACG For enquiries beneficial ADA holders

may contact the Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas Broker

Service Desk on 44207547 6500 or 212 250 9100

Registered ADA holders may contact the shareholder services

line on 866 249 2593 toll free for U.S residents only

Further information is also available at http//www.adr.db.com

Country of Incorporation

Luxembourg

Annual General Meeting

May 22 2009 at 2pm local time

Services GØnØraux de Gestion S.A

412F route dEsch

L-2086 Luxembourg

Internet Address

www.acergy-group.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Common Shares

DnB NOR Bank ASA

Stranden 21

NO-0021 Oslo

Norway

4722481217
47 22 94 90 20

Depositary Bank

Common Shares ADRs

25
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas

27th Floor
20

60 Wall Street
15

New York NY 10005
10

United States

Shareholder Service 866 249 2593

Broker Service Desk 212 250 9100

www.adr.db.com

Auditors

Deloitte LLP

London EC4A 3BZ

United Kingdom

44 20 7936 3000

Corporate Broker

UBS Investment Bank

Finsbury Avenue

London EC2M 2PP

United Kingdom

44207567 8000

10 10 10 10 10
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iti

Volume Closing Price $US



Acergy Contacts

Corporate Information

Acergy SA
do Acergy MS Limited

200 Hammersmith Road

London W6 7DL

United Kingdom

442082105500
442082105501

Registered Office

Acergy SA
41 2F route dEsch

L-2086 Luxembourg

RC.S Luxembourg B-43.172

Regional Offices

Please see www.acergy-groupcom/public/contactuspage for

regional addresses and telephone numbers

Acergy Africa and Mediterranean

Acergy Northern Europe and Canada

Acergy North America and Mexico

Acergy South America

Acergy Asia and Middle East

Shareholder Information

Investor Information

Stock Trading History and Shareholder Information

Acergy Contacts
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Forward-looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report and Financial Statements including the statement from the Chairman and the review

from the Chief Executive Officet describe plans expectations beliefs intentions or strategies regarding the future and constitute

forward-looking statements as defined in the US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and within the meaning of

Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21 of the Exchange Act of 1934 These statements may be identified by the use

of words like anticipate believe estimate expect intend may plan forecast project will should seek and similar

expressions Those statements include but are not limited to statements as to the expected execution of projects currently in

backlog statements as to the expected completion date estimated progress to conipletion estimated costs estimated revenues

and estimated recovery of contract revenues on various projects projections as to the extent to which Acergys business is

impacted by the global economic slowdown including statements as to the expected behaviour and expenditure of Acergys

clients in market downturn and Acergys strategies accordingly expectations as to the expected growth and cyclicality in the

industry in which Acergy operates statements as to the markets on which Acergy will focus expectations as to the expected

demand for Acergys products and services statements as to the review of Acergys corporate and
entity structure and the

implementation of the results from such review statements as to Acergys profitability in the future statements as to the

expected effectiveness of Acergys recruitment and training initiatives statements as to the expected repurchase of share

capital in the future statements as to the expected amount and timing of any future dividend payments and expectations as

to Acergys competitive position and the impact of the economy on its business liquidity and results of operations and financial

position The forward-looking statements reflect our current views and assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties

Actual and future results and trends could differ materially from those set forth in such statements due to various factors Such

factors and others which are discussed in our public filings
and submissions with the SEC are among those that may cause actual

and future results and trends to differ materially from our forward-looking statements our ability to recover costs on significant

projects the general economic conditions and competition in the markets and businesses in which we operate our relationship

with significant clients the outcome of legal and administrative proceedings or governmental enquiries uncertainties inherent in

operating internationally the timely delivery of ships on order and the timely completion of ship conversion programs the impact

of laws and regulations and operating hazards including spills and environmental damage Many of these factors are beyond

our ability to control or predict Given these factors you should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements

Adjusted EBITDA

The Group calculates Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations adjusted earnings before interest income taxation

depreciation and amortisation as net income from continuing operations plus finance costs other gains and losses taxation

depreciation and amortisation and adjusted to exclude investment income and impairment of property plant and equipment

Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing operations is defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue from continuing

operations Management believes that Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing operations are important

indicators of our operational strength and the performance of our business Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin from

continuing operations have not been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards lFRS as issued

by the IASB nor as endorsed for use in the European Union These non-IFRS measures provide management with meaningful

comparison amongst our various regions as they eliminate the effects of financing and depreciation Adjusted EBITDA margin

from continuing operations may also be useful ratio to compare our performance to our competitors and is widely used

by shareholders and analysts following the Groups performance However Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBIIDA margin

from continuing operations as presented by the Group may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other

companies Such supplementary adjustments to EBITDA may not be in accordance with current practices or the rules and

regulations adopted by the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC that apply to reports filed under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 Accordingly the SEC may require that Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing

operations be presented differently in filings made with the SEC than as presented in this document or not be presented at all

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin from continuing operations are not measures determined in accordance with IFRS

and should not be considered as an alternative to or more meaningful than net income as determined in accordance with IFRS

as measure of the Groups operating results or cash flows from operations as determined in accordance with IFRS or as

measure of the Groups liquidity reconciliation of the Groups net income from continuing operations to Adjusted EBITDA from

continuing operations and the Groups net operating income from continuing operations can be found on our website Adjusted

EBITDA for discontinued operations is calculated as per methodology outlined above Adjusted EBITDA for total operations is

the total of continuing operations and discontinued operations


